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Results 348

2014

—2-mE

RMB’000

AE®TT

QOperating income BENA 844,469

Operating profit HERNE 54,029

Profit before taxation iRk 57,551

Net profit for the year EzibE 58,399

Attributable to: BB

Equity shareholders of KAFFES

the Company 58,399

Non-controling interests DERE -

For the year ended 31 December

BET-RAZt-HLFE
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=%

RMB'000
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209,559

208,636
923
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“Z-%%
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52,893
47,336

47,381
(49)

Basic earnings per share (Note) SREAZF (i) RMBARM0.1467T RMBARH03127C RVBAR®026770 RMBAKRH048970 RMBAREQ.1117T

Note: Basic earnings per share was adjusted after the share consolidation on the basis of every 10 shares with a nominal value of
RMBO0.10 each be consolidated into 1 consolidated share with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each be effective on 28 January

2013.
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Assets and Liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities
Total equity attributable to
equity shareholders
of the Company
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| am pleased to submit to the shareholders the annual report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2014.

Annual Results and Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately RMB844,469,000
for the year ended 31 December 2014 as compared to
approximately RMB893,448,000 last year, representing a
decrease of approximately 5.5%. The gross profit margin was
approximately 23% for the year ended 31 December 2014. The
gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately 20%. The profit attributable to equity shareholders
was approximately RMB58,399,000 for the year under review,
representing a decrease of approximately RMB69,131,000 over
the previous year of approximately RMB127,530,000. Basic
earnings per share was approximately RMBO0.15.

The decrease in turnover of the Group was mainly due to the
decrease in international market price of juice concentrate.
Adversely affected by the overall international market, the
international market price of the juice concentrate industry in China
continue to drop in 2014, which in turn has the impact on the
export price of the Group.

Under the trend of steady appreciation of Renminbi against US
dollar, the Group has enhanced its cooperation with international
renowned financial institutions and entered into term loan
agreements with certain financial institutions to appropriately adjust
the Renminbi and US dollar loans portfolio. The directors of the
Company (“Directors”) believe that maintaining an appropriate
proportion of US dollar loans can reduce the Group’s exchange
rate risk and finance costs, and can better facilitate its business
development. In expanding the domestic market sales, the Group
continued to maintain close and stable business relationships
with certain renowned beverage manufacturers in China and has
developed new good customers with broadened sales channels. Its
market share in terms of sales volume in the domestic market also
increased from the previous year. For research and development,
the Group accomplished the acceptance of both “Planting
of High-Yield Lemon Seedling and Efficient Deep Processing
Technology of Lemon” in the National and International Scientific
and Technological Cooperation Project and “Research on and
Industrialization of Technology of Decomposing Molecular Material
in Apples by Multiple Enzymes” in the Science and Technology
Development Plan Project of Yantai city; participated in the
formulation of National Standard of “Fruit & Vegetable Juice and
Drink” GB/T 31121-2014 which was issued on 3 September
2014 and will be implemented on 1 June 2015; continued to
undertake the research project under the National Science and
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Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year Plan” on the
“Research and Industrialization Demonstration of Key Technologies
on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, the research project
under the National Agricultural Fund Transfer Program 2013 on
“Efficient Processing Technology Integration and Industrialization
Demonstration of Apple Juice Concentrate”, Shandong Innovation
Project 2013 on “Construction of Professional Information
System for Apple Processing and Optimization and Application
Demonstration of Apple Juice Processing Technology” and the
International Scientific and Technological Cooperation Project 2013
of Yantai city on “Research on Critical Technology for Processing
Peach Puree”; undertook “Research on Key Processing Technology
of Highly Enriched Apple Puree” of the Science and Technology
Development Plan 2014 of Yantai city; and applied for two national
invention patents.

Analysis of Industry and Our Market Share

In 2014, the total volume of China’s apple juice concentrate
exports was approximately 455,800 tonnes, representing a
decrease of 24% as compared to approximately 598,000 tonnes
in 2013. Although the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry
has only begun mass production since the late 90’s of last century,
the industry grew at a tremendous rate and has claimed a world
market share of over 50% within just a decade, owing to the
abundant apple supplies in the PRC. Excluding China, Europe is
the second main production site of apple juice concentrate in the
world. Hence the export volume and price of the China’s apple
juice concentrate is affected not only by global economy, but also
the production and sales of apple juice concentrate in Europe. In
the first half of 2013, since the global economy was growing in
a slow pace, the demand of juice market became weak and the
international market price of apple juice concentrate decreased
significantly. In the second half of 2013, the international market
price of apple juice concentrate gradually became stable and was
recovered to a reasonable level. In 2014, due to the increasing
competition of producers of apple juice concentrates in Europe and
low growth pace of global economy, the international market price
of apple juice concentrate remained low.

Since apple juice itself is nutritious, people’s increasing pursuit
for green and healthy food, is bound to bring more rooms for
development for the apple juice market. Currently, 80% of the
world’s apple juice consumption market is concentrated in the
developed countries with solid demands and steady growth. In
these major consumer countries, we already have relatively fixed
market shares and customer base. Meanwhile, we believe that
the dense population in the developing countries and people’s
increasing attention on dietary nutrition, natural apple juice will
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undoubtedly be one of the best options. This gradually maturing
consumer market will surely become a take-off area of future apple
juice consumption. In the long run, healthy and pure juice will
become more and more popular.

Being a leader in the Chinese apple juice concentrate industry and
through our proactive and visionary leadership, we have gradually
expanded the market shares of our products and will seek to
secure our leading position in the industry for more rapid and better
development.

Prospects and Outlook

As a mild raw material, apple juice concentrate can be mixed with
different fruit and vegetable juice, to fulfill the market requirements
like low cost and good taste. Therefore the demand of apple juice
concentrate is solid and steady.

With the rising demand brought by the global economic recovery,
we expect both the export volume and export price of apple juice
will steadily stabilise at a rational and normal level. In addition, with
the gradual implementation of specific measures favourable to the
agricultural industry under the PRC government’s macroeconomic
policies as well as the gradual improvement of various relevant
PRC laws and regulations, the Group will enjoy better development
and financing opportunities. Aiming at enlarging its business
scale, the Group will strive to further enlarge its market, enhance
productivity, diversify products, expand sales, disperse markets
and to develop financing channels, etc.

In terms of juice production capacity, volatility in the industry will
force some of the small and medium domestic enterprises out of
the market. Moderate reshuffling in the industry will favour industry
consolidation and improve industry competition. The Group aims
to further increase its annual juice concentrate production capacity
and to strengthen its leading position in the industry by targeting
small and medium enterprises in the industry, both domestic and
abroad, through merger and acquisitions and to rationally adjust
the Group’s existing production capacities according to changes
in the sources of raw materials and to extend the research on
different types of juice concentrate and production capacity. On
domestic market sales, as the domestic consumer market for
apple juice concentrate gradually expands, the Group will continue
to maintain good business relationships with existing customers in
the coming year while actively exploring new customers through
our prime product quality and comprehensive services, with a view
to opening a new page in our domestic market sales. On research
and development, in 2015, as the presiding unit, the Group will
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continue to undertake the research project under the National
Science and Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year
Plan” on the “Demonstration on the Research and Industrialization
of Key Technologies on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, the
research project under the National Agricultural Fund Transfer
Program 2013 on “Efficient Processing Technology Integration
and Industrialization Demonstration of Apple Juice Concentrate”
and Shandong Innovation Project 2013 on “Construction of
Professional Information System for Apple Processing and
Optimization and Application Demonstration of Apple juice
Processing Technology”, the Scientific and Technological Project
of Yantai city on “Research on Critical Technology for Processing
Peach Puree” and “Research on Key Processing Technology of
Super Fold Apple Puree”.

At present, the Group has a sound financial base. The Group
is also well positioned to take advantage of the State’s policy
on development of new villages and agriculture with a view
to developing rural villages, enriching farmers and expanding
domestic demands. The board of Directors (the “Board”) and
| have full confidence in the Group’s future development. Our
employees will continue to support the Group and to contribute to
the Group’s continuous and steady development.

Dividend

The Board proposes a final dividend of approximately RMBO0.05 per
share for the financial year 2014 in the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Appreciation

During the reporting period, although the international market price
of apple juice concentrate decreased, due to the decrease in cost
of raw apples, both the gross profit and gross profit margin of the
Company still increased. The Directors strongly believe that the
Company will have even more development opportunities in 2015,
given that some small and medium domestic enterprises have
been forced out of the market and the whole international market
is gradually recovering. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to all the investors, loyal customers
and suppliers for their appreciation and unfailing support to the
Group.

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An
Chairman

12 March 2015

* For identification purpose only
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Financial Review

Results

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s turnover
decreased to approximately RMB844,469,000 as compared to
approximately RMB893,448,000 in 2013, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB48,979,000 or 5.5%. The Group’s turnover
was principally derived from the manufacture and sale of apple
juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, feedstuff and related
products. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the sale of apple
juice concentrate was approximately 81% of the total sale of the
Group (2013: approximately 84%). The decrease in turnover was
mainly due to the decrease in international market selling price of
the apple juice concentrate in the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s gross profit was
approximately RMB199,592,000 and the gross profit margin was
approximately 23%. For the corresponding period in 2013, the gross
profit was approximately RMB180,044,000 and gross profit margin
was approximately 20%. The increase in gross profit and gross profit
margin was mainly due to the decrease in cost of raw materials.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s net profit
(i.e. the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company) decreased to approximately RMB58,399,000
as compared to approximately RMB127,530,000 for the
corresponding period in 2013, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB69,131,000 or 54%. The decrease in net profit
was mainly attributable to the decrease in investment income.
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group disposed its
18.95% equity interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. (“Andre
Pectin”) and recorded investment income of approximately
RMB74,201,000. No such income was recognized in the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Distribution Costs and Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group incurred
distribution costs of approximately RMB49,942,000, as compared
to approximately RMB55,533,000 in 2013, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB5,591,000 or 10%. The Group’s distribution
costs mainly included transport, export inspection and marketing
expenses. Such decrease was mainly due to increase in sales in
terms of FOB, thereby reduced the distribution costs by sea.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group incurred
administrative expenses of approximately RMB50,421,000 as
compared to approximately RMB51,322,000 in 2013, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB901,000 or 2%. Such decrease
was mainly attributable to the tightened control of administrative
expenses by the Group.

Net Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the net finance costs of
the Group were approximately RMB37,963,000, as compared to
approximately RMB29,425,000 for the corresponding period in
2013, representing an increase of approximately RMB8,538,000
or 29%. Such increase was mainly due to the increase in average
annual balance of the loans of the Group.

Investment Income

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the investment income
recognized by the Group was approximately RMB2,731,000 as
compared to approximately RMB80,195,000 in 2013, representing
a significant drop of RMB77,464,000 or 97%. For the year ended
31 December 2013, the Group disposed its 18.95% equity interest
in its associate, Andre Pectin, and recorded investment income of
approximately RMB74,201,000. No such income was recognized
in the year ended 31 December 2014.

Share of Profit from an Associate and a Joint Venture

For the year ended 31 December 2014, share of profit from an
associate and a joint venture of the Group was approximately
RMB1,643,000, as compared to approximately RMB5,209,000 in
2018, representing a decrease of approximately RMB3,566,000
or 68%. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the disposal of
18.95% equity interests in its associate, Andre Pectin, in the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Income Tax

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the production of
condensed juice and bio-feedstuff by the Company and certain of
its subsidiaries was continue to recognize as primary processing of
agricultural produce under the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC and therefore was exempt from the PRC income tax.
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Business Review

Acquisition of Anyue Andre

On 29 April 2014, the Company and Yantai Anlin Fruit Co., Ltd.
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to acquire and Yantai Anlin Fruit
Co., Ltd. conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest in
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. (“Anyue Andre”)
at a consideration of RMB52,120,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$65,150,000). Anyue Andre is the first domestic enterprise
professionally engaged in extracting lemon oil and lemon juice,
as well as the largest enterprise solely professionally engaged in
deep-processing of lemon in the PRC. The Board believes that
the acquisition provides a prime opportunity for the Company
to diversify its business. Anyue Andre is now a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

Stabilising Market Coverage

During 2014, by adapting to the market demand and leveraging on
its advanced production technology, superb product quality and
comprehensive customer services, the Group maintained steady
growth in markets sales. With years of continuous efforts, the
Group has already expanded its sales network to major countries
and regions in the world, including the US, Japan, Europe, Oceania
and African countries and PRC market.

Expanding Domestic Sales Market

The Group continued to maintain close and stable business
relationships with certain renowned beverage manufacturers in the
PRC and has developed new good customers with broadened
sales channels.

Optimisation of Customer Base

While expanding its market places and market share, the Group
also leveraged on the prime quality of its products to optimise its
profile of customer base continuously. Currently, the customer
base of the Group mainly comprises renowned beverage
manufacturers of the world.
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Research and Development

The Group accomplished the acceptance of both “Planting
of High-Yield Lemon Seedling and Efficient Deep Processing
Technology of Lemon” in the International Scientific and
Technological Cooperation Project and “Research on and
Industrialization of Technology of Decomposing Molecular Material
in Apples by Multiple Enzymes” in the Science and Technology
Development Plan Project of Yantai city; participated in the
formulation of National Standard of “Fruit & Vegetable Juice and
Drink” GB/T 31121-2014 which was issued on 3 September
2014 and will be implemented on 1 June 2015; continued to
undertake the research project under the National Science and
Technology Support Program of the “12th Five-Year Plan” on the
“Research and Industrialization Demonstration of Key Technologies
on Apple Comprehensive Processing”, the research project
under the National Agricultural Fund Transfer Program 2013 on
“Efficient Processing Technology Integration and Industrialization
Demonstration of Apple Juice Concentrate”, Shandong Innovation
Project 2013 on
System for Apple Processing and Optimization and Application
Demonstration of Apple Juice Processing Technology” and the

“Construction of Professional Information

International Scientific and Technological Cooperation Project
20138 of Yantai city on “Research on Critical Technology for
Processing Peach Puree”; undertook “Research on Key Processing
Technology of Highly Enriched Apple Puree” of the Science and
Technology Development Plan 2014 of Yantai city; and applied for
two national invention patents.

Future Prospects

Market Expansion and Product Diversification

Currently the Group has maintained relatively stable market
penetration and customers groups in major consumer markets of
apple juice concentrate in the world, namely the US, European,
Oceania, African countries and Japan. The Company will put more
efforts in the development of various emerging markets, with a
view to breaking through these markets. On the other hand, the
Company has in recent years explored the market opportunities for
its new products and niche products as well as the development
of new customer groups. This will satisfy both the needs of the
market and our customers, as well as fulfill our target of product
mix expansion.
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Further Exploitation of the Domestic Market

As the domestic consumer market for apple juice concentrate
further expands, the Group will continue to maintain good business
relationships with existing customers in the coming year while
actively exploring new customers through our prime product quality
and comprehensive services, with a view to opening a new page in
our domestic market sales.

Continue the Development of Traceability and Farm
Management Improvement Linkages Project

In the coming year, the Group will more strictly implement the
GLOBALGAP standardisation in the regulation and development of
existing and newly established recognition bases. Improvements
will be made in the areas of production, management, storage and
sales, etc. to generate more revenue from the GLOBALGAP bases,
with a view to building up the modelling status so that surrounding
fruityards will follow the GLOBALGAP standardisation.

Develop New Financing Channels

The Group will closely monitor the trend of Renminbi exchange
rate against US dollar and adjust the proportion of Renminbi and
US dollar loans. The Group will continue to actively engage in
cooperation with domestic and international financial institutions to
diversify its financing channels and increase the variety of financing
products, in order to reduce the Group’s exchange rate risk and
finance cost, improve capital structure and facilitate better business
development.

Research and Development
The Group will commit to the following research and development:

1. acting as the presiding unit, undertake the research project
under the National Science and Technology Support
Program of the “12th Five-Year Plan” on the “Demonstration
on the Research and Industrialization of Key Technologies on
Apple Comprehensive Processing”;

2. acting as the presiding unit, undertake the research project
under the National Agricultural Fund Transfer Program
2018 on “Efficient Processing Technology Integration and
Industrialization Demonstration of Apple Juice Concentrate”;
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3. acting as the presiding unit, undertake Shandong
Innovation Project 2013 on “Construction of Professional
Information System for Apple Processing and Optimization
and Application Demonstration of Apple juice Processing
Technology”;

4. undertake the International Scientific and Technological
Cooperation Project 2013 of Yantai city on “Research on
Critical Technology for Processing Peach Puree”; and

5. undertake the Science and Technology Plan 2014 of Yantai
city on “Research on Key Processing Technology of Highly
Enriched Apple Puree”.

Charge of Assets

Except as disclosed in Note V.15 to the Financial Statements, the
Group has no assets charged as at 31 December 2014.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group has no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2014.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The operating revenue of the Group is partly denominated in US
dollars. It is the practice of the Group to convert its operating
revenue denominated in US dollars to Renminbi to finance its
operating expenses and capital requirements. However, the results
of operations and the financial position of the Group may be
affected by any changes in the exchange rates.

On the other hand, the conversion of Renminbi denominated
balances into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.

Capital Commitment

For the capital commitment of the Group, please refer to Note XII.1
to the Financial Statements.
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Capital Structure

The H shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM”) on 22 April 2003. On 19
January 2011, the H shares of the Company were transferred and
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the “Main Board”)
and de-listed from GEM. The capital of the Company comprises
only ordinary shares (comprising domestic shares and H shares).
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note
V.23 to the Financial Statements.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally financed its operations and investing activities
by internally generated financial resources and loans from banks.
As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total outstanding bank
loans of approximately RMB473,237,000, all of which was short
term bank loan. As at 31 December 2014, short-term bank loans
of RMB333,237,000 bore interest at rates ranging from 4.28% to
6.30% per annum. Short-term bank loans of RMB140,000,000
bore floating interest rate of 6.24% to 6.60% per annum. In the
year 2014, the Group repaid on time the loans due for repayment.
The Directors consider that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its ongoing operation requirements.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB191,534,000. The Group’s
gearing ratio as at 31 December 2014 was approximately 29%
(2013: approximately 37%) which is calculated by dividing the
Group’s total liabilities of approximately RMB617,982,000 (2013:
RMB906,525,000) by the Group’s total assets of approximately
RMB2,157,629,000 (2013: RMB2,442,161,000).
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Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang An (£%), aged 52, is Chairman of the Board and
an executive Director. Mr. Wang has been a Director since 26
June 2001. Mr. Wang is a well known entrepreneur in the PRC.
Mr. Wang has received the following awards/recognitions: one
of the top ten Outstanding Youths Entrepreneurs in Shandong
Province, the medal of “Labor Model of the Nation”, an Advanced
Individual of the United Front (#E8; Z# 5 E A ), an Outstanding
Contributor to the Development of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics in Shandong Province (IUEREEFHREGFELE
THEEERELE), a Top Ten Outstanding and Influential Individual
in the Agricultural Industry of Shandong Province (1L & EZ%E
¥ BEFENTRERAY), a Star of Hope in the 30 Years’
of Reform and Opening in Yantai (AAKERBM=ZTF [FL2
£ 1), an Influential and Outstanding Private Entrepreneur in Yantai
to Commemorate the 60th Anniversary of the Establishment of the
People’s Republic of China (42:&% Bk 60 BFFERAES
REMER), one of the Top Ten Influential Persons of the Time
Among the Top 60 Advanced Individuals in the Development of
Socialism in Yantai of Shandong Province (IUE (&) it & T %2
JATEREAY 2 TELEREAY), and is a representative
of Shandong Province to the National People’s Congress (AKX
AK). Mr. Wang graduated from the Institute of the PRC Central
Communist Party (R #tAh RER 1287 ) in June 1994. He was
the general manager of Yangma Resort (& 5 &E/BA) for four
years before joining the Group. Mr. Wang has the following social
services appointments: member of China Business Advisory
Council (FE TR EEIEE), member of the 1st Session of the
Council of Yantai Charity Federation (JEAMEEREFE —[EHESE
gIE%E). Mr. Wang An is a director of China Pingan Investment
Holdings Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (1L
ZIEFREEFR AT, which are substantial shareholders of the
Company. He joined the Company in March 1996 and has since
been involved in the concentrated juice production industry. Mr.
Wang is responsible for the overall management of the Group.
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Mr. Zhang Hui (3&#E), aged 42, is an executive Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Zhang has been a
Director since 26 June 2001. He was Deputy General Manager of
Muping Foodstuff Industrial Company Limited (£ & mIEAR
A7]) and Muping material (£2F#)%& ) before joining the Group.
Mr. Zhang joined the Company in December 1998 and has been
involving in the concentrated juice production industry since then.
Mr. Zhang has been Supervisor of the Production Department,
General Manager of a subsidiary of the Company and Executive
President of the Company. Mr. Zhang has received the following
awards: Outstanding Member of the Communist Party ({855 &
#8) of Muping District, The 9th Session Top Ten Outstanding
Youth Entrepreneurs of Yantai city (FAEMEEM +ALHEFF
{#%X) and the “May 1st Labor Award” of Yantai city. In March
2007, he was appointed as a member of the standing committee
of the Fruit and Vegetable Processing Division (21T H ) of
the Chinese Institute of Food Science and Technology. During his
tenure as General Manager of Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.* (H7K
ZEFRFTAMR AT, he was appointed as a representative of
the Communist Party in Weinan city (ff ;8 mE A R) and was
a standing member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Baishui County. Currently, Mr. Zhang assists Mr.
Wang An in the overall management of the Group. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Shandong Agriculture University with a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and Management (majoring in corporate
management) in July 1997. Mr. Zhang is an engineer.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (T#:#8), aged 38, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Mr. Wang is a postgraduate and a certified
public accountant in the PRC. Mr. Wang formerly worked as an
accountant in Yantai Yangma North Hotel (& & B &1L AH
JE). Mr. Wang joined the Company in February 2001 and worked
as accountant, chief accountant, deputy manager, manager in
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang is also the Financial
Controller of the Group and the secretary to the Board.

*
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Tsung-VYi (2I5RH), aged 48, is a non-executive Director.
He has been a non-executive Director of the Company since 22
June 2009. Mr. Liu is the vice president of the Business Integration
Division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp., a company listed on
the Taiwan Stock Exchange. He joined Uni-President Enterprises
Corp. in July 1996, and was subsequently appointed as the head
of its Investment Analysis Section. In 2000, he was transferred
to President International Development Corporation, and was
responsible for its investments. He has also been the manager
of the Treasury Division of Uni-President Enterprises Corp. since
2004. Currently, Mr. Liu is also the president/director/supervisor
of certain member companies of Uni-President Enterprises Corp.,
amongst which Tait Marketing and Distribution Co., Ltd. is a
company listed on the Taiwan Gretai Securities Market. Mr. Liu
has over 20 years of experience in banking, corporate finance and
investment. Before joining Uni-President Enterprises Corp., he was
the head of the Credit and Loan Unit of Taipei branch of Cosmos
Commercial Bank. Mr. Liu obtained a Bachelor of Law degree
(majoring in Economics) from National Chengchi University in 1989,
and a Master of Business Administration degree from National
Taiwan University in 1991.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Gong Fan (ZEFL), aged 50, is an independent non-executive
Director since 18 January 2011. Mr. Gong graduated from Xi’an
Jiaotong University (FA%Z3BAZR) in July 1987 with a Bachelor’'s
degree in Industrial Management Engineering ( TEE 2 THE) . Mr.
Gong has over 20 years of experience in finance and is a certified
public accountant and a certified appraiser in the PRC. Mr. Gong
worked in the Beihai Finance Bureau in Guangxi Province (&Pt
BTHEIED) from 1987 to 1992; and Beihai Accounting Firm (4t
JEEEHAIESFT) and Zhong He Accounting Firm (FR A& 5+Al %
FFT) from 1993 to 2000 as a registered accountant. Mr. Gong
was Chief Finance Officer of the Company and Secretary of the
Board from 2001 to 2003, a director and Chief Financial Officer of
Henan Ping Gao Electric Co., Ltd.* CAEFaBRRMNERAT])
from 2003 to 2004. He has been Chief Investment Officer of Creat
Tian Cheng Investment Holding Co., Ltd.* (BRI &1L ER
‘A@]) since 2005.
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Mr. Chow Kam Hung (FE#%4), aged 55, is an independent
non-executive Director since 18 January 2011. Mr. Chow
graduated from St. Cloud State University, U.S.A. in May 1986
with a Bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering, and Newport

University, U.S.A. in December 1998 with a Master of Business
Administration degree. Mr. Chow has over 20 years of experience
in both overseas and PRC investments. Mr. Chow was General
Manager of the Hong Kong company of Creat Group, a China
based investment company which has investments in finance,
manufacturing, real estate and resource sectors, from 1996 to
2014. He was also Chief Operation Officer of Creat Resources
Holdings Limited, an Australia based resources investment and
development company, from July 2010 to August 2013.

Mr. Li Tong Ning (Z[E%), aged 56, is an independent non-
executive Director since 27 June 2013. He is a member of
the Communist Party. Mr. Li has around 35 years of working
experience. Mr. Li obtained a college degree in economic
management from Party School of the Shandong Provincial
Committee of C.P.C. in June 2000. Mr. Li worked at Muping
Foreign Trade Bureau from December 1978 to April 1992. He
worked as the manager of Muping Foreign Trade Chemical
Packaging Import and Export Company from April 1992 to April
1994. Mr. Li worked as a deputy general manager of Muping
Foreign Trade Company from April 1994 to June 2005. He is the
chairman of Hailin Trade Co., Ltd. since June 2005.

Supervisors

Mr. Wang Chun Tang (£&%), aged 61, is an independent
representative in the Supervisory Committee of the Company.
Mr. Wang has been a Supervisor since 28 May 2007. Mr. Wang
was an officer of the Communications Bureau of Muping, Yantai,
Shandong Province from May 1973 to December 1987. He studied
Economics and Management in the Communist Party School of
Shandong Province from September 1995 to December 1997
and obtained the graduation certificate issued by the Communist
Party School of Shandong Province on 30 December 1997.
From January 1988 to January 2006, Mr. Wang was Supervisor,
Deputy Chief and Managing Deputy Chief of the Publishing Office
of Muping, Yantai, Shandong Province. From January 2006
to January 2009, Mr. Wang was a member of the Executive
Committee of the Yantai Muping National People’s Congress.
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Mr. Xu Jiang (%%71), aged 61, is the staff representative supervisor
of the Company since 4 February 2013. He has around 40 years
of working experience. He obtained a junior school diploma
from Shandong Muping District Gaoling County Dongtun Village
Chekuang Union Middle School in September 1970. From May
1992 to July 1997, he served as the manager of the project
department of China North Industries Corporation Yangma Resort.
From August 1997 to November 1998, he served as a deputy
general manager of China North Industries Corporation Yangma
North Hotel. From December 1998 to June 2002, he served as a
deputy general manager of Henghua Real Estate Company. From
July 2002 to December 2003, he served as a deputy director of the
general office of the Company. He was the manager of the project
department, the chairman of the labour union of the Company and
the deputy head of office of the Company from January 2004 to
March 2014.

Mr. Zhang Suoping (3RFTF), aged 62, is an independent
representative in the Supervisory Committee of the Company. He
has around 35 years of working experience. He obtained a diploma
from Shandong Rushan Normal School in August 1975. From
November 1970 to August 1973, Mr. Zhang served as a teacher of
Yantai Muping District Shuidao County Qinghushan Village Primary
School. From August 1975 to August 1986, Mr. Zhang served as a
teacher of Muping No.2 Middle School. From June 1987 to March
1990, he served as the head of the business department of Muping
Aquatic Products Company and the manager of the store of
Muping Aquatic Products Company from March 1990 to January
1996. He joined in the Company in May 2005. He was the general
manager of Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. from March 2008 to
December 2013.

Senior Management

Mr. Wang An(E%), aged 52, is Chairman of the Board and an
executive Director. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Zhang Hui (3R#8) , aged 42, is an executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Please refer to his biography
under the sub-section headed “Directors”.

Mr. Wang Yan Hui (E%t##), aged 38, is an executive Director
since 27 June 2012. Please refer to his biography under the sub-
section headed “Directors”.
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Mr. Yang Tao (#5&), aged 44, a college graduate, is a vice
president of the Company. Mr. Yang joined the Company in March
1996 and formerly worked as production line leader, workshop
supervisor and general manager of a subsidiary of the Company.
He previously served as member of the 12th Session of the
CPPCC of Longkou City and has been awarded: Outstanding
Communist Party Member of Yantai City and Outstanding Party
Worker of Longkou New and Hi-Tech Zone. Mr. Yang currently
assists the chief executive officer in supervising the production of
the Group.

Ms. Zhao Jing (&), aged 49, is a vice president of the
Company. Ms. Zhao graduated from Shandong Worker’'s
University of International Business and Economics and obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Foreign Business Management in July 1990.
She worked in the Foreign Trade Investment Center of the Foreign
Economics and Trade Commission of Muping from January 1992
to February 1992; Canadian Naisen (Tianjin) Steel Products Co.,
Ltd. from 1992 to 1997; and in the Company as a vice president
responsible for sales and market promotion from 1997 to August
2003; and Shandong Freda Biopharm Co., Ltd. from September
2003 to December 2010. Ms. Zhao rejoined the Company in
January 2011 and is currently responsible for both domestic and
overseas sales of the Group.

Mr. Qu Kun Sheng (B4 ), aged 46, a university graduate with
a Bachelor’s degree in Agriculture, is a vice president and the chief
engineer of the Company. Mr. Qu joined the Company in 1997 to
engage in manufacturing technologies development, quality control
and on-going supervision of production activities. He was the two-
time winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science Advancement of
Shandong Province (IUEERHL#ENN =F14), the winner of the
1st Class Award of Science Advancement in Yantai City (/& %}
R —548) and the winner of the 3rd Class Award of Science
Advancement in Yantai City (MR&TEHL#E S =5 48) . Currently,
he is responsible for the technology, research and development of
the Group.

Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Man Yee ({h&8015), aged 43, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. Ms. Ng graduated from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong and obtained her Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration in 1994. She is a fellow Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a Chartered Accountant of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales. Ms. Ng has over 20 years of experience in
the field of auditing and accounting.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Continuous efforts are made to
review and enhance the Group’s internal controls and procedures in
light of changes in regulations and developments in best practices.

Corporate Governance Code

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions (“Code Provisions”) set out
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). During the year ended
31 December 2014, the Company has complied with the Code
Provisions of the CG Code, except for the following deviations:

According to Code A.1.8 of the CG Code, the Company should
arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors. The Company is negotiating with the relevant
insurance agents about the liability insurance for the Directors and
will arrange such insurance cover in due course.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as below:

()  To develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i)  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

@iy To review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

(iv)  To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the employees and
directors of the Group; and

(v)  To review the Group’s compliance with the code of corporate
governance and disclosure requirements in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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During the year under review, the Board approved the terms of
reference of the Board, the shareholder communication policy,
shareholder enquiry procedures and special request procedures.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is managed by its Board of Directors, which has the
responsibility for providing leadership and control of the Company.
Through the Board, the Directors are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Directors

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised a total of
seven Directors, including three executive Directors, namely, Mr.
Wang An (Chairman), Mr. Zhang Hui (Chief Executive Officer) and
Mr. Wang Yan Hui; one non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu
Tsung-Yi; and three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Gong Fan, Mr. Chow Kam Hung and Mr. Li Tong Ning.

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years until the conclusion of the
Company’s annual general meeting to be held in the year of 2016.
All Directors are appointed by the shareholders at the shareholders’
meeting with formal letters of appointment setting out the key
terms and conditions relating to their appointments.

None of the Directors or Supervisors had entered into any service
contract with the Company which is not terminable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses a wide
range of skills and experience. They serve the important function
of providing adequate monitoring and balances for safeguarding
the interests of the shareholders and the Company as a whole.
The Board considers that they can make independent judgment
effectively and fulfill the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to
20 of this report.
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Responsibilities of the Board
The Board reviews the performance of the operating divisions
with reference to their respective agreed budgets and business
objectives on a regular basis and also exercises a number of
reserved powers which include:

- convening shareholders’ meetings and reporting on their
work at such meetings;

- implementing resolutions passed at shareholders’ meetings;

- formulating the Company’s business plans and investment
proposals;

- preparing the Company’s annual financial budget and final
accounts;

- formulating proposals for profit distribution and for setting off
of accumulated losses of the Company;

- formulating proposals for increase or reduction in registered
capital and the issuance of debt securities of the Company;

- formulating proposals for merger, demerger, or dissolution of
the Company;

- formulating the internal management structure of the Company;

- appointing or dismissing the chief executive officer of the
Company and appointing or dismissing the deputy general
manager, financial controller and other senior management
at the recommendation of the chief executive officer of the
Company and determination of matters relating to their
remuneration;

- formulating the basic management system of the Company;

- formulating proposals for amendments to the articles of
association; and

- carrying out other powers conferred by shareholders’
meetings.
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The Board is also responsible for the integrity of financial information
and the effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal control
and risk management processes. The Board is also responsible for
preparing the financial accounts of the Company. The day-to-day
management of the Company’s business is delegated to the chief
executive officer and the management. The functions of the Board
and the powers delegated to the chief executive officer are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

As at 31 December 2014, the Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial
statements of the Company on a going-concern basis.

To ensure a balance of power and authority, the role of the chairman
is separate from that of the chief executive officer. The chairman
of the Company is Mr. Wang An. The chairman is responsible for
convening and holding general meetings and Board meetings,
tracking the progress of implementation of the resolutions passed
by the Board, signing the securities issued by the Company and
carrying out other powers conferred by the Board. Mr. Zhang Hui
is the chief executive officer of the Company. The chief executive
officer and the management are responsible for the production,
operation and management of the Company, implementation of
the resolutions passed by the Board, implementation of annual
business plans and investment proposals, formulation of the internal
management structure, the basic management system and the
specific governance of the Company. In particular the chief executive
officer is responsible for proposing to the Board for appointment or
dismissal of deputy general manager, financial controller and other
senior management of the Company, appointment or dismissal of
other management staff whose appointment and dismissal does
not require approval from the Board and carrying out other powers
conferred by the Board and the Articles of Association.

Directors’ Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Upon appointment to the Board, each newly appointed Director
receives a comprehensive induction package covering business
operations, policy and procedures of the Company as well as the
general, statutory and regulatory obligations of being a Director to
ensure that he/she is sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory requirements.

26 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. BAILAFZENRETRHBRAT

EEeNAUVBEMNTEBENARAR
MEPES IR G E R E R EIEEF R MEER
B -BEFENBAGRARRIHHREN
B EFARREKBERREEEKE
TERM BRI R TR EL B IR AR
EEerRr ESTenBeE B TITR
MREHIES - BRI ZBHDAEE -

o

—E-NFF+ZA=+—H EFULTH
BEMATRES AR BRESELLHENE
REXEBNEHXIBERNEFANERNTH
HRE- At EERBEKLEERFH
RABIREAFEIRE

REFRENMEED MIGE - TFEETH
mENAEEERERY - ARFREILE
eEIZRE TFREEAEMIFHBRAN
2 EFE9H REEFERENER
B REQRBITHNESFURATES
ERTHEMBE - RETHARRRE
FE - TRERNEREAEIRARN
TE -REMEBETIF ABERESS
R ABERARFELETEMRE
TR BIIARAMEERBERESR
BETRAMELREIEFELBIEARNE
BRE LETHAHAERRESZSE
ERERE AR BARLIE MR EME
fERERAL  BEXERERERE
EERIAEMRBUINEEAR 1T
RAIERMEFGR THEAMBAE -

EEC ABREREXRE
BUMEREZESNMAEEEHHER
A—prEz ABER  HEREANAF
ZEBLE BEMEFUARERESZ
R EEREEEE URREZEHR
WA E R EMAR R R M ARBAEE B RE T
ZEE-



The Directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates
on the relevant laws, rules and regulations. In addition, the Company
has been encouraging the Directors and senior executives to enrol in
a wide range of professional development courses or and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance or act and
corporate governance practices organised by professional bodies
and independent auditors so that they can continuously update and
further improve their relevant knowledge and skills.

From time to time, Directors are provided with written materials to
develop and refresh their professional skills; the company secretary
also organises and arranges seminars on the latest development
of applicable laws, rules and regulations for the Directors to assist
them in discharging their duties. During the year, the company
secretary, Ms. Ng Man Yee Karen has completed over 15 hours
professional training.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
Directors received the following training with an emphasis on
the roles, functions and duties of a director of a listed company
in compliance with the new requirement of the CG Code on
continuous professional development during the year:
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Board Meetings

The chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board,
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board in all aspects of its role,
setting agenda for board meetings, and taking into account any
matters proposed by other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.
Agenda and related board papers are circulated at least 7 days
before the time of a board or committee meeting where possible.
The chairman is also responsible for making sure all Directors are
properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings. The chairman
also ensures that the Directors receive accurate, timely and
clear information. Directors are encouraged to update their skills,
knowledge and familiarity with the Company through their initial
induction, ongoing participation at board and committee meetings,
and through meeting key people at head office and in the divisions.

All Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
who regularly updates the Board on governance and regulatory
matters. Any Director, who wishes to do so in the furtherance
of his or her duties, may seek independent professional advice
through the chairman at the Company’s expense. The availability
of professional advice extends to the Audit and Review Committee,
Remuneration and Review Committee and other Committees.

Minutes of Board meetings are taken by the company secretary
or the secretary to the Board and, together with any supporting
Board papers, are available to all Board members. Board meetings
are structured to encourage open and frank discussions to
ensure the non-executive Directors provide effective enquiries to
each executive Director. When necessary, the independent non-
executive Directors meet privately to discuss matters which are
relevant to their specific responsibility.

In furtherance of good corporate governance, the Board has
established three committees: Audit and Review Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration and Review Committee.
All committees have its terms of reference which fulffill the principles
set out in the CG Code. The secretary of the Board takes minutes
of the meetings of these committees and the work of these
committees is reported to the Board.
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The Board held five meetings during 2014. The financial controller
also attended all of the Board meetings to advise on corporate
governance, risk management, statutory compliance, mergers and
acquisitions and accounting and financial matters. The attendance
(other than attending by authorised representatives) of individual
Directors at the Board meetings, the meetings of other committees

and the general meetings in 2014 is set out in the table below.

Board Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY)
HEA(R/B/HF)

19/03/2014
29/04/2014
19/05/2014
21/07/2014
26/08/2014

Annual General Meeting

Date (DD/MM/YY)
BEI(B/R/HF)

25/06/2014

Chair person

ES: WA

WA
N/A
WA
N/A
N/A

AN NN

Chair person
& WA

WA v

ZH

SR ANIENIN

ZH

ASRNNIENIN

EFEN-T-MERMTANEE B
BEELET2REFERE  LHOK
Bh BRER  ETER - AGRE -
RANAHELRATR - TRATEE
FR-T MR E (REEREER
BHR)EFE - TEEREEHERBEA
B2

Exges
LTY GF CKH LTN
v v v v
v v v v
v v v v
v v v v
v v v v
BRRBFAE
LTY GF CKH LTN
v v v v

—Z—-MEEHR Annual Report 2014 29



Audit and Review Committee Meeting B EEEER

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

RE(B/B/%) & GF CKH LTN
18/03/2014 GF v v v
26/08/2014 GF v v 4
Nomination Committee Meeting REZEEER

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

BE(B/R/F) & WA GF LTN
15/03/2014 WA v v v
Remuneration and Review Committee Meeting FHREREZEESEE

Date (DD/MM/YY) Chair person

RE(R/B/%) *E GF LTN
12/03/2014 GF v v
Note: e

WA Wang An T

ZH Zhang Hui R

WYH  Wang Yan Hui TeE

LTY  Liu Tsung-Yi 2IRE

GF Gong Fan ER

CKH  Chow Kam Hung Bk

LTN  LiTong Ning E3SE

Symbols: eE

“v"" means attended the meeting VIREZHFEE=E

“—” means not attended the meeting [ REBRFEEE

“N/A” means not applicable [NA] RETERA
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Directors’ Interest

All Directors disclosed to the Board on their first appointment
their interests as a director or otherwise in other companies or
organisations and such declarations of interests are updated
annually. When the Board considers any proposal or transaction in
which a Director has conflict of interest, the Director has to declare
his interest and is required to abstain from voting and withdraw from
the meetings as appropriate. The Company seeks confirmation from
the Directors annually in respect of any transactions of the Company
or its subsidiaries which are related to Directors or their associates.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (the “Securities Code”) pursuant to Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the Securities Code is sent to
each Director upon his appointment and thereafter twice annually,
that is one month before the date of the Board meetings to approve
the Company’s interim results and two months before the date
of the Board meetings to approve the Company’s annual results,
with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the securities and
derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings and the requirements in the Securities Code during 2014.

Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company are also
subject to compliance with the Securities Code. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company in 2014.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee of the Company comprises three
members of which two are recommended by shareholders and
one is an employee representative elected by the employees.
The Supervisory Committee is responsible for supervision of the
Board, members of the Board and senior management, to prevent
authority abuse, shareholders’ interest infringement and to protect
legal interest of the Company and its employees. During 2014,
the Supervisory Committee held one meeting, during which the
committee members reviewed the Company’s financial position,
legal compliance of the Company’s operations and diligence of the
senior management.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Internal control system

The Board has the overall responsibility for setting and reviewing
the Company’s internal control system. The Audit and Review
Committee will also review the effectiveness of such system
periodically. Procedures applied by the Audit and Review
Committee for reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control system include: discussing with the management
on the risky areas arising from auditing and/or raised by the
management, reviewing the internal and external audit plan of the
Company, reviewing material issues arising from internal or external
audit report and reviewing material matters identified by internal
auditors and risk assessment manager of the Group. The internal
control system of the Company plays an important role in risk
management which is a key factor for ensuring the achievement
of operational goal. The establishment of internal control system
is for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition;
for maintaining proper accounting records; and for the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for publication.
However, the procedures provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material errors, losses or fraud. Procedures
for the Company’s internal control system have been designed in
accordance with the applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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A review of the Company’s internal control system covering financial,
operational, compliance and risk management is conducted annually.
In particular, the Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes and budget.
The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s
system of internal control. The result has been reported to the Board.

The Board confirms that systems and procedures are in place to
identify, control and report on significant risks involved in achieving
the Company’s strategic objectives. Exposures to these risks are
monitored by the Board with the support of various committees
and senior management. For the year under review, the Board
considered that the Company’s internal control system was
adequate and the Company had complied with the code provisions
on internal control under the CG Code.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Internal Audit Department provides an independent review
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system.
The department is headed by a manager who is familiar with the
Company’s operation. Its scope of work mainly includes auditing of
financial and operational systems, observance of relevant policies
and regulations, regular and special auditing, auditing of production
effectiveness, etc. The audit plan, which is prepared based on risk
assessment methodology, is discussed and agreed every year by
the Audit and Review Committee. In addition to its agreed annual
schedule of work, the Internal Audit Department conducts other
special reviews as required.

The primary reporting line of the Internal Audit Department is to the
chairman of the Board but there is also direct access to the Audit
and Review Committee. Internal audit reports are sent to the chief
executive officer, the financial controller, external auditors and the
relevant management of the departments under audit. A summary
of major audit findings is reported to the Audit and Review
Committee. The Board and the Audit and Review Committee
actively monitor the number and seriousness of findings raised by
the Internal Audit Department and also the corrective actions taken
by relevant departments.
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Detailed control guidelines have been set and made available to all
employees of the Company regarding handling and dissemination
of corporate data which is price sensitive.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is concerned with the identification and effective
management of business risks, including safety and security, legal,
environmental and reputational risks.

Risk Management Committee

The Company has established a Risk Management Committee
which coordinates the proper application of operational risk
management procedures throughout the Company. The
Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the
Company and its subsidiaries in, among others, the following
areas:

- establishment of the risk approach and risk management
strategy of the Company to formulate its risk profile;

- identification, assessment and management of the material
risks faced by the various business units of the Company;

- reviewing and assessment of the adequacy of the
Company’s risk management process, system and internal
control; and

- reviewing and monitoring the Company’s risk management
process, system and internal control, including whether the
development of the Company’s business is prudent and in
compliance with the legal requirements.

The terms of reference of the Committee do not include financial
risk management and the coordination of the Company’s policy
on environmental issues. The Committee is chaired by the financial
controller of the Company and includes senior representatives from
each division as well as the human resources manager and the
head of Internal Audit Department. The Committee reports to the
Audit and Review Committee on a regular basis.
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AUDIT AND REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Audit and Review Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Group’s financial reporting, internal controls and corporate
governance issues and making relevant recommendations to the
Board. All of its members are independent non-executive Directors
(namely Mr. Gong Fan, Mr. Chow Kam Hung and Mr. Li Tong Ning)
and its current chairman is Mr. Gong Fan.

The terms of reference of the Audit and Review Committee are
based on the guidelines recommended by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit and Review Committee met twice in 2014. During
2014, it met to review the internal and external audit findings,
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
internal control and listing rules and statutory compliance, and to
discuss auditing, internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting matters. The interim and annual accounts for 2014 were
recommended to the Board for approval after discussion of the
Audit and Review Committee.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

In 2014, the total remuneration paid to the external auditors
amounted to approximately RMB1,480,000, which was all for the
audit services provided by the external auditors. The audit fee and
other service fees have been approved by the Audit and Review
Committee and endorsed by the Board.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out on pages 65 to 66 of this annual report.

The Audit and Review Committee has resolved the re-appointment
of KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership) for the audit work
of the Company for the financial year 2015. This resolution has
been endorsed by the Board and is subject to final approval and
authorisation by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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REMUNERATION AND REVIEW COMMITTEE

The Remuneration and Review Committee comprises Mr. Gong
Fan and Mr. Li Tong Ning as members with Mr. Gong Fan as
the chairperson. Both of them are independent non-executive
Directors. The Committee’s responsibilities are as follows:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policy;

- to be responsible for determining the specific remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments (including any compensations
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment),
and to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors;

- to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the corporate goals and
objectives made by the Board;

- to review and approve compensation payable to executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise reasonable and not
excessive;

- to review and approve compensation arrangements relating
to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure
that they are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

- to ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration; and
- to review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of the directors and senior
management personnel.
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Factors to be considered by the Remuneration and Review
Committee for formulation of remuneration package including the
remuneration paid by other similar companies, time devoted by
a director, director’s responsibilities, employment terms of other
positions in the Group, director’s performance, etc.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Review
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The Remuneration and Review Committee met once in 2014
to review and approve the Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration for 2014. At that meeting, the Committee approved
the individual remuneration packages for Directors and senior
management to be paid for 2014.

Remuneration Policy for Directors

Remuneration of Directors is subject to annual assessment and
recommendation by the Remuneration and Review Committee
to the Board for further review and approval, which subsequently
requires approval by the shareholders at annual general meeting.
The primary goal of the remuneration policy on remuneration
packages is to enable the Company to retain and motivate
executive Directors by linking their compensation with performance
as measured against corporate objectives. Under the policy, a
Director is not allowed to approve his own remuneration.

The elements of the Company’s executive remuneration
package include basic compensation (comprising of director
fee) and discretionary bonus without capping. In determining
guidelines for each compensating element, the Company refers
to remuneration surveys conducted by independent external
consultants on companies operating in similar businesses.

According to Code B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the members of the senior management whose particulars are
contained in the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for 2014 by band is set out
below:

Remuneration band (RMB)
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Basic Compensation

The Remuneration and Review Committee annually reviews and
approves the basic compensation of each Director in accordance
with the Company’s remuneration policy. In accordance with
the service contracts entered into by the Company and each of
the Directors, all Directors have the right to receive fixed basic
compensation.

Discretionary Bonus

Under the service contracts between the Company and each of the
Directors, the Directors are entitled to a discretionary bonus based
on the Company’s results and the degree of responsibilities of each
of the Directors. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the
Directors did not receive any discretionary bonus.

The amounts paid to each Director of the Company for 2013 and
2014 are disclosed in Note V.37 to the Financial Statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mr. Wang An, an
executive Director, and comprises Mr. Gong Fan and Mr. Li Tong
Ning, both independent non-executive Directors, as members. The
role of the Committee is to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors, evaluation of Board composition
and the management of Board succession with reference to
certain guidelines as endorsed by the Nomination Committee.
These guidelines include appropriate professional knowledge and
industry experience, personal ethnics, integrity and personal skills,
and time commitments of members. The Nomination Committee
carries out the process of selecting and recommending candidates
for directorship including the consideration of referrals and
engagement of external recruitment professional when necessary.
The Nomination Committee met once in 2014 to discuss the Board
structure, size and composition and to evaluate the independence
status of the independent non-executive Directors.
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As at the date of this report, the Company has adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out its
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the Board. The
Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Below is
the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

Selection of candidates for directorship will be based on a
wide range of factors, including but not limited to, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and service term. The Nomination Committee
will review the diversity of the Board and report to the Board
the composition of the Board members and monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee considers that the current Board
composition has provided the Company with a good balance
and diversity of skill and experience appropriate for the business
of the Company. The Nomination Committee will review the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure its effectiveness on determining the optimal composition of
the Board.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee which
were revised on 19 March 2014 to adopt the Board Diversity Policy
have been posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to fair disclosure and comprehensive,
transparent reporting. The chairman of the Company is ultimately
responsible for ensuring that there is effective communication with
investors and that the Board understands the views of the major
shareholders. The chairman therefore makes himself available
to meet with the shareholders for this purpose. On a day-to-day
basis, the Board’s primary contact with the major shareholders is
through the chief executive officer and financial controller of the
Company.
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To enhance the Company’s system of information disclosure,
and to ensure the accuracy, completeness and timeliness of the
Company’s public disclosures, an Information Disclosure Review
Committee, led by the financial controller was established. The
Information Disclosure Review Committee is responsible for
the establishment of procedures to compile, verify and report
the Company’s financial and operational statistics and other
information as well as to supervise the drafting and publication of
periodic reports.

Printed copies of the interim and annual reports are sent to all
shareholders. The most recent annual general meeting was held
on 25 June 2014 at 2nd Floor, No. 18 Andre Avenue, Muping
Economic Development Zone, Yantai City, Shandong Province,
the PRC. The meeting was open to all shareholders and members
of the press and was attended by all substantial shareholders
personally present or by proxy.

As part of a regular programme of investor relations, senior
management holds briefings and attends conferences with
institutional investors and financial analysts to engage in a two-way
communication on the Company’s performance and objectives.
A wide range of information on the Group’s business activities is
made available to investors and the public through the corporate
website and the website of the Stock Exchange. Webcasts of
the meetings announcing the interim and annual results are also
available on the corporate website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

In 2014, the Company held 11 meetings and conference calls
with analysts and investors at its Yantai and Hong Kong offices.
These activities allowed them to have good opportunities to directly
communicate with and understand the senior management,
operating management and general staff of the Company, as well
as to visit different places of business of the Group.

Enquiries to the Board may be made by contacting the company
secretary through the shareholders’ hotline or email, or directly by
questions at an annual general meeting or special Shareholders’
meeting of the Company. Questions on the procedures for
convening of or putting forward proposals at an annual general
meeting or a special shareholders’ meeting of the Company may
also be made to the Company by the same means.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a Special General
Meeting (“SGM”)

Shareholders requesting the convening of a SGM shall proceed in
accordance with the procedures set forth below:

The shareholders individually or jointly holding over 10% of the
Company’s shares with the voting power at the proposed meeting
have the right to request the Board to hold the SGM or a class
meeting in writing. According to laws, administrative regulations
and the articles of association of the Company, the Board shall give
written feedback to agree or disagree to hold the SGM within 10
days after receiving the proposal.

If the Board agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting notice shall be
given within 5 days after the Board makes such a resolution.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved by
relevant shareholders.

If the Board disagrees to hold the SGM or fails to give feedback
within 10 days after receiving the request, the shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
have the right to request the board of Supervisors to hold the SGM
in writing.

If the board of Supervisors agrees to hold the SGM, a meeting
notice shall be given within 5 days after receiving the request.
Changes to the original proposal in the notice shall be approved by
relevant shareholders.

If the board of Supervisors fails to give the notice of the SGM
within the specified period, it shall be deemed that the board of
Supervisors does not convene or preside over the shareholders’
meeting. Exceeding 90 continuous days, the shareholders
individually or jointly holding over 10% of the Company’s shares
may hold the SGM by themselves.

Necessary expenses of the shareholders’ meeting held by the
board of Supervisors or shareholders by themselves shall be born
by the Company.

TR o

B &
BRRBEBERRRAZ (HRIERRAE])
ZERF

7§IJ$%E§¥JJ¥£¥ :

EBUEAIBERRNEZRETNEE
EBRREN10% A LR BORBCR A (R
EEFRAMBRRRAGHARBER
g YEENEEAVARNEEGRL -8
EERERBER  THERNAZEREN
BE - ERBIBREI0BARBRERT
RAEAFRERRBRAGHNENQESSR -

NEZEREAHRBRRRAS  BEE

ERESERZERN 6 BRNEHARREAKR

ﬁE’JL%ﬂ BHRHRBROEE - EE
ESHEERRNAE -

ExglTREARBERERS - @2%&
WRBRBI0BARAEHEERIER -
BREAHRHAR 710%J/AJ:HXT§?E’\]HX$
ERMEEERAGABRREKRERERE - I
EEULEEFARESSREER -

WNEFSRECREGRERAS  BEK
Bk ANELARBIRASMNEN B
HMPHRIBERNEE - EELSHBRRE
BRI °

EESREREHMBRABLRRAS B
B RREEe T TEENERBRRAS
BEO AN LEBREATARF10%
A ERD BOBER AT A B 1T B SR M4 o

EFedRRETAENERAE - €5
PRBREMBRARRAAE -

—Z—EEH Annual Report 2014 41




Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at a
general meeting

When the Company holds the shareholders’ meeting, the Board,
the board of Supervisors and the shareholders individually or jointly
holding over 3% of the shares of the Company have the right to
submit proposals to the Company. Shareholders individually or
jointly holding over 3% of the shares of the Company may put
forward interim proposal and submit to the convener in writing 10
days before the SGM.

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

As regards the procedures for proposing a person for election
as a Director, please refer to the procedures posted on 2 April
2012 under the Investor Relation section of Company’s website at
www.andre.com.cn.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the company secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Room 1505, Wheelock House,

20 Pedder Street, Central, Hong Kong.
Fax: (852) 2587 9166

Email: andrehk@biznetvigator.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

At the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company, amendments
to the Articles of Association of the Company were approved
by the shareholders of the Company, to reflect the change of
domestic shareholders. An updated version of the Articles of
Association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors are pleased to present and submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2014.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and sale
of apple juice concentrate, pear juice concentrate, feedstuff
and related products. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in Note VII.1 to the Financial Statements.

Subsidiaries and Joint Venture

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company and its interest in
joint venture as at 31 December 2014 are set out in Notes VII.1
and VII.2 to the Financial Statements respectively.

Results

The results and financial status of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2014 are set out in pages 67 to 228 of this annual
report.

Five-Year Financial Highlights

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 4 to 5 of
this annual report.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the reporting period, the Group mainly exported products to
the US market, Japanese market and European market, and was
expanding its market to other countries. The sales attributable to
the top five customers of the Group accounted for about 39.01%
of the Group’s total turnover and sales to the largest customer
included therein amounted to about 13.22%.
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Purchases from the Group’s top five largest suppliers accounted
for about 23.42% of total purchases for the year. The largest
supplier accounted for about 17.39% of the total purchases of the
Group for the year.

None of the Directors, Supervisors, their respective associates or
any shareholders which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the top five largest suppliers or customers of the Group.

Dividends

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
approximately RMB19,630,000 (inclusive of tax), or RMBO0.05 per
share for 2014. This proposed dividend will be distributed first
from the balance of the profit of the Group for distribution to the
shareholders of the Company generated in or before 2007. Any
insufficiency will be distributed from the profit for distribution to
the shareholders of the Company generated in or after 2008. The
proposal to declare and pay this final dividend will be submitted to
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to be held on 26 May 2015. Final dividend for Domestic
Shares will be distributed and paid in Renminbi whereas dividend
for H Shares will be declared in Renminbi and paid in Hong Kong
dollars. The final dividend will be paid to those shareholders whose
names appear on the Companys’ register of members at the close
of business on 10 June 2015 (the “Record Date”). To determine
the identity of the shareholders entitled to receive the final dividend,
the register of holders of H Shares of the Company will be closed
from 5 June 2015 to 10 June 2015 (both days inclusive) during
which no transfer of H Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for entitement to the proposed final dividend, all transfers of H
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s H Share Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited at 22/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2015. The final dividend is expected to be
distributed on 23 July 2015.
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Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and its
implementing regulations (collectively referred to as the “Corporate
Income Tax Law”) which took effect on 1 January 2008, the tax rate
of the corporate income tax applicable to the income of non-resident
enterprise deriving from PRC is 10%. Pursuant to the Corporate
Income Tax Law, any Chinese domestic enterprise (including
our Company) which pays dividend to a non-resident enterprise
shareholder shall withhold corporate income tax at 10% for and pay
by the Company on behalf of such shareholder. At the same time,
pursuant to the provisions of the Preferential Policy on Profit Earned by
Foreign Investors from Foreign Investment Enterprises in the Circular
of the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation
Concerning Several Preferential Policies Relevant to Corporate Income
Tax, any profit accumulated and not yet distributed before 1 January
2008 by foreign investment enterprise when distributed to non-
resident enterprise in or after 2008, will be exempted from corporate
income tax. Any dividend distributed to non-resident enterprises from
profit accumulated since 2008 will be subject to corporate income tax.

Pursuant to the Notice on Issues Concerning Individual Income Tax
Collection and Management after the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993]
No. 45 (No. 348, Guo Shui Han [2011]), where the non-resident
individual shareholders obtain dividend and bonuses from domestic
non-foreign-invested enterprise which issued shares in Hong Kong,
individual income tax shall be withheld by the withholding agent
according to the domain of “interest, dividends and bonuses”.
The non-resident individual shareholders of domestic non-foreign-
invested enterprise which issued shares in Hong Kong, shall enjoy
the taxation preferences in accordance with the agreements
between countries of their origins and China and the regulation
on taxation arrangement between the Mainland and Hong Kong
(Macau). The related tax rate of dividend as provided by taxation
agreement is generally at a rate of 10%. In order to simplify the
collection and management of taxation, the individual income
tax with a rate of 10% in general will be withheld when dividend
is paid by the domestic non-foreign-invested enterprise which
issued shares in Hong Kong without making applications. Where
the dividend tax rate is not 10%, it will be handled according to
the following requirements: (1) for residents of countries which
have entered into an agreement with China in respect of a tax rate
lower than 10%, the withholding agent may apply for the relevant
entitements hereunder on their behalf. Upon examination and
approval by the competent tax authorities, the additional amount
of tax withheld will be refunded; (2) for residents of countries
which have entered into an agreement with China in respect of a
tax rate of 10% or more but less than 20%, the withholding agent
shall withhold individual income tax at the agreed tax rate when
distributing dividends or bonuses, and no application for approval
is needed; (3) for residents of a country or which has not entered
into any tax treaties with the PRC and in any other circumstances,
the withholding agent shall withhold individual income tax at the tax
rate of 20% when distributing dividends and bonuses.
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Pursuant to the Notice of Withholding and Payment of Enterprise
Income Tax Regarding China Resident Enterprise Paying Dividend
to Non-Resident Enterprise Holders of Overseas H-Share (No.
897, Guo Shui Han[2008]) issued by the State Administration of
Taxation, any domestic enterprise of PRC which pays dividends to
non-resident enterprise shareholders (as defined in the Tax Law)
for the year of 2008 and subsequent years shall withhold and pay
enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 10%.

For this purpose, any H Shares registered under the name of
non-natural persons in the H Share register of members of
the Company on 4 June 2015 (Thursday), including HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees or other groups
and organizations, will be treated as non-resident enterprise
shareholders.

The Company anticipates that all the proposed dividend will
be distributed from the balance of the profit of the Group for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company generated in or
before 2007. Pursuant to the preferential policy of the Corporate
Income Tax Law, the Company currently proposes not to withhold
10% corporate income tax and to distribute the final dividend
to such non-resident enterprise shareholders at gross amount
before corporate income tax. This arrangement is conditional
upon obtaining the final approval from the relevant tax authority.
If the Company cannot obtain final approval from the relevant tax
authorities regarding the exemption of corporate income tax for
non-resident enterprise shareholders as mentioned above, the
Company will distribute the final dividend to such non-resident
enterprise shareholders after withholding corporate income tax of
10% as required by the Corporate Income Tax Law. For individual
shareholders who hold the Company’s H shares and whose names
appear on the register of members of H shares of the Company
(the “Individual H Shareholders”) shall pay individual income tax at a
tax rate of 10% upon their receipt of distribution of dividends from
the Company, which shall be withheld and paid by the Company
on behalf of the Individual H Shareholders.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their taxation advisors
for advice on the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax effects with
respect to the holding and disposing of H shares of the Company.

The Company will have no liability in respect of any claims arising
from any delay in, or inaccurate determination of the status of the
shareholders or any disputes over the mechanism of withholding.
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Share Capital

The change(s) in share capital of the Company is set out in Note
V.23 to the Financial Statements.

Reserves

The change(s) in reserves of the Company in the year is set out
in the statements of changes in equity of the Group and the
Company in the Financial Statements.

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2014 amounted to approximately RMB371,972,000 (2013:
approximately RMB382,372,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group incurred approximately RMB8,231,000,
mainly for the construction of new production line and acquiring
plant and equipment.

The change(s) of property, plant and equipment of the Group is set
out in Note V.10 to the Financial Statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the Company Law of the PRC
which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
1o existing shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the year 2014, the Company repurchased a total of
16,388,000 shares of its H shares of par value of HK$1.00 each on
the Stock Exchange at prices ranging from HK$1.90 to HK$3.16
per H share, for a total consideration of HK$42,806,005.
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Directors believe that through repurchase of shares, earnings per
share and asset value per share will increase, which in turn will
improve the Company’s capital structure and shareholders’ equity.
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Repurchased Price Price
ElfER 8 E ] REEMEE
(HKD) (HKD)
(%) (B7)
June 2014 4,402,000 2.31 1.90
July 2014 11,986,000 3.16 2.32

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31 December
2014.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire
Shares or Debentures

None of the Directors or Supervisors of the Company or their
respective associates was granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries any right to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any such
right as at 31 December 2014.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals During the
Year

On 29 April 2014, the Company and Yantai Anlin Fruit Co., Ltd.
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which the
Company conditionally agreed to acquire and Yantai Anlin Fruit
Co., Ltd. conditionally agreed to sell the entire equity interest in
Anyue Andre at a consideration of RMB52,120,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$65,150,000). Since the completion on 15 May
2014, Anyue Andre became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, no material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies have been made by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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Significant Investments

No significant investment was held by the Group as at 31
December 2014,

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 995
employees (2013: 1,003 employees). Staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2013 were approximately RMB40,305,000
and approximately RMB37,796,000 respectively. Details of the
emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors and the top five
highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Notes V.37
and 38 to the Financial Statements. The Group’s employment and
remuneration policies remained unchanged from those described
in the prospectus of the Company dated 11 April 2003. The
salaries and benefits of employees of the Group are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system which is reviewed annually. A wide range of
benefits, including statutory compulsory welfare plans, are also
provided to the employees.

Retirement Fund Scheme

The retirement fund scheme is set out in note V.18 to the Financial
Statements.

Directors and Supervisors

During the year 2014 and up to the date of this report, the
Directors and Supervisors of the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors: Wang An, Zhang Hui and Wang Yan Hui

Non-executive Liu Tsung-Yi
Director:

Independent Gong Fan, Chow Kam Hung and Li Tong Ning
non-executive
Directors:

Supervisors: Wang Chun Tang, Zhang Suoping and Xu

Jiang
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Independence of Independent non-executive
Directors

The Company confirms that the Company has received written
independence status confirmation from all independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Al
independent non-executive Directors are considered as independent.

Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management

There was no material change to the directors, supervisors and
senior management of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014,

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the reporting period.

Continuing Connected Transactions

I On 17 September 2012, the Company entered into a
framework agreement with Andre Pectin for the sale of
pomace to Andre Pectin and determined the annual caps for
the sale of pomace for the three years ended 31 December
2015. The framework agreement took effect on 1 January
2013 and shall expire on 31 December 2015.

As of the date of signing the above framework agreement,
Andre Pectin was an associate of Andre Group, which was
a substantial shareholder of the Company and controlled
37.90% interest in Andre Pectin as of the date of signing the
agreement. Andre Pectin was also an associate of Mr. Wang
An, who was a Director and indirectly controlled 37.90%
interest in Andre Pectin through his 90% interest in Andre
Group. Therefore, Andre Pectin was a connected person of
the Company. The sale of pomace by the Company to Andre
Pectin as contemplated under the framework agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under the
Listing Rules. As each of the applicable percentage ratios
was more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions
under the framework agreement were only subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
applicable disclosure requirements in accordance with the
Listing Rules.
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Under the framework agreement, the pomace products shall
be sold to Andre Pectin in accordance with the following
pricing principles (and in the following order):

- price prescribed by the PRC government; or

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government; or

- where there is neither government-prescribed price nor
government guidance price, a price determined through
tender process or other available market price; or

- where none of the above is applicable or available, a
price to be agreed between the parties. The agreed
price shall be calculated based on the reasonable
costs incurred in providing the pomace products plus
reasonable profits. In setting the price, the parties may
refer to the prices for previous relevant transactions, if
available.

The annual transaction cap was determined based on
the historical amounts of pomace sold by the Group to
Andre Pectin, estimated potential growth of the Group, the
expected economic growth of the PRC, demand by Andre
Pectin and the pomace price will increase. The cap for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB25,000,000. The
actual sale of pomace by the Group to Andre Pectin for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB22,032,869 and is
subject to annual review requirement under the Listing Rules.

On 30 March 2012, the Company entered into a product
purchase framework agreement with President, whereby
President agrees to purchase and the Company agrees to
supply the Company’s products (including but not limited
to different kinds of juice) to regulate the product purchase
between the Group and President for the three financial years
ending 31 December 2014.

* For identification purpose only
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As at the date of signing the agreement, President holds
14.94% of the total issued share capital of the Company.
Under the Listing Rules, President is a substantial
shareholder of the Company and thus is a connected person
of the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the product purchase framework agreement between
the Group and President constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. As an applicable percentage
ratio in respect of the annual caps under the product
purchase framework agreement (other than the profit
ratio) exceeds 5% and the respective annual caps exceed
HK$10,000,000, the transactions contemplated under
the product purchase framework agreement constitute
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under
Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules and are subject to the
requirements of reporting, announcement, independent
Shareholders’ approval and annual review under the Listing
Rules.

Under the product purchase framework agreement, prices of
products to be supplied by the Company shall be determined
according to the following principles in orders:

the price prescribed by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is neither government-prescribed price nor
government guidance price, the market price (including
tender price); and

- where any of the above prices is unavailable or
inapplicable, the agreed price between the parties.

As President has developed new products and the sales of
such products are very promising, the demand by President
on the Company’s products (including but not limited to pear
juice) will substantially increase. Therefore, on 17 September
2012, the Company entered into a supplementary
agreement with President to revise the 2012, 2013 and 2014
annual caps to RMB100,000,000, RMB200,000,000 and
RMB270,000,000.
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The actual sale of product by the Group to President for the
year ended 31 December 2014 was RMB75,759,074 and is
subject to annual review requirement under the Listing Rules.

On 26 August 2013, the Company has entered into a
construction and installation services framework agreement
with Yantai Xinping Jianan Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Xinping
Company”), pursuant to which Xinping Company has
agreed to provide services for installation for various kinds
of constructions and indoor and outdoor decoration to the
Group for the three financial years ending 31 December
2015.

As at the date of signing the agreement, Xinping Company is
wholly owned by Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, the wife of Mr. Wang
An who is an executive Director and a substantial shareholder
of the Company. Under the Listing Rules, Xinping Company
is an associate of Mr. Wang An and thus is a connected
person of the Company. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the framework agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Since
the applicable percentage ratios for the highest proposed
annual cap for each of the three years ending 31 December
2015 for the continuing connected transactions under
the framework agreement are more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, in accordance with Rule 14A.34 of the Listing
Rules, the continuing connected transactions under the
framework agreement are only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Rules14A.45 to 14A.47
of the Listing Rules and are exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement.

Under the framework agreement, prices of services to be
provided by Xinping Company shall be determined according
to the following principles in orders:

- the price prescribed by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is no government-prescribed price, the
guidance price set by the PRC government (if any);

- where there is neither government-prescribed price nor
government guidance price, the market price (including
tender price); and

- where any of the above prices is unavailable or
inapplicable, the agreed price.
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As the Group intends to establish and upgrade the
production lines for pear juice concentrate and various juice
concentrates, and also to construct new buildings for the
future business development of the Group, the needs for
services for installation for various kinds of constructions and
indoor and outdoor decoration will substantially increase.
Therefore, the Board expects the annual caps under
the framework agreement for each of the three financial
years ending 31 December 2015 will be RMB10,000,000,
RMB10,000,000 and RMB10,000,000, respectively.

The actual consumption of service by the Group from Xinping
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
RMB3,644 and is subject to annual review requirement under
the Listing Rules.

All the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
continuing connected transactions had been conducted on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than those
available to independent third parties under the prevailing local
market conditions and were entered into the Group’s ordinary and
usual course of business, and were fair and reasonable and in the
best interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
have confirmed in a letter to the Board to the following effect with
respect to the continuing connected transactions of the Company
that such transactions:

(i) have received approval from the Board;
(i) were conducted in accordance to the pricing policy;

(i) have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transactions; and

(iv) have not exceeded the cap amount for the financial
year ended 31 December 2014 disclosed in the relevant
announcement.
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Related Party Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group entered
into transactions with related parties as set out in Note VI to the
Financial Statements. Some of these related party transactions
constituting connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have complied
with the disclosure requirements thereon.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or the
Supervisors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company was a party in 2014.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the
Company

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were (a) required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); and (b) required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard of dealings by the directors of
the Company as referred to in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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Name of Class of Number of
Directors Shares shares held Capacity
Bspg R AR FrsRH#A &t
Wang An Domestic 121,010,501 (L) Interest of controlled
(Note 1) Shares corporations (Note 2)
Iz mER 121010501 (R) ~ R#EHAERER (Ft2)
(1)
H Shares 1,708,500 (L) Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 3)
Hik 1708500(%)  ReEmlEEER (M3E3)
Liu Tsung-Yi H Shares 195,400 (L) Beneficial owner
ARE HiR 195,400(K) ERAEAA
Notes:

The letter “L” denotes a long position.

1)

As at 31 December 2014, Mr. Wang An, a Director, controlled (a)
90% interest in China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited, which
held 46,351,961 Domestic Shares and 1,708,500 H Shares,
representing 11.81% and 0.44% interests in the total issued share
capital of the Company, respectively; (b) 90% interest in Shandong
Andre Group Co., Ltd.*(IUERZEFEEAERAR), which held
74,658,540 Domestic Shares, representing 19.02% interest in the
total issued share capital of the Company.

Mr. Wang An was deemed to be interested in these Domestic
Shares through his interests in China Pingan Investment Holdings
Limited and Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* (IIER Z /= F| £ @ AR
NCIDS

The long position in 1,708,500 H Shares was held by China Pingan
Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Wang An was deemed to be
interested in these H Shares through his 90% interest in China
Pingan Investment Holdings Limited.

* For identification purpose only
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Interest HEnER/ HiEaRA
BRES HRESD L Bt
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fAA
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Personal 0.14% V(&) 0.05% (L) (£)
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the

Company

As at 31 December 2014, so far as the Directors are aware, the
following persons (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief
executive of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
were discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to

section 336 of the SFO:

Name of
shareholders Class of shares
RREE 3R
China Pingan Investment Domestic
Holdings Limited Shares
H Shares
HiR
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.* Domestic
(LRZENEERRAR) Shares
AR
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. Domestic
Shares
NER

* For identification purpose only

Number of
shares held

s RHEE

46,351,961 (1)
(Note 1)
46,351,961 (K )
(MfE1)

1,708,500 (L)
1,708,500 (&)

74,658 540 (L)
(Note 2)
74,658,540 (K)
(Hi2)

65,779,459 (1)
(Note 3)
65,779,459 (F)
(E%)

Capacity
af

Beneficial owner

BRBAA

Beneficial owner

BEAAA

Beneficial owner

BRBAA

Beneficial owner

BRAA

FERRRAEMALIRELFR
7 - EBEFRARARESPOHERR
29

BEEFA R-E-WET-A=+—
A BAATES  EFRTREHIN
EARTZ B « EARG RERETHE
BARB(ES RIS EG)ETEEE2 R
3BT MEMARE - RERAAATIR
GRS REE ED)EIB6 BT BETEY
MR M Rk R 2 RE R AL
T

Approximate Approximate

percentage of percentage of

Domestic Shares/ total share

Type of H Shares capital

Interest HEmER/ iR

BRES HRED Bk

Corporate 18.50% (L) (£ 1.81% (1) (&)
AR

Corporate 1.20% U (R) 0.44% (1) (&)
An|

Corporate 29.80% () (k) 19.02% (U (&)
NG

Corporate 26.26% () (&) 16.75% (U (&)
AT
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Name of Number of
shareholders Class of shares shares held Capacity
RR#E% R85 R # A af
Uni-President Enterprises Corp. Domestic 63,746,040 (1) Interests of
GERHBRAF Shares (Note 4) controlled
NEBR  63746,040(F) corporations
(PizE4) (Note 5)
R AR
(Fit3t5)
H Shares 237,000()  Beneficial owner
HiR 237,000(F) (Note 6)
ERHEAA
(Firste)
Norges Bank H Shares 12,390,500 (L)  Beneficial owner
HR  12,.390,500(%) ERREA
Mitsui & Co., Ltd. H Shares 21,340,000 ()  Beneficial owner
SHYERA g HIR (Note 7) ERHAA
21,340,000 (k)
(Wsx7)
Citigroup Inc. H Shares 11,603,500 (L) Custodian
HEE  11,603,500(FK) corporation/
approved
11,603,500 (P) lending agent
ERtE/
11,603000(f8)  HEEHARA
HSBC Global Asset Management H Shares 7,808,500 (L) Investment
(Hong Kong) Limited (Formerly HE  7,808,500(%) manager
known as HSBC Investments REmE
(Hong Kong) Limited)
HSBC Global Asset Management
(Hong Kong) Limited (&85
HSBC Investments
(Hong Kong) Limited)
* For identification purpose only
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Type of
Interest

REEE

Corporate
A

Corporate
A7)

Corporate
AT

Corporate
A

Corporate
AT

Corporate
A

©ERES

Approximate
percentage of
Domestic Shares/
H Shares
BiEnER/
HREZ

25.44% () (&)

017% U (R)

8.72% (L) (&)

15.02% (1) (&)

8.17% (L) (&)

8.17% (P) ()

5.50% (L) (&)

Approximate
percentage of
total share
capital
HisBRA
BAl

16.23% (L) (&)

0.06% (L) (%)

3.16% () (&)

544% ()(K)

2.96% () (&)

2.96% (P)(f&)

1.99% () ()



Approximate Approximate
percentage of percentage of
Domestic Shares/ total share

Name of Number of Type of H Shares capital

shareholders Class of shares shares held Capacity Interest HiEnER/ NERRE

RRES i385l FrisRpEE &t ERER HRESDH At

Hongan International Investment ~ Domestic Shares 65,779,459 (L) Interest of Corporate 26.26% () (&) 16.75% (L) (&)

Co. Ltd. NEE 65779459 (R) controlled A7
IREBRERRAT corporations
R AR
H Shares 34,771380()  Beneficial owner Corporate 24.48% (L) (R) 8.86% () (&)
HiE  84771,380(K) ERHAA A
Zhang Shaoxia Domestic Shares 121,010,501 (L) Interest of spouse Personal 48.30% (L) (K) 30.82% (L) (K)
REBE WER 121,010,501 (R) (Note 8) fHA
iEER
(Mzke)
H Shares 1,708,500 (L) Interest of spouse Personal 1.20% () (&) 0.44% () (&)
HR  1,708500(K) (Note 9) fmA
iBER
(FzE9)
Wang Meng Domestic Shares 65,779,459 (1) Interest of Personal 26.26% ()(K) 16.75% (L) (&)
T NBR 65779459 (R) controlled fEA
corporations
(Note 10)
R AR
(M3 10)
HShares 34,771,380 (1) Interest of Personal 24.48% (L) () 8.86% () (&)
HR  34,771,380(R) controlled fBA
corporations
(Note 11)
ReEH AR
(FitzE11)

Notes: PR -

The letter “L” denotes a long position. The letter “P” denotes interests in a [RIFRRE : [ ] FORAHE LR

lending pool.

(1) Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these (1) ARRNESEEZ - FFEBHER China
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in China Pingan Pingan  Investment Holdings Limited
Investment Holdings Limited. %90% s MR IR UL B

3¢ o
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Mr. Wang An, a Director, was deemed to be interested in these
Domestic Shares through his 90% interest in Shandong Andre Group
Co., Ltd.* (IR ZEAEEGRAF).

The long position in 65,779,459 Domestic Shares was directly
held by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.. Based on the information
provided by Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., Hongan International
Investment Co, Ltd. and Ms. Wang Meng were deemed to be
interested in these 65,779,459 Domestic Shares.

The long position in 63,746,040 Domestic Shares was held by Uni-
President China Holdings Ltd., a non wholly-owned subsidiary
of Uni-President Enterprises Corp. (#i— B MHBERAR),
through its two wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely, Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (K##—DERRERA
A]), which held 42,418,360 Domestic Shares, and Guangzhou
President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BM#— % AR A 7)), which held
21,327,680 Domestic Shares.

Pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, Uni-President Enterprises Corp.
(F—1ERMHBABRAR) was deemed to be interested in such
63,746,040 Domestic Shares. The 63,746,040 Domestic Shares
were held by a series of controlled corporations of Uni-President
Enterprises Corp. (#i—1¥RHAMRAA), of which 42,418,360
Domestic Shares, representing approximately 10.80% of the total
issued share capital of the Company, were held directly by Chengdu
President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd. (K##—ERRERA
A]) and 21,327,680 Domestic Shares, representing approximately
5.43% of the total issued share capital of the Company, were held
directly by Guangzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd. (BN & — 1%
BRAF]).

These H Shares are beneficially held by Uni-President China Holdings
Ltd..

After the capitalization issue of shares by the Company in 2007, the
number of H Shares held by Mitsui & Co., Ltd. was adjusted from
97,000,000 H shares to 213,400,000 H shares. Upon the share
consolidation of the Company in January 2013, the number of H
Shares held by Mitsui & Co., Ltd was further adjusted to 21,340,000
H Shares.

121,010,501 Domestic Shares were held by Mr. Wang An, the
husband of Ms. Zhang Shaoxia, therefore Ms. Zhang Shaoxia was
deemed to be interested in these shares.

1,708,500 H Shares were held by Mr. Wang An, the husband of Ms.
Zhang Shaoxia, therefore Ms. Zhang Shaoxia was deemed to be
interested in these shares.

For identification purpose only
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(10) Ms. Wang Meng indirectly held 100% of the issued share capital
of Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd., which in turn held 65,779,459
Domestic Shares. Therefore Ms. Wang Meng was deemed to be
interested in these shares.

(11)  Ms. Wang Meng directly held the entire issued share capital of
Hongan International Investment Co., Ltd., which in turn held
34,771,380 H Shares. Therefore, Ms. Wang Meng was deemed to
be interested in these shares.

Competing Interests

None of the Directors, the controlling shareholder of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group or has or may have any other
conflicts of the interest with the Group.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

Practices and Procedures of the Board of
Directors

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Required
Standard”) as the Company’s code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by its Directors. A copy of the Required Standard
was sent to each Director two months before the date of the
Board meeting to approve the Company’s 2014 annual results,
with a reminder that the Directors cannot deal in the securities
and derivatives of the Company until after such results have been
published.

Under the Required Standard, the Directors are required to
notify the Chairman of the Company and receive a dated
acknowledgement in writing before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company and, in the case of the Chairman of
the Company himself, he must notify the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and receive a dated acknowledgement in writing before
any dealing.

All Directors, upon specific enquiries, have confirmed that they had
complied with the Required Standard during the reporting period.

(10) FEFZERE#E454E Donghua Fruit Industry
Co., Ltd. 100% B2 E1TAZ » M Donghua
Fruit Industry Co., Ltd. %574 65,779,459 %
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Specific employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Group are also
subject to compliance with the Required Standard. No incident of
non-compliance was noted by the Company for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Audit and Review Committee

The Company has established an Audit and Review Committee
with written terms of reference based on the guidelines
recommended by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The primary duties of the Audit and Review
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process and internal control of the Group, ensuring compliance
with Rules 3.21 to 3.24 of the Listing Rules. Currently the Audit and
Review Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Gong Fan, who is the chairman of the Audit and
Review Committee, Chow Kam Hung and Li Tong Ning.

During the reporting period, the Audit and Review Committee
reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed the internal controls and financial reporting
matters with the Directors, including a review of the annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2014. The Audit and Review
Committee held two meetings during the year with all the then
existing members present.

Auditor

KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership) shall retire and a
resolution for their re-appointment as auditor of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In the past three years, the Company’s auditor remained

unchanged.

By Order of the Board of Directors
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Wang An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 12 March 2015

* For identification purpose only
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To the Shareholders:

The Supervisory Committee (the “Supervisory Committee”) of
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*, in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association of
the Company, has conducted its work in accordance with the
fiduciary principle, and has taken up an active role to work seriously
and with diligence to protect the interests of the Company and its
shareholders.

During the vyear, the Supervisory Committee had reviewed
cautiously the operation and development plans of the Company
and provided reasonable suggestions and opinions to the
Board. It also strictly and effectively monitored and supervised
the Company’s management in making significant policies and
decisions to ensure that they were in compliance with the laws
and regulations of the PRC and the Articles of Association of the
Company, and in the interests of its shareholders.

We have reviewed and agreed to the report of the Directors,
audited financial statements and the dividend to be proposed
by the Board for presentation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. We are of the opinion that the Directors, the chief
executive officer and other senior management of the Company
are able to strictly observe their fiduciary duty, to act diligently,
to exercise their authority faithfully in the best interests of
the Company and to work in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. The operation is becoming more
regulated and the internal control is becoming more perfect. The
transactions between the Company and connected parties are
in the interests of the shareholders as a whole and under fair and
reasonable price.

* For identification purpose only
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Up till now, none of the Directors, chief executive officer and senior
management staff had been found to have abused their authority,
damaged the interests of the Company or infringed upon the
interests of its shareholders and employees. None of them was
found to be in breach of any laws and regulations or the Articles of
Association of the Company.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the achievement

and cost-effectiveness of the Company in 2014 and has great
confidence in the future prospect of the Company.

By Order of the Supervisory Committee
Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.*
Xu Jiang

12 March 2015

*  For identification purpose only
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KPMG Huazhen Shen Zi No. 1500414

All Shareholders of Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Yantai
North Andre Juice Company Limited (“the Company”), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet and balance sheet as
at 31 December 2014, the consolidated income statement and
income statement, the consolidated cash flow statement and
cash flow statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity and statement of changes in shareholders’
equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation
and fair presentation of these financial statements. This
responsibility includes: (1) preparing these financial statements in
accordance with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China, and fairly presenting them; (2) designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control which is necessary to enable that the
financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with China Standards on Auditing for Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with China
Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants, and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position and financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated financial performance and financial performance
and the consolidated cash flows and cash flows of the Company
for the year then ended in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China.

KPMG Huazhen (Special General Partnership)

Certified Public Accountants
Registered in the People’s Republic of China

Lei Jiang
Zhao Ying
Beijing, China

12 March 2015
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ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand
Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepayments
Other receivables
Inventories
Available-for-sale financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Long-term equity investments
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Intangible assets
Goodwill

Total non-current assets

Total assets

HE
MEEE -
gE¥ES
eSS
FEARR K
FARFOR
Hfth UK
FE

AHHESREE

Hith g & E

MENEEA

FRBEE :
REBHERE
Bl & B
HETRZ
BIVEE
A

FRBEEAR

BEMG

Note

V.1
V.2
V.3
V.4
V.5
V.6
V.7
V.8

V.9
V.10
V.11
V.12
V.13

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company are set out in Note V. 20.

== == = = ==

9
10
11
<12
13

BOHB B

2014
—E—mE

191,534,476
290,000
145,680,730
8,981,451
1,938,070
781,344,637
10,000,000
60,263,754

At 31 December 20

(Expressed in Renminbi Yt %
20144128

(BFHE(L - AE%{E)

2013

437,065,445

150,402,183
31,863,443
975,712
874,700,484

88,282,300

1,200,033,118

1,588,289,567

53,762,081 57,569,260
794,464,571 714,661,263
15,311 1,934,652
100,700,677 79,119,390
8,653,575 5,686,976
957,596,215 858,871,541
2,157,629,333  2,442,161,108

TIEN FEB0 A = F 228 AT SRR M LR
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At 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2014412 A31H

(£ E - ARKTT)

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Short-term loans
Accounts payable
Advances from customers
Employee benefits payable
Taxes payable
Interest payable
Other payables
Non-current liabilities
due within one year

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Long-term payables

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity:

Share capital

Capital reserve

Surplus reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

Total equity and liabilities

RRMERRER
MENRIR -
FEERRER
AR
FAWFOR
JEATB T 3B
ERME
RARIFIE
HAERR
—FRE B
FRBAE

MERERT

FRBEE
RHEERIK

FRBEEAR

BENBRRERR

V.16
V.17

V.18
V.19

V.21

V.22

V.23
V.24
V.25
V.26

M H BHH HH

=yl ===

~ 16
~17

~ 18
© 1

~ 21

22

23
24
> 25
> 26

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.
UL R BN 20156 3 A 12 HEEE A -

Legal Representative: Wang An

SEEREA T

Chief Accountant: LiLei
SHBEAEA: TR

Chief Financial Officer:

FTEGIIFREA:

Wang Yan Hui

2014 2013
—EZ—mE =%
473,237,000 672,259,392
66,563,565 135,195,416
2,748,318 1,519,209
16,365,153 15,889,032
15,184,010 31,464,766
3,371,233 -
39,820,248 26,678,703

- 22,863,375

617,289,527 905,869,893
692,453 655,420
692,453 655,420
617,981,980 906,525,313
392,600,000 408,988,000
94,622,523 112,395,766
104,236,707 103,144,993
948,188,123 911,107,036
1,539,647,353 1,5635,635,795
2,157,629,333 2,442,161,108

THE

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.
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ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash at bank and on hand
Bills receivable
Accounts receivable
Prepayments
Dividends receivable
Other receivables
Inventories
Available-for-sale financial assets
Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets:
Long-term equity investments
Fixed assets
Construction in progress
Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

RE
MEEE -
gE¥ES
eSS
FEAAR K
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FEARRH
Hfth e R
e

A ESREE

HiRehE e
RBEEA
ERBEE :

REIRAERE

ETEEE
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EEE
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BEMAG

Note BaE

XV +A A
XvV2 +H-2
XV.3 +#H- 3
XV4  +H-4
XV5 +H- 5
XV.6 +H-6
Xv7 +H-7
Xv.8 +H '8
XV.9 +H-9
XV.10 +3 10

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

(SHEN - ARBTT).

2014 2013
—2—mF —E=F
180,498,375 432,732,849
290,000 =
115,540,380 132,203,501
6,244,882 27,100,561
57,674,279 196,783,956
394,032,828 244,551,905
74,558,681 171,351,318
10,000,000 =
42,902,832 58,087,647
881,742,257  1,262,811,737
592,831,754 544,795,343
131,786,270 135,872,733
- 66,355
28,871,696 29,422,192
753,489,720 710,156,623

1,635,231,977

1,972,968,360
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GEAES

At 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2014912 318
(2HE : ARK¥T)

2014 2013
Note BaE —E—ME —T—=%F

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ABRMERER

Current liabilities: REALE

Short-term loans 52 HAfE R XV.i12 +3# 12 423,237,000 572,259,392
Accounts payable JESTBRFR XV.13 +3 13 100,028,822 203,188,093
Advances from customers TEUGRE 1,471,406 933,292
Employee benefits payable JEAST B T 7 B XV.14 +35 14 2,463,514 1,778,254
Taxes payable ERIE 956,756 =
Interest payable FERTAE 3,371,233 =
Other payables HAb R XV.15 +3& 15 114,029,748 138,802,253

Non-current liabilities due —FE RN HH
within one year ERBAE - 22,863,375
Total current liabilities RBBEAR 645,558,479 939,824,659
Total liabilities BEAR 645,558,479 939,824,659

Equity: MR s

Share capital A v23  h 23 392,600,000 408,988,000
Capital reserve BARNE XV.16 +& 16 120,865,221 138,638,464
Surplus reserve NN XV.17 +3 17 104,236,707 103,144,993
Retained earnings A ECAE 371,971,570 382,372,244
Total equity RS AR 989,673,498  1,033,143,701

BEMBCRER AR

Total equity and liabilities

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.

HIAEBRREN2015F3 A 12 HEESESHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An Chief Financial Officer:
EEREA .  __EFR ITEGHTIEREA
Chief Accountant: Li Lei

BIEEBAEA PR

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yur%
2014
(RREEN - AE%{E)‘

2014 2013
Note Pk —E-mE —Z—=F
| Operating income — EERA ver w27 844,468,613 893,447,926
Il Less: Operating costs =R EERAR V27T R 644,877,041 713,404,255
Business taxes and surcharges EER S KN V.28 f 28 6,098,700 5,762,938
Seling and distribution expenses HEEFR V.29 F-29 49,941,905 55,532,775
General and administrative ERER V3 30
expenses 50,421,314 51,322,110
Financial expenses HBER V.31 T 31 37,963,346 29,425,143
Impairment losses BEREREX V32 R 32 2,967,908 -
Add: Investment income m: mEMkE V33 A33 2,730,676 80,195,181
Including: Share of profit from Hep o« HEa i
an associate and HEERE
a joint venture IR E s 1,642,821 5,208,958
" Operating profit = EEHH 54,929,075 118,195,386
Add: Non-operating income = EEINRA V34 R34 2,791,619 9,992,486
Including: Gains on disposal Hi: EndEE
of non-current BEMNEG
assets 214 6,935,530
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEINE V35  R35 170,007 133,566
Including: Losses from disposal He : EnBEE
of non-current assets REBEK 41,348 98,224
IV Profit before income tax Rk V.41 f 41 57,550,687 128,054,806
Less: Income tax expenses B PTEHER V3 36 (848,216) 525,166
V' Net profit for the year and net 1 OFEREER
profit attributable to shareholders NG ELaDERINE
of the Company 58,398,903 127,529,640
VI Other comprehensive income for the year 75 » iR A Uizs - -
VIl Total comprehensive income for the year  + ~ SRR NG EE L FE
and total comprehensive income RERAIRERNGE
attributable to shareholders of Wizssezs
the Company 58,398,903 127,529,640

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial HIEAES0E EF 228 B MM IS HKRMTTEA
statements. BTSRRI ES D ©
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BHRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2014 E

(£ E - ARKTT)

Note Ptk
VIl Earnings per share: N\~ EiRGE -
(1) Basic eamings per share (—)EXERYE V40 R 40
(2) Diluted earnings per share (D) mESRkE V40 T 40

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.

M BHREN2016F3 A 12 BEEFESHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An
EEREA Fz

Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui

Chief Accountant: Li Lei
SHBEAEA: TR

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial
statements.
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2014 2013
—Z-—mE —E-=fF
0.146 0.312
0.146 0.312
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Note BtsE
| Operating income — EEWA Xv.18 +H 18
Il Less: Operating costs R BERR Xv.18  +H 18
Business taxes and surcharges =R e KK
Selling and distribution expenses HEER
General and administrative ERER
expenses
Financial expenses HBER XV.19  +H 19
Add: Investment income i wEWER XvV20 & 20
Including: Share of profit from Hep : HEEE
an associate and a MEEhE
joint venture B3R W
lll Operating profit = EEFE
Add: Non-operating income = EEIMEA
Including: Gains on disposal = : ERBEE
of non-current assets BEME
Less: Non-operating expenses B EEINT
Including: Losses from disposal Hep : ERBEE
of non-current assets REBX
IV Profit before income tax m - FELRE
Less: Income tax expenses W FSHER Xv.21  +h - 21
V/ Net profit for the year h FEFE
VI Other comprehensive income N HitrsR e s
for the year
VIl Total comprehensive income + AR
for the year

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.

IR RE N 2015543 A 12 HEESESHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An
SEEREA B

Chief Accountant: LiLei
SHMBEEA T

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

Chief Financial Officer: Wang Yan Hui
TERHIEAEA:_ THE

For the year ended 31 December 20
(Expressed in Renminbi Yt %

(SHEN - ARBTT).

2014 2013
—E—MmE =4
587,447,194 577,767,279
498,568,898 528,737,306

1,674,587 3,729,953
30,681,010 34,215,198
16,825,118 24,349,178
34,271,164 23,602,216

1,909,266 79,696,358

821,411 2,187,800
7,335,683 42,829,786
2,625,500 3,099,939
= 763,328

141,349 47,427
41,348 47,426

9,819,834 45,882,298
(1,097,308) 14,106,045
10,917,142 31,776,253
10,917,142 31,776,253

RS MAR VAR ED D ©
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EHRETRER

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2014 E
(£ E - ARKTT)

| Cash flows from operating activities:
Proceeds from sale of goods
and rendering of services
Refund of taxes
Proceeds from other
operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payment for goods and services
Payment to and for employees

Payment of various taxes
Payment for other
operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

I Cash flows from investing activities:

Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Investment returns received

Net proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
and intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of equity interests
of an associate

Proceeds from other
investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payment for acquisition of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Payment for acquisition of
avallable-for-sale financial assets
Payment for acquisition of fixed assets
and intangible assets
Net payment for acquisition of subsidiaries

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
investing activities

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2014

Note HieE

— BEERYPELNRERE

HEBm - 'HEH
WRIEBRE

YRINBRRE

WEI R b LR E
BEMRE

REEDRBRANG

BEAR  BXSH
xR e
IHGEBINRART
xR e
XAMBERE
XHEEEEE
BENRE

REEHRERM Nt

Val) - 42(1)

VA2Q)  F420)

REEHELR

ReneFsE V.43(1)  F - 43(1)

— REGRDELNHSRE

WERRA BEER
HEE AEHRRN
TREERIINRS

MEREURMBZINRS

REETEENRENBEM
W ElR &R A

REBEMRIE
YRS

WEI A iR ARE
BEBORE

REBBREMANG

EENARBENEE
HEHTASHIERN
SHEETAMES

BEUHNESRHEE
YRMEE

BRETEENEREE
P R &

BEFREINAREFE V.432)

REERBRERA/ NG

V.4203)  F - 42Q9)

A - 430)

RERPELRN
BEREFE

s

RS MEREAERED D ©

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF

2014 2013
—Z2-MmF —T—=F
938,608,096 968,797,755
79,858,810 69,025,657
8,883,141 12,233,219

1,027,350,047 1,050,056,631
(641,477,864) (728,917,961)
(41,424,905) (37,940,721)
(54,594,929 (33,936,646)
(66,528,395) (81,310,679
(804,026,093) (882,106,007)
223,323,954 167,950,624
4,228,587,855 3,584,683,820
5,450,000 6,750,000
39,447 47,407,967

= 135,966,250

822,499 1,900,468
4,234,899,301 3,776,708,505
(4,227,500,000) (3,581,870,634)
(10,000,000) =
(7,498,504) (39,028,977)
(50,872,124) =
(4,295,870,628) (3,620,899,611)
(60,970,827 155,808,894

TIEN FE B0 A = £ 228 A I ISR M LR



[Il Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Proceeds from other

financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Repayment of bank borrowings
Payment for dividends

Payment for interest

Repayment of borrowings from

related parties

Payment for purchase of own shares

Payment for other
financing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

financing activities

|V Effect of foreign currency exchange rate
changes on cash and cash equivalents

V/ Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents

Add: Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

CEBERRELNHENE
BRERTEFREINERS

WRIEMREEED
BEMRE

EREPHERANG

ﬂiﬁ%ﬁﬁ
X HRE
f&

TF TF D> TR
M = & e
%ﬂfr@

3l
b+><1+

%

EREARRMX RS

X EEEEEE
BENRE

EREPR MM NG

EHEPELR
BEREFR

- ELRDHRLR

ReEENNTE

BeRAEEEY

F(RD),/ B

e FIRERRE
SENHE

KRS REAE

{EMERE

ERITEAI R

B R

Note HieE

VA2 F - 4204)

V425 E - 420)

VA3()  F - 43(1)

V4303)  F - 430)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.
UL iR B R 20156 3 A 12 HEEE G A -

Legal Representative: Wang An

EEREA

Chief Accountant:

SERBRRA

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

Chief Financial Officer:
FESTLIEAEA

ToE

Wang Yan Hui

LB RE

For the year ended 31 December 20
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuaf)‘} s

20144
(RFEEN - ARBT)
2014 2013
—Z2-MmF —T—=F
951,395,759 854,613,889
9,354,986 28,284,813
960,750,745 882,898,702

(1,173,281,526)

(631,626,747)

(20,226,102) (21,994,720)
(38,961,102) (28,883,260)
(93,088,008) (140,739,571)
(34,161,243) -

5 (9,354,986)
(1,359,717,981) (832,599,284)
(398,967,236) 50,209,418
438,126 (599,889)
(236,175,983) 373,459,047
427,710,459 54,251,412
191,534,476 427,710,459

RS MERNAERED D ©
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OOW

BERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
2014 E
(£ E - ARKTT)

| Cash flows from operating activities:
Proceeds from sale of goods
and rendering of services
Refund of taxes
Proceeds from other
operating activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payment for goods and services
Payment to and for employees

Payment of various taxes
Payment for other
operating activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

I Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Investment returns received
Net proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets and intangible assets
Proceeds from disposal of equity
interests of an associate
Proceeds from other
investing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Payment for acquisition of
financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Payment for acquisition of
available-for-sale financial assets
Payment for acquisition of fixed assets
and intangible assets
Net payment for acquisition of subsidiaries

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
investing activities

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

—
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2014 2013
Bk —E—MF —E-=f
RETHELNRSTRE
HEEmM - RIS

lelfnpin 467,308,627 531,451,492
WEMHBRE 63,888,139 58,644,459
W B Kb AT &EE)

BENES 13,011,855 10,135,196
BEEFRERANG 544,208,621 600,231,147
BERM  BXEK

SHRMEE (390,733,331) (410,877,048)
TRABTURART

SRMEE (10,941,657) (10,499,437)
SRMEERE (8,284,864) (12,772,428)
YT E M ELREE)

el Lok (69,584,467) (14,679,554)
EEEEHIR SR Nt (479,544,319 (448,828,467)
MEEEELN

ReREFH XV.22(1) +3 -~ 22(1) 64,664,302 151,402,680

—  RETHELENRERE
WEIA AR EE=EE

HEFTAEHERN

SREERIINES 4,228,587,855 3,580,765,488
BB RERRTIREINE S 4,905,000 6,075,000
REETEENRENEE

PTIREIRYIR & 558 6,964 10,264,949
REBEEME

Lelfnpin - 135,966,250
WE H A 45 & T &)

BRENRE 782,809 1,137,231
REEHHDTA NG 4,234,282,628 3,734,208,918
BENAAEEE2E

HET A S HiERN

PREESANEE (4,227,500,000) (3,580,000,000)
BEUHLESHEE

YRBRE (10,000,000) =
BRETEENENEE

MR E (601,145) (18,840,875)
DEFRARSINNREFE (52,120,000) =
REBEHHES MM NG (4,290,221,145) (3,598,840,875)
REEDEENRSREFE

(55,938,517) 135,368,043

TIEREB0 B = F 228 A ISR MER
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[Il Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from bank borrowings
Proceeds from other

financing activities

Sub-total of cash inflows

Repayment of bank borrowings
Payment for dividends
Payment for interest
Repayment of borrowings

from related parties
Payment for purchase of own shares
Payment for other

financing activities

Sub-total of cash outflows

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
financing activities

|V Effect of foreign currency exchange rate
changes on cash and cash equivalents

V/ Net (decrease)/increase in cash
and cash equivalents

Add: Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

VI Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

For the year ended 31 December 2014 <
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuait) ‘

(SHEL : ARHTT)
2014 2013
Note Bzt —Z-—mE —E-=F
* wﬁ/ﬁiﬁ?imfﬁé/wi :
BERITETFREIME £ 881,395,759 747,680,685
DEHEnEEETHEENRE
9,354,986 28,284,813
EBEHHSMANG 890,750,745 775,965,498
BRETEFZANAS (1,053,281,526) (484,693,543)
APERFILZ RS (20,226,102) (21,994,720)
EBRFMESZANES (35,097,790) (24,288,803)
Ei&%ﬂﬁﬁﬂam
SRR - (140,739,571)
EBEARRMTAMES (34,161,243) =
FTHNEMEEEES)
BERENRE - (9,354,986)
SRTYRSHANGT (1,142,766,661) (681,071,623)
LEEPELNES
mE R (252,015,916) 94,893,875
EXFFHHRL K
ReSRINTE 410,643 (543,930)
HERREEEY
FORD) /g XV.22(2) +F - 222) (242,879,488) 381,120,668
n: EMRERRE
ZEMHE 423,377,863 42,257,195
CERRE RS
RS 180,498,375 423,377,863

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.
LB TR ER2015F 3 A 12 HEEESHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An

SEERRA %
Chief Accountant: Li Lei
SHWEREA TR

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

Chief Financial Officer:

TEEIIFREA:

Wang Yan Hui
FE

REATEERR VAR EE D ©
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BHRR

Eag

For the year ended 31 December 2014
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2014 FZ
(LRBEN - AR¥T)

Balance at 31 December 2012
Add: reclassffication

Balance at 1 January 2013
Changes in equty for the year
1. Total comprehensive income
2. Appropriation of profits
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to shareholoers

Balance at 31 December 2013

Balance at 1 January 2014
Changes in equty for the year
1. Total comprehensive income
2. Appropriation of profits
- Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distrioutions to shareholders
3. Purchase of own shares

Balance at 31 December 2014

N12E12A31 A
n:&ng

0131 F1BEE
KEEREYEE
1alEEE
2HIEAE
~RIBHDE
~HRRNAR

N13E12A31 B

N14F1F1BEE
KEEREYEE
1alEEE
PRIy
~RIRBSDE
~HRENAR
SREEE

N14E12 A3 B

B®

Note

V.26

V.26

V.26

V.23

1%

2%

1%

GilVA]

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

RERBLFRAEER

Share Capital Surplus Retained
capital reserve reserve earnings Total
&% L AE BaEea
k% O 0 HiE it
408,988,000 112395766 167018456 740,153,333  1,428,555,555
= - (66,966,635 66,966,638 =
408,983,000 112395766 100,061,818 807,109,971 1,428,595,555
- - - 12759640 127529640
- - 3083175 (3083179 -
- - - (204494000 (20,449,400)
408,983,000 112395766  103,144.998 911,107,086 153,635,795
408,983,000  112,395766 103,144,993 911,107,036 1,535,635,795
- - - 58308908 58,308,903
- - 1,091,714 (1,001,714) -
- - - (20,226,102  (20,226,102)
(16,388,000)  (17,773,243) - - (34,161,243
392,600,000 94622523 104,236,707 948,188,123 1,530,047,353

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.

M BHmREN2016F3 A 12 BEEFSHE -

Legal Representative: Wang An

HERRA - =
Chief Accountant: LiLei
BEIHEBEA T

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.
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Chief Financial Officer:
FESHITIEASA

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF

Wang Yan Hui

ToE
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Balance at 1 January 2013
Changes in equty for the year
1. Total comprehensive income
2. Appropriation of profits
~ Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to shareholoers

Balance at 31 December 2013

Balance at 1 January 2014
Changes in equty for the year
1. Total comprehensive income
2. Appropriation of profits
~ Appropriation for surplus reserve
- Distributions to sharefolders
3. Purchase of own shares

Balance at 31 December 2014

N1351 1 AHE

KELREREE

1Ga0EEE

2. HEAE
~RHESNE
~HRENAR

antt

013F12 731 Ao

N14E1 A1 BBE
KEERRELE
1Ge0REE
2. FEAR
N
-HRENAE
3 RZEE

N4E12 A3 BHE

V.26

V.26

V.23

(SHEN - ARBTT).

For the year ended 31 December 20
(Expressed in Renminbi Yt %

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 12 March 2015.

I SRR DN 20156 FE3 A 12 BEESTE€H & -

Legal Representative: Wang An

EERRA

Chief Accountant:

SERERAEA

The notes on pages 80 to 228 form part of these financial

statements.

B

Chief Financial Officer:
FTESFIEEEA

Share Capital Surplus Retained
Capital Reserve reserve earnings Total
ks
et B REL0E  EBOW  RPEAR it
408,988,000 138638464 100,061,818 374,128,566 1,021816,848
- - - 31776268 31,776,268
72
= - 308315 (3083179 -
- - - (204494000 (20,449,400)
408,983,000 138638464 103,144,993 382,372,244 1,083,143,701
408,988,000  138,638464 103,144,993 382,372,244 1,033,143,701
- - - 10917142 10917,142
726
- - 1,001,744 (1,001,714) -
- - - (20226102  (20,226,102)
72 (16,388,0000  (17,773,243) - - (34,161,243
392,600,000 120865221 104,236,707 371,971,570 989,673,498
Wang Yan Hui
T UpE
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80 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

NO LE U C
B %5 R 2k MY &
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

Company status

Yantai North Andre Juice Company Limited (referred to as the
“Company”), was named Yantai North Andre Juice Company
Limited which was established at Yantai on 30 March 1996.
Headquarter of the Company is located in Yantai, Shandong
Province.

The Company and its subsidiaries (referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
condensed juice, pulp, pomace and related products. For
information about the subsidiaries of the Company, refer to
Note VII.

During the reporting period, the information about increases/
decreases in the Group’s subsidiaries is disclosed in Note VI.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the going
concern basis.

Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates

1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements comply with the requirements
of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued
by the Ministry of Finance (MOF) of the People’s Republic
of China (PRC) and present truly and completely the
consolidated financial position and financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
financial performance and financial performance and the
consolidated cash flows and cash flows of the Company
for the year then ended.

2 Accounting period

The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31
December.

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF

LFEFER

R a1 A ZEFRABRMDBRA A (JA
TEBIAQR]) RARE L FZEF
BEABRAF - RABER 1996 4F 3
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WaT -

RRABRFRB (AT [ANEE])
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AREA - AEEHE
ARG RHfE -

HOF 2
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ARAAFBEEE RER R ER
% o
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ECEB (LA T 7 [ B BB 1) A8 ey 1
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[k T AR F 201446 12 A 31 BEY
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise inclicated)
(BERIZHS) 2B AARET)

Il Significant accounting policies and = AFIEEgBEMEE S
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)
3 Functional currency 3 RN
The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi and AR ERAMIEAEARE &
these financial statements are presented in Renminbi. LM BEMRRANEEBARE -

The Company translates the financial statements of
subsidiaries from their respective functional currencies
into the Company’s functional currency (see Note III.8) if
the subsidiaries’ functional currencies are not the same as
that of the Company.

Accounting treatments for a business combination
involving enterprises under common control

A business combination involving enterprises under
common control is a business combination in which all
of the combining enterprises are ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after the
business combination, and that control is not transitory.
The assets acquired and liabilities assumed are measured
based on their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controling party
at the combination date. The difference between the
carrying amount of the net assets acquired and the
consideration paid for the combination (or the total par
value of shares issued) is adjusted against share premium
in the capital reserve, with any excess adjusted against
retained earnings. Any costs directly attributable to
the combination are recognised in profit or loss when
incurred. The combination date is the date on which one
combining enterprise obtains control of other combining
enterprises.

ARRAFHED FRBRAARE R
BRANL B AN B ¥ (R R AR AR AL
% EREVBHRRE  BETA
AINE SRR IZEHME= - 8
EITTINE -

B —ZH T E¥SHNETEE
%
SHEEHHNEEREAHAIREEZF
— T HARRIR % 77 AR ) B iR
B SFE LR - SRS T
BRAM - AHTELRAHTM
BHEENAEE ZRAHBEESR
ARAEI 77 B GFEA SRR R VAR E B
BFtE - SMFEEREEER
XA G EREEE (HET
BOEELRE)WER  FABRER
RIEFHBEAGEE - BARRTEFH
BASHE N RFRE - BB FR
@ o RETERAFRENEERR
BER  NBARFTASHES -
B R BEHTERRSHRA 6
TR B
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PR R R

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BRESIRBS) - 2EELBNRKT)

Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

5 Accounting treatments for a business combination

involving enterprises not under common control

A business combination involving enterprises not under
common control is a business combination in which all
of the combining enterprises are not ultimately controlled
by the same party or parties both before and after the
business combination. Where 1) the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred (including
the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree), liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer, in exchange for control
of the acquiree, exceeds 2) the acquirer’s interest in the
acquisition-date fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets, the difference is recognised as goodwill (see Note
I.17). if 1) is less than 2), the difference is recognised in
profit or loss for the current period. The costs of issuing
equity or debt securities as a part of the consideration
for the acquisition are included in the carrying amounts
of these equity or debt securities upon initial recognition.
Other acquisition-related costs are expensed when
incurred. Any difference between the fair value and the
carrying amount of the assets transferred as consideration
is recognised in profit or loss. The acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities, if the recognition
criteria are met, are recognised by the Group at their
acquisition-date fair value. The acquisition date is the date
on which the acquirer obtains control of the acquiree.

For a business combination involving enterprises not
under common control and achieved in stages, the
Group remeasures its previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree to its fair value at the acquisition date. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount
is recognised as investment income for the current
period; the amount recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to the previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree is reclassified as investment income for the
current period.

82 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1tH ZEFIRTRGERATE

AFEEWHRR AW
(#8)

5 ¥E—ZHTEEEHNEHE

B
ZEAHNBEHESHIERTER
— I HARNZ I BTN - B
FER—ZH T DEE G - AEE
ERBET - REUSHEREE T EH
EMMHHEE(BEBERZA
I EMREE T ki) - #4E
SAENRBEARBITORR IR
SHEBEANARBEZIM - BE
BHPREHEEED IHRFE
ERNBEAAAREENENERE
MREBAERSEHE(2RME
=17) MABRBAIGFAEHE
& o ARESIERE HEEETH
RAMESAEBUEEFNRFE
R R AR ME AR RS
MR SR - ARBAETE
EEHBENEMEAERE M
AEHES - MHEENRAEBE
HEREEENEZR  tAZHE
@ AEEERERRAAEERE
FRFTEIS BOHE B 0 7 & RER IR
MERABREE  BERKBR
B - BEAREBRENERIRGYH
BB RH -

BBZIRZ 50 L EBIER 12
ERAHE - HRBERAZARA
MEBETRE  ARERIZR
ZEEEBE RN AR BEETE
MAtE - AREEEEREEER
ERTAERRE D - BERZ
AIRF A ROBE B 7 RS K /9 A
BRAEDFER S EMES WS
N8 TR A& n



Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

6 Consolidated financial statements
(1) General principles

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indlicated)
(BHFIZHS) 2B AARET)

= NFERERBRME At

(#&)

6 EHMBHRRNERTZE
(1) #ERE/RA

The scope of consolidated financial statements is
based on control and the consolidated financial
statements comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control exists when the investor has all
of following: power over the investee; exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
The financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in
the consolidated balance sheet within shareholders’
equity. Net profit or loss attributable to non-
controlling shareholders is presented separately in the
consolidated income statement below the net profit
line item. Total comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling shareholders is presented separately
in the consolidated income statement below the total
comprehensive income line item.

When the amount of loss for the current period
attributable to the non-controlling shareholders of a
subsidiary exceeds the non-controlling shareholders’
portion of the opening balance of owners’ equity of the
subsidiary, the excess is still allocated against the non-
controlling interests.
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\| . - . a
B 7% ¥R 3% MY =E
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) T
(BREFIFFES) - 2 BEEN BARKET)

AEEE W RR AW b

accounting estimates (cont’d) (48)

lll Significant accounting policies and =

6 SO ERNERSE (&)
(1) #BE2RAI (&)

6 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)
(1) General principles (cont’d)

When the accounting period or accounting policies of
a subsidiary are different from those of the Company,
the Company makes necessary adjustments to the
financial statements of the subsidiary based on the
Company’s own accounting period or accounting
policies. Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised profit or loss arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated when preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, unless they
represent impairment losses that are recognised in the
financial statements.

(2) Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
enterprises under common control, the financial
statements of the subsidiary are included in the
consolidated financial statements as if the combination
had occurred at the date that the ultimate controlling
party first obtained control. The opening balances and
the comparative figures of the consolidated financial
statements are also restated. In the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, the subsidiary’s
assets and liabilities based on their carrying amounts
in the financial statements of the ultimate controlling
party are included in the consolidated balance
sheet, and financial performance is included in the
consolidated income statement, respectively, from
the date that the ultimate parent company of the
Company obtains the control of the subsidiary to be
consolidated.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

6 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)

@

©

Subsidiaries acquired through a business combination
(cont’d)

Where a subsidiary was acquired during the reporting
period, through a business combination involving
enterprises not under common control, the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries are
included in the scope of consolidation from the date
that control commences, based on the fair value of
those identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition
date.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
Group derecognises assets, liabilities, non-controlling
interests and other related items in shareholders’
equity in relation to that subsidiary. The remaining
equity investment is remeasured at its fair value at the
date when control is lost. Any resulting gains or losses
are recognised as investment income of the current

period.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary in
multiple transactions in which it disposes of its long-
term equity investment in the subsidiary in stages, the
following are considered to determine whether the
Group should account for the multiple transactions as
a bundled transaction:

— arrangements are entered into at the same time or
in contemplation of each other;

— arranges work together to achieve an overall
commercial effect;

— the occurrence of one arrangement is dependent
on the occurrence of at least one other
arrangement;
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

6 Consolidated financial statements (cont’d)

©
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Disposal of subsidiaries (cont’d)

— one arrangement considered on its own is not
economically justified, but it is economically

justified when considered together with other

arrangements.

If each of the multiple transactions does not form
part of a bundled transaction, the transactions
conducted before the loss of control of the subsidiary
are accounted for in accordance with the accounting
policies for partial disposal of equity investment in
subsidiaries where control is retained (see Note IIl.6(4)).

If each of the multiple transactions forms part of
a bundled transaction which eventually results in
the loss of control in the subsidiary, these multiple
transactions are accounted for as a single transaction.
the
difference between the consideration received and

In the consolidated financial statements,
the corresponding proportion of the subsidiary’s net
assets (subsequently measured since the acquisition
date) in each transaction prior to the loss of control
shall be recognised in other comprehensive income
and transferred to profit or loss when the parent
eventually loses control of the subsidiary.

Changes in non-controlling interests

Where the Company acquires a non-controlling
interest from a subsidiary’s non-controlling
shareholders or disposes of a portion of an interest
in a subsidiary without a change in control, the
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the amount of
the consideration paid or received is adjusted to the
capital reserve (share premium) in the consolidated
balance sheet, with any excess adjusted to retained
earnings.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

7 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
deposits that can be readily withdrawn on demand, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and are subject to
an insignificant risk of change in value.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

of financial statements denominated in foreign
currencies

When the Group receives capital in foreign currencies from
investors, the capital is translated to Renminbi at the spot
exchange rate at the date of the receipt. Other foreign
currency transactions are, on initial recognition, translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates on the dates of
the transactions.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences,
are generally recognised in profit or loss, unless they
arise from the re-translation of the principal and interest
of specific borrowings for the acquisition, construction of
qualifying assets (see Note Illl.15). Non-monetary items
that are measured at historical cost in foreign currencies
are translated to Renminbi using the exchange rate at the
transaction date. Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rate at the date the fair value is determined; the
resulting exchange differences are recognised in profit
or loss, except for the differences arising from the re-
translation of available-for-sale financial assets, which are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

8 Foreign currency transactions and translation

of financial statements denominated in foreign
currencies (cont’d)

Assets and liabilities of foreign operation are translated
to Renminbi at the spot exchange rate at the balance
sheet date. Equity items, excluding “Retained earnings”,
are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange rates at
the transaction dates. Income and expenses of foreign
operation are translated to Renminbi at the spot exchange
rates at the transaction dates. The resulting translation
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income. The translation differences accumulated in
shareholders’ equity with respect to a foreign operation is
transferred to profit or loss in the period when the foreign
operation is disposed.

Financial instruments

Financial instruments include cash at bank and on hand,
investment in debt and equity securities other than those
classied as long-term equity investments (see Note IIl.12),
receivables, payables, loans and borrowings and share
capital.

(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities
A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the
balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument.

The Group classifies financial assets and liabilities into
different categories at initial recognition based on the
purpose of acquiring assets or assuming liabilities:
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets
and other financial liabilities.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cont’d)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured

initially at fair value. For financial assets and financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, any related

directly attributable transaction costs are charged to

profit or loss; for other categories of financial assets

and financial liabilities, any related directly attributable

transaction costs are included in their initial costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets and

liabilities are measured as follows:

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss (including financial assets or
financial liabilities held for trading).

A financial asset or financial liability is classified as
at fair value through profit or loss if it is acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or if it is a derivative.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are measured at fair value, and changes
therein are recognised in profit or loss.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market.

Subsequent to initial recognition, receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities (cont’d)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets include non-
derivative financial assets that are designated upon
initial recognition as available for sale and other
financial assets which do not fall into any of the
above categories.

Available-for-sale investments in equity instruments
whose fair value cannot be measured reliably
are measured at cost subsequent to initial
recognition. Other available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value subsequent to initial
recognition and changes therein are generally
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses from monetary financial assets which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. When
an investment is derecognised, the gain or loss
accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or
loss. Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss
when the investee approves the dividends. Interest
is recognised in profit or loss using the effective
interest method (see Note I11.21(2)).

Other financial liabilities
Financial liabilities other than the financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are classified as
other financial liabilities.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFIEEgBEMEE S
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)
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9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(1) Recognition and measurement of financial assets and

financial liabilities (cont’d)

Other financial liabilities (cont’d)

Other financial liabilities include the liabilities arising
from financial guarantee contracts. Financial
guarantees are contracts that require the Group
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
holder) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
subsequent to initial recognition, the guarantee
is measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation and the
amount of a provision determined in accordance
with the principles of contingent liabilities (see Note
1.20).
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cost using the effective interest method.

(2) Presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities generally are
presented separately in the balance sheet, and are not
offset. However, a financial asset and a financial liability

are offset and the net amount is presented in the
balance sheet when both of the following conditions
are satisfied:

the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts

the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the financial asset and settle the financial
liability simultaneously.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)

©

)

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is derecognised if the Group’s
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or if the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset to another party.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety
meets the criteria for derecognition, the difference
between the two amounts below is recognised in profit
or loss:

— the carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred;

— the sum of the consideration received from the
transfer and any cumulative gain or loss that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group derecognises a financial liability (or part of
it) only when its contractual obligation (or part of it) is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Impairment of financial assets

The carrying amounts of financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, an impairment loss is recognised.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)
Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired
includes but is not limited to:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(b) a breach of contract by the borrower, such as
a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

(c) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties faced
by the issuer;

©

significant changes with an adverse effect that
have taken place in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment in which the issuer
operates, indicating that the cost of an investment
in an equity instrument may not be recovered by
the investor;

(f) a significant or a prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(4) Impairment of financial assets (cont’d)

For the calculation method of impairment of
receivables, refer to Note [I.L10. The impairment of

other financial assets is measured as follows:

— Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are assessed
for impairment on an individual basis and/or on
a collective group basis. When an available-for-
sale financial asset is impaired, the cumulative
loss arising from decline in fair value that has
been recognised directly in shareholders’ equity
is reclassified to profit or loss even though the

financial asset has not been derecognised.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on
an available-for-sale debt instrument, the fair value
of the debt instrument increases in a subsequent
period and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. An impairment
loss recognised for an investment in an equity
instrument classified as available-for-sale is not
reversed through profit or loss. The impairment

loss on an

instrument whose fair value cannot be reliably

investment in unquoted equity

measured is not reversed.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

9 Financial instruments (cont’d)
(5) Equity instrument

The consideration received from the issuance of equity
instruments net of transaction costs is recognised in
shareholders’ equity. Consideration and transaction
costs paid by the Company for repurchasing self-
issued equity instruments are deducted from
shareholders’ equity.

When the Company repurchases its own shares, those
shares are treated as treasury stock. All expenditures
relating to the repurchase are recorded in the cost of
the treasury stock, with the transaction entering into
the share register. Treasury stock is excluded from
profit distributions and is stated as a deduction under
shareholders’ equity in the balance sheet.

When treasury stock is cancelled, the share capital
should be reduced to the extent of the total par value
of the treasury stock cancelled. Where the cost of
the treasury stock cancelled exceeds the total par
value, the excess is sequentially deducted from capital
reserve (share premium), surplus reserve and retained
earnings. If the cost of treasury stock cancelled is less
than the total par value, the difference is recorded in
the capital reserve (share premium).

When treasury stock is disposed of, if the proceeds
exceed the cost of the treasury stock, the excess is
recorded in the capital reserve (share premium); if the
proceeds are less than the cost of the treasury stock,
the difference is sequentially deducted from capital
reserve (share premium), surplus reserve and retained
earnings.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

10 Impairment of receivables

Receivables are assessed for impairment on an individual
basis and/or on a collective group basis as follows.

Where impairment is assessed on an individual basis, an
impairment loss in respect of a receivable is calculated
as the excess of its carrying amount over the present
value of the estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

The assessment is made collectively where receivables
share similar credit risk characteristics (including those
having not been individually assessed as impaired), based
on their historical loss experiences, and adjusted by the
observable factors reflecting current economic conditions.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognised on
receivables, there is a recovery in value of the financial
asset which can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss will not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

11 Inventories

(1)

@

Classification and cost
Inventories include raw materials, work in progress, semi-
finished goods, and finished goods.

Inventories are initially measured at cost. Cost of
inventories comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other expenditures incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. In
addition to the purchasing cost of raw materials, work in
progress and finished goods include direct labour costs
and an appropriate allocation of production overheads.

Cost of inventories transferred out
Cost of inventories transferred out is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Consumables including low-value consumables
and packaging materials are amortised in full when
received for use. The amortisations are included in the
cost of the related assets or recognised in profit or loss
for the current period.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

11 Inventories (cont’d)

©

)
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Basis for determining the net realisable value and
provisioning methods for impairment losses of
inventories

At the balance sheet date, inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale and relevant taxes. The net realisable
value of materials held for use in the production is
measured based on the net realisable value of the
finished goods in which they will be incorporated.
The net realisable value of the inventory held to
satisfy sales or service contracts is measured based
on the contract price, to the extant of the quantities
specified in sales contracts, and the excess portion
of inventories is measured based on general selling
prices.

Any excess of the cost over the net realisable value of
each item of inventories is recognised as a provision
for the impairment, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventory system
The Group maintains a perpetual inventory system.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFIEEGBEMEE S
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)

12 RERERE
(1) REREREREXAETE
(@) BBEEA AN R

12 Long-term equity investments
(1) Investment cost of Long-term equity investments
(@) Long-term equity investments acquired through a

business combination s &
— The initial investment cost of a long-term — HRREIEH TR
equity investment acquired through a business EXGisIADA:E a0

combination involving enterprises under
common control is the Company’s share of
the carrying amount of the subsidiary’s equity
in the consolidated financial statements of the
ultimate controlling party at the combination
date. The difference between the initial
investment cost and the carrying amount of
the consideration given is adjusted to the share
premium in the capital reserve, with any excess
adjusted to retained earnings.

For a long-term equity investment obtained
through a business combination not involving
enterprises under common control, the initial
cost comprises the aggregate of the fair
value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity securities issued by
the Company, in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For a long-term equity investment
obtained through a business combination not
involving enterprises under common control
and achieved through multiple transactions
in stages which do not form a bundled
transaction, the initial cost comprises the
carrying value of the previously-held equity
investment in the acquiree immediately
before the acquisition date, and the additional
investment cost at the acquisition date.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEEgREME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)
12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d) 12 RERERE (&)
(1) Investment cost of Long-term equity investments (cont’d) (1) REBRER EREL L BT
(&)
(b) Long-term equity investments acquired other than (o) E b5 N EN1S /Y K HA AR 4
through a business combination wE
- A long-term equity investment acquired — YWREBEES AN
other than through a business combination is B H b 5 N EVS A K 58
initially recognised at the amount of cash paid if IRIERE » EIRTER
the Group acquires the investment by cash, or B IR U IR e
at the fair value of the equity securities issued MM RERERE
if an investment is acquired by issuing equity AEBIZRBRERE S FH
securities. BEEBRERVBKREAE

RS R BT
&G R BRI
B AEBERBETE
smEBEFN R EEE

BB E A o
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity 2) RARER E#EFEREm

investment BRI 2

(@) Investments in subsidiaries @ HFRFIMWKRE
In the Company’s separate financial statements, £ R A E Bl B 7% &
long-term equity investments in subsidiaries R KRR ER AR A AR A
are accounted for using the cost method for FRAAMRHARERESE
subsequent measurement. Except for cash TEEB= HWKEE
dividends or profit distributions declared but not 5 & 9k 8 IR & B 3
yet distributed that have been included in the price FEBRARAFZENI D
or consideration paid in obtaining the investments, HRAEHZE K - B
the Company recognises its share of the cash BRERERERINMNE
dividends or profit distributions declared by the HEEHEFEENESS
investee as investment income in the current 1B 181 5K 28 hR Y 3R & AR ) 3k
period. FERRIN o
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity
investment (cont’d)
(@) Investments in subsidiaries (cont’d)

-

The investments in subsidiaries are stated in
the balance sheet at cost
impairment losses.

less accumulated

For the method of impairment testing and
measurement for the investments in subsidiaries,
refer to Note 111.18

In the Group’s consolidated financial statements,
investments in subsidiaries are accounted for in
accordance with the policies described in Note
I11.6.

Investment in joint ventures and associates

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties have joint control (See
Note Il.12(3)) and rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

An associate is an enterprise over which the Group
has significant influence (see Note I1.12(3)).

An investment in a joint venture or an associate
is accounted for using the equity method for
subsequent measurement, unless the investment
is classified as held for sale.
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lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity
investment (cont’d)
(b) Investment in joint ventures and associates (cont’d)

Under the equity method:

Where the initial cost of a long-term equity
investment exceeds the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the investee’s identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition, the
investment is initially recognised at cost.
Where the initial investment cost is less than
the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets at the date of
acquisition, the investment is initially recognised
at the investor’s share of the fair value of the
investee’s identifiable net assets, and the
difference is recognised in profit or loss.

After the acquisition of the investment, the
Group recognises its share of the investee’s
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as investment income or losses and other
comprehensive income respectively, and
adjusts the carrying amount of the investment
accordingly. Once the investee declares any
cash dividends or profit distributions, the
carrying amount of the investment is reduced
by that amount attributable to the Group.
Changes in the Group’s share of the investee’s
owners’ equity, other than those arising
from the investee’s net profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or profit distribution,
is recognised directly in the Group’s equity,
and the carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted accordingly.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFIEEGBEMEE S
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)

12 REIRERE (&)
Q) RERIERE KB ER Bz
BE ()
b a2 EMBELEN

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity
investment (cont’d)
(b) Investment in joint ventures and associates (cont’d)

In calculating its share of the investee’s net
profits or losses, other comprehensive income
and other changes in owners’ equity, the
Group recognises investment income and
other comprehensive income after making
appropriate adjustments to align the accounting
policies or accounting periods with those of the
Group based on the fair value of the investee’s
identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.
Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates
or joint ventures. Unrealised losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no impairment.
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The Group discontinues recognising its — AEBEHEEPFELH

share of further losses of the investee after BTN FEE -
the carrying amount of the long-term equity AR EE 8 A EIEREIN
investment and any long-term interest that BREBIN - ARAIRR
in substance forms part of the Group’s net BRICENEmERNUL
investment in the joint venture or associate is HEMES FRKEEE

reduced to zero, except to the extent that the
Group has an obligation to assume additional
losses. If the joint venture or associate
subsequently reports net profits, the Group
resumes recognising its share of those profits
only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

—Z—EEH Annual Report 2014 103

RN EPEFIRE
WEHESRLZES A
IR &abEgiEn
B EIRFHNEA
AEEEREZHFZER
MARRNBEDERE
% MERRARED =
B o



PR R R

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsT ) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

12 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)

(2) Subsequent measurement of long-term equity

investment (cont’d)

(b) Investment in joint ventures and associates (cont’d)

For the method of impairment testing and
measurement for the investments in joint ventures

and associates, refer to Note 11.18.

(3) Criteria for determining the existence of joint control or

significant influence over an investee

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities (activities with
significant impact on the returns of the arrangement)
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing

control.

The following factors are usually considered when
assessing whether the Group can exercise joint control

over an investee:

— Whether no single participant party is in a
position to control the investee’s related activities

unilaterally;

— Whether strategic decisions relating to the
investee’s related activities require the unanimous
consent of all participant parties that sharing of

control.

Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an investee
but does not have control or joint control over those

policies.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

13 Fixed assets
(1) Recognition of fixed assets

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicate <
(BRHFRIEEFS) - :‘C_\gﬁ“ﬁzﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%@ !

= AFEREBRME At

(#&)

13 BEEE
(1) BIE & EBRIFIT

Fixed assets represent the tangible assets held by the
Group for use in production of goods with useful lives
over one accounting year.

The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, related taxes, and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to
working condition for its intended use. The cost of self-
constructed assets is measured in accordance with
the policy set out in Note Ill.14.

Where the parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives or provide benefits to the Group in
a different pattern, thus necessitating use of different
depreciation rates or methods, each part is recognised
as a separate fixed asset.

Any subsequent costs including the cost of replacing
part of an item of fixed assets are recognised as
assets if the criteria to recognise fixed assets are
satisfied, and the carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing
of fixed assets are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Fixed assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

13 Fixed assets (cont’d)

(2) Depreciation of fixed assets

The cost of fixed asset, less its estimated residual

value and accumulated impairment losses,

depreciated using the straight-line method over its
estimated useful life, unless the fixed asset is classified

as held-for-sale.

The estimated useful lives, residual value rates and
depreciation rates of each class of fixed assets are as

follows:

Class

Eoh
Plant and buildings BB KLY
Machinery and equipment MRS
Office and other equipment N LA R A
Motor vehicles EHTH

Useful lives, estimated residual value and depreciation

methods are reviewed at least at each year-end.

(3) For the method of impairment testing and

measurement, refer to Note IIl.18.

(4) For the recognition, measurement and depreciation
of fixed assets acquired under finance leases, refer to

Note I11.25(3)
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

13 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(5) Disposal of fixed assets
The carrying amount of a fixed asset is derecognised:

— when the fixed asset is on disposal; or

— when no future economic benefit is expected to be
generated from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of fixed asset are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item, and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

14 Construction in progress
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
materials, direct labour, capitalised borrowing costs (see
Note 1ll.15), and any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended
use.

A self-constructed asset is included in construction in
progress before it is transferred to fixed asset when it is
ready for its intended use. No depreciation is provided
against construction in progress.

Construction in progress is stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated impairment losses (see Note 1I1.18).
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Il Significant accounting policies and =
accounting estimates (cont’d)

15 Borrowing costs 15 EREHR

Borrowing costs incurred directly attributable to the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset.

Other borrowing costs are recognised as financial

expenses when incurred.

During the capitalisation period, the amount of interest

(including amortisation of any discount or premium on
borrowing) to be capitalised in each accounting period is
determined as follows:

Where funds are borrowed specifically for the
acquisition and construction of a qualifying asset, the
amount of interest to be capitalised is the interest
expense calculated using effective interest rates
during the period less any interest income earned
from depositing the borrowed funds or any investment
income on the temporary investment of those funds
before being used on the asset.

To the extent that the Group borrows funds generally
and uses them for the acquisition, construction of
a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalization is determined by applying
a capitalisation rate to the weighted average of the
excess amounts of cumulative expenditures on the
asset over the above amounts of specific borrowings.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the interest rates applicable to the general-purpose
borrowings.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

15 Borrowing costs (cont’d)

The effective interest rate is determined as the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash flow through the
expected life of the borrowing or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the initially recognised amount of the
borrowings.

During the capitalisation period, exchange differences
related to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose
borrowing denominated in foreign currency are capitalised
as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The exchange
differences related to the principal and interest on foreign
currency borrowings other than a specific-purpose
borrowing are recognised as a financial expense when
incurred.

The capitalisation period is the period from the date of
commencement of capitalisation of borrowing costs to the
date of cessation of capitalisation, excluding any period
over which capitalisation is suspended. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities of acquisition, construction that are
necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use are
in progress, and ceases when the assets become ready
for their intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended when the acquisition, construction activities
are interrupted abnormally for a period of more than three
months.

16 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see Note II.18).
For an intangible asset with finite useful life, its cost less
estimated residual value and accumulated impairment
losses is amortised using the straight-line method over
its estimated useful life, unless the intangible asset is
classified as held for sale.

Notes to the

inancial Statement
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lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

16 Intangible assets (cont’d)

The amortisation period for intangible assets is as follows:

Item Amortisation period (years)

Land use right 35-50 years

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life and is not amortised when there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is
expected to generate economic benefits for the Group.
At the balance sheet date, the Group does not have any
intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

Expenditure on an internal research and development
project is classified into expenditure on the research phase
and expenditure on the development phase.

Expenditure on the research phase expensed when
incurred. Expenditure on the development phase is
capitalised if development costs can be measured reliably,
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible, and the Group intends to and has sufficient
resources to complete the development. Capitalised
development costs are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less impairment losses (see Note IIl.18). Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in

the period in which it is incurred.

17 Goodwill

The initial cost of goodwill represents the excess of cost
of acquisition over the acquirer’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree under the
business combination not involving enterprises under
common control.

Goodwill is not amortised and is stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
Note IIl.18). On disposal of an asset group or a set of
asset groups, any attributable goodwill is written off and
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEEgREME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) (48)

18 Impairment of assets other than inventories and

18 RFEREBMEEINHMBEE

financial assets

The carrying amounts of the following assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date based on the internal and
external sources of information to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment:

— fixed assets

— construction in progress

— intangible assets

— long-term equity investments
— goodwill

f any indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated. In addition, the Group estimates
the recoverable amounts of goodwill at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication of
impairment. Goodwill is allocated to each asset group
or set of asset groups, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination for the purpose of
impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of an asset (or asset group, set
of asset groups, hereinafter in this note) is the higher of its
fair value (see Note lIl.19) less costs to sell and its present
value of expected future cash flows.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEEgHREMEAE
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)

18 RFEREBMEEINHMBEE

18 Impairment of assets other than inventories and

financial assets (cont’d)

An asset group is the smallest identifiable group of assets
that generates cash inflows that are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.
An asset group is composed of assets directly relating to
cash-generation. Identification of an asset group is based
on whether major cash inflows generated by the asset
group are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or asset groups. In identifying an asset group,
the Group also considers how management monitors
the Group’s operations and how management makes
decisions about continuing or disposing of the Group’s
assets.

The present value of expected future cash flows of an
asset is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
estimated to be derived from continuing use of the asset
and from its ultimate disposal, to their present value using
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount. A provision for impairment of the asset
is recognised accordingly. Impairment losses related to an
asset group or a set of asset groups are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the asset group or set of asset groups, and then to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in the asset group
or set of asset groups on a pro rata basis. However, such
allocation would not reduce the carrying amount of an
asset below the highest of its fair value less costs to sell
(if measurable), its present value of expected future cash
flows (if determinable) and zero.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFIEEGBEMEE S
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)
19 Fair Value Measurement 19 A AEENTE

Unless otherwise specified, the Group determines fair
value measurement as below:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

When measuring fair value, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the particular asset or liability
(including the condition and location of the asset and
restrictions, if any, on the sale or use of the asset) that
market participants would consider when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date, and uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances
and for which sufficient data and other information are
available to measure fair value. Valuation techniques
mainly include the market approach, the income approach
and the cost approach.

20 Provisions

A provision is recognised for an obligation related to a
contingency if the Group has a present obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Where the effect of time value of money is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as the risks, uncertainties and time
value of money are taken into account as a whole in
reaching the best estimate. Where there is a continuous
range of possible outcomes for the expenditure required,
and each possible outcome in that range is as likely as any
other, the best estimate is the mid-point of that range. In
other cases, the best estimate is determined according to
the following circumstances:
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

20 Provisions (cont’d)

21

114 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

— Where the contingency involves a single item, the best
estimate is the most likely outcome

— Where the contingency involves a large population of
items, the best estimate is determined by weighting all
possible outcomes by their associated probabilities.

The Group reviews the carrying amount of a provision at
the balance sheet date and adjusts the carrying amount to
the current best estimate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefit arising
in the course of the Group’s ordinary activities when the
inflows result in increase in shareholders’ equity, other
than increase relating to contributions from shareholders.
Revenue is recognised in profit or loss when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group, the
revenue and costs can be measured reliably and the
following conditions are met.

(1) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when all of the general
conditions stated above and the following conditions
are satisfied:

— Significant risks and rewards of ownership of
goods have been transferred to the buyer

— The Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair

value of the consideration received or receivable under
the sales contract or agreement.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

21 Revenue recognition (cont’d)

@

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis with reference to the principal outstanding and
the applicable effective interest rate.

22 Employee benefits

(1)

@

Short-term employee benefits

Employee wages or salaries, bonuses, social security
contributions such as medical insurance, work injury
insurance, maternity insurance and housing fund,
measured at the amount incurred or at the applicable
benchmarks and rates, are recognised as a liability as
the employee provides services, with a corresponding
charge to profit or loss or included in the cost of
assets where appropriate.

Post-employment benefits — defined contribution plans
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China, the Group participated
in a defined contribution basic pension insurance
in the social insurance system established and
managed by government organisations. The Group
makes contributions to basic pension insurance
plans based on the applicable benchmarks and rates
stipulated by the government. Basic pension insurance
contributions are recognised as part of the cost of
assets or charged to profit or loss as the related
services are rendered by the employees.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

22 Employee benefits (cont’d)
(38) Termination benefits
When the Group terminates the employment with
employees before the employment contracts expire,
or provides compensation under an offer to encourage
employees to accept voluntary redundancy, a
provision is recognised with a corresponding expense
in profit or loss at the earlier of the following dates:

— When the Group cannot unilaterally withdraw
the offer of termination benefits because of
an employee termination plan or a curtaiiment
proposal

— When the Group has a formal detailed restructuring
plan involving the payment of termination benefits
and has raised a valid expectation in those affected
that it will carry out the restructuring by starting
to implement that plan or announcing its main
features to those affected by it.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

23 Government grants

Government grants are non-reciprocal transfers of
monetary or non-monetary assets from the government
to the Group except for capital contribution from
the government in the capacity as an investor in the
Group. Specific transfers from the government, such as
investment grants that have been clearly defined in official
documents as part of “capital reserve” are also dealt with
as capital contributions, rather than government grants.

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
the grant.

If a government grant is in the form of a transfer of a
monetary asset, it is measured at the amount received
or receivable. If a government grant is in the form of a
transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair
value.

Government grants related to assets are grants whose
primary condition is that the Group qualifying for them
should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire long-
term assets. Government grants related to income are
grants other than those related to assets. A government
grant related to an asset is recognised initially as deferred
income and amortised to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the useful life of the asset. A grant that
compensates the Group for expenses to be incurred
in the future is recognised initially as deferred income,
and released to profit or loss in the periods in which the
expenses are recognised. A grant that compensates the
Group for expenses already incurred is recognised in profit
or loss immediately.
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Il Significant accounting policies and = AFEEgRwEME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) (%)
24 Income tax 24 FriS®Hi

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to a business
combination or items recognised directly in equity
(including other comprehensive income).

Current tax is the expected tax payable calculated at the
applicable tax rate on taxable income for the year, plus
any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

At the balance sheet date, current tax assets and liabilities
are offset only if the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set them off and also intends either to settle on
a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively,
being the differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases, which include the deductible losses
and tax credits carried forward to subsequent periods.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is not recognised for the temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither accounting profit
nor taxable profit (or deductible loss). Deferred tax is not
recognised for taxable temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of goodwiill.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

24 Income tax (cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax is measured
based on the tax consequences that would follow from
the expected manner of recovery or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted at the reporting date that are expected to
be applied in the period when the asset is recovered or
the liability is settled.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date, and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will
be utilised. Such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities are offset if all the following
conditions are met:

— the taxable entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax liabilities and current tax assets

— different taxable entities which intend either to settle
the current tax liabilites and current tax assets on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities  simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or deferred tax assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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lll Significant accounting policies and = AFEEgRwEME A
accounting estimates (cont’d) (48)

25 REHE  MEHE
HEDAREHENKEHEE - &
BHEREERIAERREEE
BEEE BB THEEMERES

ownership of a leased asset to the lessee, irrespective of A2 B RSB TR E - K&

whether the legal title to the asset is eventually transferred. HERIEGK AT E AN E R

An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. =)

25 Operating leases and finance leases
A lease is classified as either a finance lease or an
operating lease. A finance lease is a lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to

(1) Operating lease charges

Rental payments under operating leases are
recognised as part of the cost of another related asset
or as expenses on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(2) Assets leased out under operating leases

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases,
except for investment properties, are depreciated in
accordance with the Group’s depreciation policies
described in Note lI.13(2). Impairment losses are
recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy described in Note Ill.18. Income derived from
operating leases is recognised in profit or loss using
the straight-line method over the lease term. If initial
direct costs incurred in respect of the assets leased
out are material, the costs are initially capitalised
and subsequently amortised in profit or loss over the
lease term on the same basis as the lease income.
Otherwise, the costs are charged to profit or loss
immediately.

120 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #R&AdtH REFIRTRHER AT

(1) KEHEBALE
REHERABENTHSER
EHEHARERERERRE
AEERAKER -

Q) HEHEHBLHEE
REHEHEMNBRRENER
ERIMYEE B ERM E=
13(2) P 4t &9 37 & BR R AT IR 4T
E RMsE=-18Mimeg
SHRERFHRBEER - K&
ENHESRAEHRENAZE
BORERRBA - REHEH
HEEHRENVIERER
ERBABTUAERL - &8
AR E R ARREREREES W
AHRERED Bt AR
7 SRB/E - BERFAE

HiBss -



Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

25 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)
(3) Assets acquired under finance leases

When the Group acquires an asset under a finance
lease, the asset is measured at an amount equal to
the lower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease. At the commencement of the
lease term, the minimum lease payments are recorded
as long-term payables. The difference between the
carrying amount of the leased assets and the minimum
lease payments is recognised as unrecognised finance
charges. Initial direct costs that are attributable to a
finance lease incurred by the Group are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset. Depreciation and
impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policies described in Notes |ll.
13(2) and lI.18, respectively.

If there is reasonable certainty that the Group will
obtain ownership of a leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the leased asset is depreciated over its
estimated useful life. Otherwise, the leased asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and its
estimated useful life.

Unrecognised finance charge under a finance lease
is amortised using an effective interest method over
the lease term. The amortisation is accounted for in
accordance with the principles of borrowing costs (see
Note Ill.15).

At the balance sheet date, the long-term payables
arising from finance leases, net of the unrecognised
finance charges, are analysed and separately
presented as long-term payables or non-current
liabilities due within one year.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

25 Operating leases and finance leases (cont’d)
(4) Assets leased out under finance leases

At the commencement of the lease term, the Group
recognises the aggregate of the minimum lease
receipts determined at the inception of a lease and
the initial direct costs as finance lease receivable. The
difference between the aggregate of the minimum
lease receipts, the initial direct costs, and the
aggregate of their present value is recognised as

unearned finance income.

Unearned finance income is allocated to each
accounting period during the lease term using the
effective interest method. At the balance sheet date,
finance lease receivables, net of unearned finance
income, are analysed and separately presented as
long-term receivables or non-current assets due within

one year.

26 Profit distributions to shareholders

Dividends or profit distributions proposed in the profit
appropriation plan, which will be approved after the
balance sheet date, are not recognised as a liability at
the balance sheet date but are disclosed in the notes

separately.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

27 Related parties

If a party has the power to control, jointly control or
exercise significant influence over another party, or
vice versa, or where two or more parties are subject to
common control or joint control from another party, they
are considered to be related parties. Related parties may
be individuals or enterprises. Enterprises with which the
Company is under common control only from the State
and that have no other related party relationships are not
regarded as related parties of the Group. Related parties
of the Group and the Company include, but are not limited
to:

(@) the Company’s parent;

(o) the Company’s subsidiaries;

(c) enterprises that are controlled by the Company’s
parent;

(d) investors that have joint control or exercise significant
influence over the Group;

(e) enterprises or individuals if a party has control or joint
control over both the enterprises or individuals and the
Group;

(f) joint ventures of the Group, including subsidiaries of
joint ventures;

(g) associates of the Group, including subsidiaries of
associates;

(h) principal individual investors of the Group and close
family members of such individuals;
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

27 Related parties (cont’d)
(i) key management personnel of the Group and close
family members of such individuals;

() key management personnel of the Company’s parent;

(k) close family members of key management personnel
of the Company’s parent; and

() other enterprises that are controlled or jointly
controlled by principal individual investors, key
management personnel of the Group, or close family
members of such individuals.

28 Segment reporting
Reportable segments are identified based on operating
segments which are determined based on the structure
of the Group’s internal organisation, management
requirements and internal reporting system. An operating
segment is a component of the Group that meets all of the
following conditions:

— that may earn revenue and incur expenses in daily
business activities;

— whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Group’s management to allocate its resources and
assess its performance; and

— for which discrete financial information on financial

position, operating results and cash flows of the Group
is available.
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

28 Segment reporting (cont’d)
Two or more operating segments may be aggregated into
a single operating segment if the segments have similar
economic characteristics and the segment are similar in
each of the following aspects:

the nature of each product and service;

— the nature of production process;

— the type or class of customers for their products and
services;

— the methods used to distribute the products or provide
their services;

— the influence brought by law, administrative regulations
on production of products and provision of services.

Inter-segment revenues are measured on the basis of
actual transaction price for such transactions for segment
reporting. Segment accounting policies are consistent with
those for the consolidated financial statements.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

29 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates as well as underlying assumptions and
uncertainties involved are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised and in any future

periods affected.

Notes V.13 and I[X contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment of
goodwill and fair value of financial instruments. Other key

sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(@) Impairment of receivables

As described in Note .10, receivables that are
measured at amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, an impairment loss is recognised. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about loss
events such as a significant decline in the estimated
future cash flow of an individual debtor or the portfolio
of debtors, and significant changes in the financial
condition that have an adverse effect on the debtor. If
there is objective evidence of a recovery in the value
of receivables which can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed.
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lll Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

29 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)
(b) Provision for impairment of inventories

©

As described in Note Ill.11, the net realisable value
of inventories is under management’s regular review,
and as a result, provision for impairment of inventories
is recognised for the excess of inventories’ carrying
amounts over their net realisable value. When making
estimates of net realisable value, the Group takes
into consideration the use of inventories held on hand
and other information available to form the underlying
assumptions, including the inventories’ market prices
and the Group’s historical operating costs. The actual
selling price, the costs of completion and the costs
necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes may
vary based on the changes in market conditions and
product saleability, manufacturing technology and the
actual use of the inventories, resulting in the changes
in provision for impairment of inventories. The net profit
or loss may then be affected in the period when the
impairment of inventories is adjusted.

Impairment of assets other than inventories and
financial assets
As described
inventories and financial assets are reviewed at each

in Note Ill.18, assets other than

balance sheet date to determine whether the carrying
amount exceeds the recoverable amount of the
assets. If any such indication exists, an impairment
loss is recognised.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

29 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)
(c) Impairment of assets other than inventories, financial

assets and other long-term equity investments (cont’d)

The recoverable amount of an asset (or an asset
group) is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and its present value of expected future cash flows.
Since a market price of the asset (or the asset group)
cannot be obtained reliably, the fair value of the
asset cannot be estimated reliably, the recoverable
amount was calculated based on the present
value of estimated future cash flows. In assessing
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
significant judgements are exercised over the asset’s
production, selling price, related operating expenses
and discount rate to calculate the present value. All
relevant materials which can be obtained are used
for estimation of the recoverable amount, including
the estimation of the production, selling price and
related operating expenses based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions.

(d) Depreciation and amortisation of assets such as fixed

assets and intangible assets

As described in Notes Illl. 13 and 16, assets such as
fixed assets and intangible assets are depreciated
and amortised over their useful lives after taking into
account residual value. The estimated useful lives of
the assets are regularly reviewed to determine the
depreciation and amortisation costs charged in each
reporting period. The useful lives of the assets are
determined based on historical experience of similar
assets and the estimated technical changes. If there
have been significant changes in the factors used to
determine the depreciation or amortisation, the rate of
depreciation or amortisation is revised prospectively.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

29 Significant accounting estimates and judgments
(cont’d)
(e) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. There are many transactions and events
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Significant
judgment is required from the Group in determining
the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

30 Changes in significant accounting policies
(@) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting

policies

The Group decides to apply the following amendments
and new accounting standards issued by Ministry of
Finance of PRC from 1 January 2014:

e Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 2 — Long-term Equity Investments (“CAS 2
(2014)")

e Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 41 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
(“CAS 417)

In addition, the Company has adopted Accounting
Rules on Classification between Financial Liabilities
and Equity Instruments as well as the Related
Accounting Treatment (“Caikuai [2014] No. 137)
since 17 March 2014 and Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No. 37 — Financial Instruments:
Presentation and Disclosures (“CAS 37 (2014)”) in the
2014 annual financial statements.
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Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

30 Changes in significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(@) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting

policies (cont’d)

The significant accounting policies after adopting the
above Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

are summarised in Note Il

Impacts of the adoption of the accounting standards

mentioned above are discussed below:

(i) Long-term equity investments

Before adopting CAS 2 (2014), investments where
the Group does not have control, joint control or
significant influence over the investees, and the
investments are not quoted in an active market
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured,
are recognised as other long-term equity
investments. Such investments are then accounted
for using the cost method. After adopting CAS 2
(2014), such investments are now accounted for
using the accounting policy related to financial

instruments (see Note 1.9).

In addition, the Group has revised its accounting
policies in relation to the equity method (see Note
l1.12) as a result of the revision brought about by

CAS 2 (2014).
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Il Significant accounting policies and
accounting estimates (cont’d)

30 Changes in significant accounting policies (cont’d)
(@) Description of and reasons for changes in accounting
policies (cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Classification between financial liabilities and equity
instruments and presentation and disclosures of
financial instruments

Caikuai [2014] No.13 provided guidance on the
classification of financial liabilities and equity
instruments. The adoption of Caikuai [2014]
No.13 does not have any material impact on the
Group’s financial statements (including current and
comparative periods).

CAS37 (2014) provided further guidance on the
offsetting of a financial asset and a financial
liability and revised the disclosure requirements for
financial instruments. In addition, the Group has
revised disclosures in related notes in accordance
with this standard.

Disclosure of interests in other entities

CAS41 modifies and specifies disclosure
requirements relevant to an enterprise’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The Group has
provided disclosures accordingly in related notes
in accordance with this standard.

(b) Effect of changes in accounting policies on the

financial statements

The above changes in accounting policies have no

significant effect on the Group and the Company’s

financial statements.
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IV Taxation

1 Main types of taxes and corresponding tax rates

Tax type Tax basis Tax rate
Value added QOutput VAT is calculated on product sales 17%, 13%
tax (VAT) and taxable services revenue, based

on tax laws. The remaining balance of
output VAT, after subtracting the
deductible input VAT of the period,

is VAT payable.
Busingss tax Based on taxable revenue 5%
City maintenance
and construction tax Based on business tax and VAT paid 1%, 5%, 7%
Corporate income tax Based on taxable profits 15%, 25%

2 Tax preferential
The Company and other domestic subsidiaries are subject
to income tax rate 25% (2013: 25%) except for the
following subsidiaries and the overseas subsidiaries of the
Company were taxed at the local applicable income tax
rates.

(@ According to implementing the Western Development
Program about taxation preferential policy issued
by Ministry of Finance, State Administration of
Taxation, General Administration of Customs (Cai Shui
No.202[2001]), notice of the State Administration of
Taxation on specific opinions for implementing taxation
policies for the Great Development of the Western
Regions (Guo Shui Fa No0.47[2002]), notice of State
Council on implementation of transitional enterprise
income tax incentives (Guo Fa No0.39[2007]), the
Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
notice of Ministry of Finance, State Administration
of Taxation, General Administration of Customs on
implementation of Western Development Program
about taxation policy (Cai Shui No.58[2011]), the
income tax is 15% for Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2020.
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IV Taxation (cont’d)

2 Tax preferential (cont’d)
(b) According to the EIT Law, profit derived from primary

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(BRIFIFIIN - 2B BN RBTE)

IR ()

processing of agricultural produce is exempt from the
PRC income tax. The production of juice concentrate
of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries

and production of bio-stuff of its subsidiaries are

recognised as primary processing of agricultural

produce under the EIT Law and therefore are exempt

from the PRC income tax commenced from 1 January
2008. The following companies are recognised as
primary processing of agricultural produce for the year

2014:

Name of company
AL

Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
BAEFRENRABRNERAR]
Yantai Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

BB LEFRARHERAR
Baishui Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
AKZEMRETER R
Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
BMZEFRETERAR

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

BEEARENRARHERAR
Dalian Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
ABLENMRGTERAF
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
KXEZENRETERAR
Binzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
BMZEN AR ERAR]

Principal activities

RigEERE

Manufacture and sale of juice
RERTEEREE
Manufacture and sale of juice
FRETHEREE
Manufacture and sale of juice
FRZTEEREE
Manufacture and sale of juice
RERTEEREE
Manufacture and sale of juice
RETEEREE
Manufacture and sale of juice
RERTEEREE
Manufacture and sale of juice
RERTEEREE
Manufacture and sale of juice

RERTHERBE

2 HBWEER)
b) REBEELEMBHE TERE

mAI ML EBRFE S EER R
T8 - "ARMETFTFAA
RMGRT AR EEE
BRACEMBHEPRER
FINLER - 200841 A1
HEERR BB NFEH - 2014
FEREGZZRERMVMIB
WEBHEARMT ¢

Preferential policy

LELE

Exempt from income tax
RRPATEH
Exempt from income tax
RBFHER
Exempt from income tax
REBHER
Exempt from income tax
REREH
Exempt from income tax
REBHEH
Exempt from income tax
RBFHER
Exempt from income tax
REREH
Exempt from income tax

REFTEH
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IV Taxation (cont’d) RIE(#\|)
2 Tax preferential (cont’d) 2 BKWEE(E)
Name of company Principal activities Preferential policy
A REEERS BEHE
Baishui Andre Bio-feedstuff Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of bio-feedstuff Exempt from income tax
AKZEMEYERERAA fRHEE RS RBFHER

V Notes to the consolidated financial statements i SHEERREEHEE

1 Cash at bank and on hand 1 E¥ES
2014 2013
ltem JHH —E—mE —E—=4F
Cash on hand EFRE 133,843 173,013
Deposits with banks RITIER 191,400,633 436,892,432
Total BFF 191,534,476 437,065,445
As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any R2014F12 8318 + AEERE
cash at bank with restrictions (2013: RMB9,354,986), see FTEEXZEIRHANEEES (2013
note V.15. & AR¥9,354,9867T) © 2Lkt
ZFh 150
2 Bills receivable 2 EWER
2014 2013
ltem (EES —E—mE =4
Bank acceptance bills RITHERESR 290,000 =
All of the above bills are due within one year, and are not FatEREREA—FRNEIE  BX
pledged, endorsed or transferred. WER - BENEE -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

3 Accounts receivable

(1) Accounts receivable by type are as follows:

Type

Related parties
Third parties

Sub-total

Less: Provision for bad
and doubtful debts

Total

2hll

kNG
£=7

It
W RN

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:

Ageing

Within 6 months (inclusive)
Over 6 months but within 1 year

(inclusive)

Sub-total

Less: Provision for bad
and doubtful debts

Total

ARk

6IERARN(E6MEA)
6IEAZE1FE(E14F)

gt
R

The ageing is counted starting from the date when

accounts receivable are recognised.

B NN,

SHMBRRFEEE (W)

3 EUWRM

(1) EUERFIZERI DT
2014 2013
—E—mF —T—=F
31,517,680 10,380,732
114,163,050 140,021,451
145,680,730 150,402,183
145,680,730 150,402,183

FEUBR FILBRER D AT TS
2014 2013
—E—mFE —E—=%F
137,253,953 150,304,311
8,426,777 97,872
145,680,730 150,402,183
145,680,730 150,402,183

fRik B YR AR B R tA

5 -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial i AOHIBEERTAEERE ()
statements (cont’d)
3 Accounts receivable (cont’d) 3 FEUWERF (/&)

(3) Accounts receivable of the Group are individually Q) AEBMAENEVRERTYAE
significant, therefore the accounts receivable are BEKX @ FLEEKERFEE
assessed for impairment and bad debt provision is EABBEFIBLEUAER A
determined on an individual basis and, then, on a BUAHAEFETRERR
collective group basis. Management is of the view that Nt REREH - BEEER
no bad debt provision is necessary for the accounts ABERBREFPAERIFMSNR
receivable balances in regard of the sound credit 8 EFHHEWRGRETR
record of the customers. AR o

(4) During the year ended 31 December 2014 and (@) R2014FER2013FF + A&
31 December 2013, the Group had no individually B2 B K@ EE AR FER
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision 2 EA SN LA K LE Al 5T IR R AR 2
which had been fully or substantially provided for in EREUER TR -
prior years.

(5) During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 (5) PR2014FFE K20135FE - A%
December 2013, the Group had not written off any BEERIZHENEWRERRR -

significant accounts receivable.
4 FAMFIE
4 Prepayments (1) EEARESEIIROT
(1) Prepayments by category are as follows:

2014 2013
ltem 5B —=—m§E =%
Prepayments to suppliers TR ER 7,720,751 31,465,053
Other prepayments TR H A 1,260,700 398,390
Total &a&t 8,981,451 31,863,443
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V Notes to the consolidated financial i A BEERREERE ()
statements (cont’d)
4 Prepayments (cont’d) 4 FEMNFIE (&)
(2) The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows: Q) TERFIERRERSRAT ¢
2014 2013
Ageing BRAR —ZE—mE —E—=F
Percentage Percentage
Amount (%) Amount (%)
&8& HHl(%) ' (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FERR(E1F) 8,266,743 92% 30,988,731 97%
Over 1 year but within 1Z22F(524%)
2 years (inclusive) 714,708 8% 874,712 3%
Total Gl 8,981,451 100% 31,863,443 100%
The ageing is counted starting from the date when AR B TR FRIE TR B e 1R
prepayments are recognised. FTE o
5 Other receivables 5 HfthEWEK
(1) Other receivables by type are as follows: (1) HAav@UWIzsERI o T
2014 2013
Type LWl —Z—mE —E-=F
Third parties E=F 6,070,635 5,108,277
Less: Provision for bad W AR
and doubtful debts 4,132,565 4,132,565
Total At 1,938,070 975,712
(2) As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the (2) 201412 A31 B K& 20134
Group did not hold any other receivables which were 12 A31 8 - REEEINEHAD
denominated in foreign currency. JEHK
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

PR R EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsE ) - 2 BE B B ALHET)

statements (cont’d)

5 Other receivables (cont’d)

(8) The ageing analysis of other receivables is as follows:

Ageing

Within 1 year (inclusive)
Over 1 year but within

2 years (inclusive)

QOver 2 years but within

3 years (inclusive)
Over 3 years

Sub-total

Less: Provision for bad
and doubtful debts

Total

ARk

1EUAR(E15)
1FEE2F(52F)

2FEEIZF(F3FE)

3FEAE

The ageing is counted starting from the date when

other receivables are recognised.

During the year ended 31 December 2014 and
31 December 2013, the Group had no individually
significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision

which had been fully or substantially provided for in

prior years.
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o ik

I AfMBERERERE(R)

Hib R (4])

Q) Hibrl iR T
2014 2013
—E—mE —TE—=%
1,933,770 964,808
4,300 6,094
- 3,000
4,132,565 4,134,375
6,070,635 5,108,277
4,132,565 4,132,565
1,938,070 975,712

ARl B HAth FE IR RE R B AR FR

W54 -

@) R2014FER2013F[E + A&
B2 B E e AT FER
2R AR KL BIFT IR AR A
R R EL PR LKLK
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V Notes to the consolidated financial 1 SHMERREEEEE)

statements (cont’d)

6 Inventories 6 FE
(1) Inventories by category are as follows: (1) FES4E
2014 2013

—Z-mE —F-=F

Provision for Provision for

impairment impairment
Book of  Carrying Book of Carrying
value inventories amount value  inventories amount
ltem FERA FESE BEEF $2BEEE 2 FEEE KEEE BEEE
Raw materials AR 29,280,800 - 29,280,800 28,057,962 - 28,057,962
Finished goods ERm 755,031,745  (2,967,908) 752,063,837 846,642,522 - 846,642,522
Total At 784,312,545  (2,967,908) 781,344,637 874,700,484 - 874,700,484

During the year ended 31 December 2014,
provision for impairment of inventories amounting to
RMB2,967,908 (2013: nil) recognised as a reduction
of inventories and was charged to profit or loss during
the period.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no
inventories were pledged as security by the Group.

R2014FE - FERELEHEA
R # 2,967,908 7t (2013 : £ )
WHERARTFENRIE  WIER
T HFARFEHFBEE -

R 201412 A 31 H & 20134
12 831 B » NEBRA RARE
ROTEFE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

6 Inventories (cont’d)

I AfMBERERERE(R)

(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the

year is as follows:

Carrying amount:

At 1 January 2013
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year

At 31 December 2013

Additions during the year
Reductions during the year

At 31 December 2014

FRE(EME :
R2013F1 A1 H
NS
RERD

R2013F12 A31H

A
REFD

R2014F12 318

(38) Provision for impairment of inventories:

Balance at the

beginning of

the year

ltem FEREE FORE

Finished goods EfEm

6 FE (&)
2) FEAXEZEFERSITMT
Raw Finished
materials goods Total
FE##E EFE&R &
29,992,415 904,926,447 934,918,862
507,313,389 651,789,593 1,159,102,982
509,247,842 710,073,518 1,219,321,360
28,057,962 846,642,622 874,700,484
374,049,645 537,935,462 911,985,107
372,826,807 629,546,239 1,002,373,046
29,280,800 755,031,745 784,312,545
B FEHKEER

Additions Written back
during the year during the year Balance
Reversal at the end
provision others  or write-off others  of the year

REEMEH KERLEHE
atte Hity BOEH Hty FRHE
2,967,908 = = - 2,967,908
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(B 15 BB 5) i‘ggﬁﬂfﬁz/‘%/\ﬁ%l

V Notes to the consolidated financial i aHMBEERAEER(E)
statements (cont’d)
7 Available-for-sale financial assets 7 AHHESREE
2014 2013
ltem 1HE —E—QmE —E—=4F
Available-for-sale AHHESREE
financial assets 10,000,000 -
Less:Provision for B OREERE
impairment = -
Total a5t 10,000,000 =
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group MR2014F[E » ARARLZRBERE
subscribed the trust loan collective trust scheme of HBER R RRE T SINBEMERE
Zhengzhou Navigation Construction from National Trust RERESESERE - HitA
Product Ltd., with total amount of RMB10,000,000. The R¥1,00087T - ZIEFEEmBET
trust is expected to be matured in one year. GEHRA1F -
8 Other current assets 8 HMRHEE
2014 2013
ltem 1HH —E—mE =EE—=4s
Input VAT recoverable FRIRFIG (AR HE IR 60,263,754 88,282,300
9 Long-term equity investments 9 RHEIRERE
(1) Long-term equity investments by category are as (1) RAREREEAOT -
follows:

2014 2013
ltem 5B —=—Mm§E =4
Investment in a joint venture HELDENTLE 53,762,081 57,569,260
Less: Provision for impairment B OREEE - =
Total &a&t 53,762,081 57,569,260
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
C BB BARKETT)

(B ¥ RIS

year are as follows:

Yantai Tongl Beverage Industries Co,, Ld.

year are as follows:

Yantal Tongli Beverage Industris Co,, Ltd.

Yantai Andre Pectin Co,, Ltd.

142 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

9 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

Investment

cost

e REns
REfE

AagAbHIEERAD 50,000,000

9 REKRERE(R)

i
S

I AfMBEREARERE(R)

@ EHMBRERERNFEHERS

T
—ZT—F

Book value of long-term equity investment

RHRERREARE
Sharholding
At Increase/ At31 percentage
January Decrease  December (%)
EHRR
sk

1R18 fagh  1BuE 8 ()

57569260 (3807,179) 5,762,081 0%

Movements of long-term equity investments for the

Investment

cost

e REsA
AERE

RaEAFHTEERAA 50,000,000
iy

fazEHEBRAERAR 33,080,000

Voting rights Cash

percentage dividend

(%) forthe year
EHRR
B

R BERRAH

0% 5,450,000

(@ REBERERNFESHBERD

anT -
—E—=F
Book value of long-tem equity investment
REREREERRR
Sharenolding
At Increase/ A31 percentage
January Decrease December (%)
RhRE
Efifsh

1318 £5E9  1R3A 51 4)

58,276,941 (ror681) 57,569,260 50%

62598574 (62598,574) = =

&t 83,080,000

120875515 (63306205 57569260

REEHZEFNRTROBRAF

Voting rights Cash
percentage dhidend
(%) fortheyear
KA
Elig
thi)  AERLAH

50 6,750,000

6,750,000




V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

9 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)

The Group held 18.95% equity interest of Yantai Andre
Pectin Co., Ltd., an associate of the Group previously.
The Group transferred 18.95% equity interest of Yantai
Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food Specialties China
Enterprise Co., Ltd. on 26 September 2013. After the
completion of the transfer, the Group ceased owning
any equity interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

Details of the joint venture
2014

Name of hvestes RRAENLAR

Yantai Tongl Beverage ndustres Co, Lt RaSHEHT2ERA
2013

Name of Investee HRAENAR

Yantai Tongl Beverage ncustries Co, L. RagsHIEERAT

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(B 15 BB 5) i\?gﬁﬂfﬁzﬁ/\ﬁﬁ?i

I AfMBEREARERE(R)

9 REKREIRE(H)

BLEMRBRMN AR A F]
RRAEEBRERE A&
ERFF R &218.95% B
2013F9H 260 © A &% @&
ERERENRBROBRA
A]18.95% # % T DSM Food
Specialties China Enterprise
Co., Ltd.  RZEBEEETE
& AEETHEAEARE
FIRBRDB RN EHEIER o

@) BEEERES

—2—mF

Total assets ~ Totalliabiities ~ Netassets Total operating

atd1
December
12R%18
RiEdn

112,241,505

Total assefs
a3t
December
12R51R

121810020

atdl atdt income Net profit
December ~ December  fortheyear  for the year
2R3 1ANR  FEER 5%
AREE  BREEE  wAEE BHE
477343 107524162 104729890 3,285,642
—E—=fF
Total labiies ~ Netassets  Total operating
a3 a3t income Net proft
December ~ December  fortheyer  fortheyear
2R318  RAYAE  AEER 53
AlgE  wEEEE  WgE FE
6671500 116138520 146707476 12084638
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsT ) - 2 R B B ALHT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial i A BEERREERE ()
statements (cont’d)
10 Fixed assets 10 BIE&EE
(1) Details of fixed assets (1) BlEEEIER
Office &
Plant& Machinery & other Motor
buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
RER LN ]
ftem B BEY  HERGE RAMRE 2 EHIR &t
Cost RE

At 1 January 2013 2013F1 518 463 979,747 785,639,866 20,022,753 12,080,966 1,281,723,332

Additions during the year AEEN
- Purchases -2 8,158,078 30,089,608 1,701,229 173,143 40,122,058
- Transfer from construction in progress ~ERIREA 6,149,024 817,704 - - 6,966,728
Disposal or write-off during the year R B RE (23,206,906)  (25,223,091) (120,108 (1,219,895  (49,770,000)
At 31 December 2013 2013%12A31H 455,079,943 791,324,087 21,603,874 11,034,214 1,279,042,118
At1 January 2014 2014F1 518 455,079,943 791,324,087 21,603,874 11,034,214 1,279,042,118

Additions during the year AEEN
- Purchases ~#E 1,833,170 5,190,650 1,198,050 9,188 8,231,058

~ Addltions due to business combinations  —FERI— %I T
involving enterprises not under REEHEM

common control 46,820,353 56,454,904 726,764 488,096 104,490,117
— Transfer from construction in progress —-ERIREA 1,536,060 2,731,658 = - 4267718
Disposal or write-off during the year TERERHE - (50,615) (90,366) (145,005) (285,986)

At 31 December 2014 014512431 H 505,269,526 855,650,684 23438322 11,386,493 1,395,745,025
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

10 Fixed assets (cont’d)
(1) Fixed assets (cont’d)

ltem
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2013
Charge for the year
Disposal or write-off during the year
At 31 December 2013
At 1 January 2014

Charge for the year
Disposal or write-off during the year

At 31 December 2014

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

L

ZihE

2013%1 718
REHR
TERERRE
2013512 A31H

2014F1 518
IR
RGBT HE
20145124318

RAERE
2014512 A 31H

20135124311

(BREFRHS - 2 BB BRI

A AfMBERERERE(R)

10 BE&E (&)

(1) EIEEEIER (&)
Office &
Plant& Machinery & other Motor
buildings  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
RER NG
BEYM  BBRG RAMEE 2 ERIR Ch
(106,805,858) (413,819,266)  (15,835,747)  (9,216,785) (645,677,656)
(10,692,743  (23,069,820)  (1,156,995) (746,270)  (35,565,828)
4485485 11,210,713 88,146 1,078,285 16,862,629
(112,913,116) (425,678,373)  (16,904,596)  (8,884,770) (664,380,859)
(112,913,116) (425,678,373) (16,904,59)  (8,884,770) (564,380,855)
(10,016,806)  (25,186,769)  (1,239,972) (661,457)  (37,105,004)
- 8,876 81,329 115,200 205,405
(122,929,922) (450,856,266) (18,063,239)  (9,431,027) (601,280,454)
382,330,604 404,794,418 5375083  1,955466 794,464,571
342,166,827 365,645,714 4699278 2,149,444 714,661,263

As at 31 December 2014, fixed assets with restrictions
placed on the Group’s ownership amounted to
RMB65,346,057 (2013: RMB67,090,361), see Note

V.15.

MR201456F12 A31 A N&E
FIBEREZEIRHNEEEER
ANER#¥65,346,057 70 (20134 :
AR#67,090,3617T) © 25K
FH15¢
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsE ) - 2 BE B B ALHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial i AHBEERTREERE ()
statements (cont’d)
10 Fixed assets (cont’d) 10 BEEE (48)
(2) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases ©) BAMEHEAALETEE
=D
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no 72014412 A 31 H & 20134
fixed assets were acquired under finance leases . 12A31H  A"EBERERE

HANBEEE °

(3) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (5) BBAZE T B A BT EE
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no 7R2014F 12 431 H & 20134
fixed assets were leased out under operating leases . 12A318 - AEEELEHE

HHMEEEE -
(4) Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership (4) KPR EEZEZENETEES
L
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, M20144 12 A31 H& 20134
no fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership 12 A31 8 - NEBE &R ZE
were placed on the Group’s ownership. EEENBETEEB
11 Construction in progress 11 ZEIR
(1) Construction in progress (1) EZIEEL
2014 2013
Z3-mF 5=
Provision for Carrying Provision for Carrying
Book value  impairment amount Book value impairment amount
Project L] IS WEEH FERE HHHE HEER HHEHE
Sewage treatment project KEEIRE - - - 296,409 - 296,409
Fruit pulp workshop construction FRBRER - - - 1,515,854 - 1,515,854
Others Eft 15,311 - 15,311 122,389 - 122,389
Tota ait 15,311 - 15311 1,034,652 - 193465
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no M20144 12 H31 H & 20134F
interest was capitalized in construction in progress of 12A318 - AEE/ERZTLIE
the Group. REFBERL °
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V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

11 Construction in progress (cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indi
(BR1FFIFE RS - £FEE BARH

(2) Movements of major construction projects in progress

during the year

014

Project

Sewage treatment project

Frut pulp workshop consfruction

Others

Totd

“5-[F
B8

FKRETE

R

Budget

500,000

3,000,000

200,000

s, it

I AfMBERERERE(R)

1 EEIEGR)

Q) EXEZTERAEZEIEN

Addtions due
to business
combinations
involving Percentage
At enterprises  Additions A3 ofactual
1 January not under during  Transferto  December  costto  Project Sources
2014 common control  the year fixed assets 014 budget(’s)  progress of funds
#R-# I88A
DU4E  HTER BN AME KRR
1R1R AN #ERM  EREE  0AMA  HR()  IBER RE%E
26,409 - 162867 (469.276) - 100% 100%  Intemal funding
BEES
1515854 2035146 150364 (3701364 - 100% 100%  Intemel funding
HERS
122,389 - - (lororg 15311 61% 61%  Intermal funding
BEES
1004652 20%146 3B [TTg 15311
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(B1FFsE ) - 2 BE B B ALHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial i SHMBEERBEEHIEE)
statements (cont’d)
11 Construction in progress (cont’d) 11 EEIR(8)
(2) Movements of major construction projects in progress Q) EXFEILIEEAZEEL
during the year (cont’d) (%)
Adatons due
foBusiness
combingtions
ivolving Percentage
At enterprises  Additons A3t ofactud
1 danuary not under dufng ~ Transferto  December costto Project Sources
Budget 013 commoncontol - theyear fired assets 013 budget®)  progress 0ffunds
- TiEA
213 A3E ME WRER FEEA  NE  kEE
Pofet i EEE  1RIR o AEEM EERE wA%IA WA IRER EERE
Sewage treatment project ShEELE 6000000 2637542 - 334018 (515 296409 %% 9% Interal funding
BRES
Fuit pulp workshop constucion FHEERR 2400000 - - 1516854 - 151584 63% 63%  Intemalfunding
HRES
(Offe bulding renovation HOREE 1,000,000 - - (8992) - 100% 100%  Intemel funding
RS
Others i 000 36743 - BE5 (G 122389 5% 75%  Infemel funding
ERES
Tot Gal 3004976 - 5896404 (6966728 1934652
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

12 Intangible assets

[tem

Cost
At 1 January 2013
Additions during the year
— purchase
Disposal during the year

At 31 December 2013

At 1 January 2014
Additions during the year
— purchase
— Additions due to business
combinations involving enterprises
not under common control

At 31 December 2014
Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 2013

Charge for the year
Disposal for the year

At 31 December 2013

At 1 January 2014
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2014

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

(¥ RIS :‘c}ggﬁﬂfﬁiﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ%

B NN,

I AfMBERERERE(R)

B H

R1E

201341 H1H

AR
—BRE

AFERE

20183412 HA31H
201451 A1 H

RELEDN
—BE

12 BEE

— IR —EH N hE

B O

2014512 A31H

REt#sH

2018341 H1H
AEFETR
AFERE

2013512 HA31H

201451 A1 H
AR

2014512 A31H

FRE(EE

2014512 A31H

20183512 H31H
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Land use rights
i {EFHE
101,885,502

2,889,945
(9,814,248)

94,961,199

94,961,199

205,128

23,740,730

118,907,057

(15,590,638)
(2,402,129)
2,150,958

(15,841,809)

(15,841,809)
(2,364,571)

(18,206,380)

100,700,677

79,119,390
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsE ) - 2 BE B B ALHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

12 Intangible assets (cont’d)

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, all
of the Group’s land use rights are held in the PRC on
medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no
interest was capitalized in intangible assets of the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, intangible assets used by
the Group as mortgage for bank loans amounted to
RMB5,205,910 (2013: RMB5,363,262), refer to Note
V.15.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no land
use rights with pending certificates were placed on the
Group’s ownership.

13 Goodwill

(1) Changes in goodwill

Balance at
1 January

I AfMBERERERE(R)

12 B EE (&)

MR20146F12 A31 B K 20134 12
A31H - AREMAA T AER
RERFEA o

R 2014512 A31 B K& 20134 12
A31H - AREEFEEREER
FEREAERERFE

R20145F12 A31 B » AEEEKF
BB B A AR 5,205,910 7T
(20134 : AR¥5,363,2627T)
28 MizFhR 15

R20145E12 A31 B K 20134 12
A318 @ REEERPLEEESE
K MR FAAEIER o

13 HE

Provision

Additions Decrease ~ Balanceat  impairment

during during 31 December  attheend
the year the year 2014 oftheyear
N14F £X

Name of investee BB EfAR FERM FERY  12R%1B WEEH
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co,, Lid. AaEnRENEHRERA 1,020,683 - - 1020683 =
Yongji Andre Juice Co,, Lid. KEREHRETARAA 4,566,293 - - 4566203 -
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry REREHEEERNHARAA

Technology Co., Ltd. 3,066,599 - 3,066,599 -
Tota Ait 5586076 3,066,599 - 8653575 -
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

13 Goodwill (cont’d)
(1) Changes in goodwill (cont’d)
(@ The Group acquired the equity interest of Yantai

Cs

-

Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated
cash consideration of RMB32,035,810 in 2003.
The goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
the acquisition over the Group’s interests in the
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

The Group acquired the equity interest of Yongji
Andre Juice Co., Ltd. at an aggregated cash
consideration of RMB56,201,585 in 2011. The
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the
acquisition over the Group’s interests in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

The Group acquired the equity interest of Anyue
Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. at an
aggregated cash consideration of RMB52,120,000
in 2014. The goodwill represents the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interests in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co.,
Ltd.

(2) Impairment provision for goodwill
The Group’s asset groups which the goodwill is
recognised are Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.,
Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd and Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology Co., Ltd.

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indlicated)

(BAFFIEEERS) » AR B AR

I AfMBERERERE(R)

13 & (&)
(1) EZEER (&)

(@ M 2003%F & @ AEE T
A R #32,035,810 7T U &
BRAKE T HaRRE
FIRT 8RR B R A 7 H 4
7 YR PR AN B 38 1 L
ESMEAEDZENR
TR B R AR AR
E -BEAREBENESR
BEEGEDLZERRT
SR AR A FIEER R

(b) R2011FfE > RE@EZ
A R #56,201,585 7T I &
RARWEE T o ELEFR
BT AR AR MER - I
B AN HBBIEL I ESH
KEBLZEMNRBEATBERA
RIAHREE  BEAAR
BEMNEREAEKERE
FIRB T HR A B HBER
BEK

M20145FE - REBEZ R
A R # 52,120,000 7T 45 &
PRANWEE T % i R 1 i) 1
BEERRBERQ A E
7 WU PR AN R IR AR Lt )
EESNTERENERE
¥R BRAAAHRE
E -BBEARBENER
RETEREMNEEESE
RHE AR A REEHEE

<

(2 mEREERE
AEERE R e E AN
BEMAES AR ROZER
RARBERAF - KERE
MREABRABRLZERRE
MEREXMEZERAT -
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(B1FRIEE RS - = BE B B ALRHT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial i AOHBEERREERE ()
statements (cont’d)
13 Goodwill (cont’d) 13 &8 (]|)
(2) Impairment provision for goodwill (cont’d) Q) EERELER(E)

The recoverable amount of Yantai Longkou Andre Aefe AL ERRAHEER
Juice Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and AAE - KBLENRET AR
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. are PRRIMZELZEFEEEXR
determined based on the present value of expected RAERRBH AU E S RELATE
future cash flows. The present value of expected future HARKIRES REIRENH AME
cash flows was projected based on the next five-year F o NEBREBEEIEEI AN
financial forecast approved by management and a pre- SR KRSFEHBEEEMT%
tax discount rate of 7% (2013: 5%). The cash flows (20134 : 5%) B AT #T R K T8
beyond the five-year forecast period were assumed I BEHEHNRKIRSTTER
to be stable. Based on the estimated recoverable B BBASFUBIEE 2B F
amount, no impairment loss was recognised. The MBS REENRBREREE
key assumptions used are subject to change. E o ¥ial Y Bl & BE Ay TE 5T 45
Management believes that any adverse change in WR A BHERREEL - B
the assumptions would cause the carrying amount to TR EEARKIRERER
exceed its recoverable amount. BB BRERRITEE R

e BEEERSMREAR
RRBELAMES - AAJES
EARA R REEEBBEA

WESEE -
Key assumptions used in the present value of HREEDTENRESTE
expected future cash flows of Yantai Longkou Andre BRAR KEBELZEANERR
Juice Co., Ltd., Yongji Andre Juice Co., Ltd. and TERDAME &L =R E
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. BEXREERAREG K
included gross profit margin of 10%~24% and sales RIBERERENER
volume increase of 0%~10%, which were determined R 7 10%~24 % & E F = AN
by management based on past performance. 0%~10% B $HE B2 1L R K

RAREBER EEERERE
HATE] 2 A B0 IR S 1B L HEE 45 Lk

B8 -

152 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. (R&ItH ZEFIRTROERLD



V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

14 Deferred tax assets
(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

ltem HE

Deductible tax losses AR INESE

(2) Expiration of deductible tax losses for unrecognised

deferred tax assets

Year Fp
2014 2014 F
2015 2015
2016 2016
2017 2017 &
2018 2018 &
2019 20194
Total A&t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise ind
(BRFFFIFERS) - £REEMBAR

14 EEFRSHEE

Syl

A AfHMBERERERE(R)

(1) RGBT B E A

2014
—Z—msE

48,930,441

2013
—T—=%F

35,196,885

2) RIEFELFHEEN ATHE

HIEB R FIB IS K
2014 2013
—E—mE —ET—=%
- 11,390,356
4,927,592 4,927,592
13,798,356 13,798,356
2,009,827 2,009,827
3,070,754 3,070,754
25,123,912 -
48,930,441 35,196,885
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PR R EE

(BHRIEEAs) - R EM B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

15 Assets with restricted ownership or right of use
As at 31 December 2014, the assets with restrictions

placed on their ownership were as follows:

tem EE
Cash at bank and on hand EREd
Fixed assets EEEE
Intangible assets B AR
Total =i

o
o ik

I AfMBERERERE(R)

15 fTAREZEIRFNEE

2014612 A318 * FrA#ZE
BREIFEEBRAT :

Balance at Additions Decrease  Balance at

the beginning during during the end

of the year the year theyear  of the year

Note it FORE ARELE AERD FERBHE
Vi =1 9,354,986 - 9,354,986 -
V10 #-10 67,090,361 - 1,744,304 65,346,057
V12 #H-12 5,363,262 - 157,352 5,205,910
81,808,609 - 11,256,642 70,551,967

Assets pledged for the loans are the cash at bank and on
hand. Assets mortgaged for the loans with mortgage are

the fixed assets and intangible assets.
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16 Short-term loans

ltem
BR

Credit loans

Credit loans

Guaranteed loans
Guaranteed loans

Loans secured by mortgage

Total

ltem
BH

Loans secured by mortgage
Credit Loans

Credit Loans

Guaranteed loans
Guaranteed loans

Pledged loans

Total

[ =
mE TE DF DF OF

Fo
S S S S Sy

R 3@ 30 ok o

)

B 3 o0 3%
OF OF DF OF OF OF

i

R SE S0 mF oiF SR
]

o>

k=113
s

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

Annual interest rate

FHE

4.28~4.50%

5.90%

Base rate+4%-~10%
5.50%~6.16%
6.30%

Annual interest rate

ik

6.30%

5.80%-~6.72%

3.15%

6.00%-~6.30%
LIBOR+4.50%
(COF+2.25%~COF+3.00%

B NN,

I AfMBERERERE(R)

16 EHEF

2014
- 83
Currency Principal Exchange Rate

®E A% e fifE:

USDET 23,000,000 6.1190
RMB AR - -
RMB AR - -
RMB AR % - -
RMB AR - -

2013
—2-=F

Currency Principal  Exchange rate
RVBARH - -
RVMB AR - -

USDET 5,121,625 6.0969
RMB ARH - -

USDET 3,002,420 6.0969

USDET 4,500,000 6.0969
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RMB
ARHER

140,737,000
45,000,000
140,000,000
97,500,000

50,000,000

473,237,000

RVB
AEREE

50,000,000
104,518,659
31,226,036
440,773,190
18,305,457

27,436,050

672,269,392



B %5 R 3k B &
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsE ) - 2 BE B B ALHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

16 Short-term loans (cont’d)
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the

Group did not have past due loans (including short-term
loans and long-term loans due within one year).

For the information of assets related to pledged loans and
loans secured by mortgage, refer to Note V.15.

For the information of guaranteed loans, refer to Note X.6.

17 Accounts payable
The ageing analysis of accounts payable is as follows:
Ageing AR
Within 6 months (inclusive)  61ELAA (Z61MEA)
Over 6 months but within FEGESIEAGRED)

1 year (inclusive)
Over 1 year 1FLAE

Total &5t

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
accounts payable are recognised.
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I AfMBERERERE(R)

16 JEHER ()

2014412 A31 B k2013412
A31E - AEEED B HIRERD
fER(BEEHERN—FREH
R RAERK)

BRAEMERNERERTARE
REBREENER 280
fL-15°

BRREBERNER  2EME
LG

17 EFER

FEMRRFIRRIR AT

2014 2013
—F—mE —F—=F

53,638,759 129,135,762

4,629,647 5,013,528
8,295,159 1,046,126

66,563,565 135,195,416

BRie B B BR X ME R H R R4 FT
ﬁ o



V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

18 Employee benefits payable
(1) Employee benefits payable:

Short-term employee benefits 72 EEN
Post-employment benefits BRiERET

— defined contribution plans —RElRFaE
Total it

(2) Short-term employee benefits

ltem J8H
Salaries, bonuses, allowances 1% %6 ZRAmEL
Staff welfare BIENE
Social insurance teRRE
Medical insurance BERRE
Work-related injury insurance TIERRE
Maternity insurance EERRE
Housing Fund FERES
Labour union fee, staff and TeRENRIHELE

workers’ education fee

Total At

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisatet% =
(RESRHS 2 BB BNRET)

I AfMBERERERE(R)

18 FEAH T Hr B

(1) FEITBETF BT -

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2014 the year the year 2014
201451 A 20145128
1088 EEEM XERY 31 HEE
15,889,032 38,703,898 38,227,777 16,365,153
- 3,197,128 3,197,128 -
15,889,032 41,901,026 41,424,905 16,365,153
(o) F2EIF
Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2014 the year the year 2014
20145 20145
1R 10&# FEEM *ERD 12N ERE
2,783,504 35,372,403 34,780,799 3,375,108
13,105,528 1,596,178 1,713,575 12,988,131
- 1,065,709 1,065,709 -
- 167,470 167,470 -
- 152,244 152,244 -
- 174,339 174,339 -
- 175,555 173,641 1,914
15,889,032 38,703,898 38,227,777 16,365,153
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B %5 R 3k B &
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsE ) - 2 BE B B ALHET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

18 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

18 AR THM (8)

(3) Post-employment benefits-defined contribution plans

(3) BEBLZHEF — R EIET7AT &)

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2014 the year the year 2014

201451 A 20145128

1088 EEEM XERY 31 HEE

Basic pension insurance EAEZRR - 3,044,884 3,044,884 -
Unemployment insurance RERBRE - 152,244 152,244 -
Total = - 3,197,128 3,197,128 -

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Group did not have payment in arrears in the balance
of employee benefits payable.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group
participates in various defined contribution retirement
plans organised by municipal governments for its
staff. The Group is required to make contributions
to the retirement plans at 21.00% (2013: 20.17%) of
the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances of its
staff of last year. A member of the plan is entitled to
a pension, to be paid by the municipal governments,
equal to a fixed proportion of the salary prevailing at
his retirement date. The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with these plans beyond the annual
contributions described above.

158 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #R&adtH REFIRTRHER AT

7R 2014F 12 A 31 H & 20134
12 A31H » NEBERE T
B e 4 5 R 1 B SRR o

BREBEFBEEBIEL - ~EBR
HET2881 5 BT
ZEEBEEHIRNKE -
RNEBAERRKFTEIZBT L
FrFHE - ARF R
21.00% (2013 4F : 20.17%) {E
LK - 2T EIMNB T H R
IS i 5 BT Z SRR
RS % & B E Ll 2 BRIKE -
ANE B RR bl F AR AL -
AT B e 5T B A E H b (A
B TRKENERER -



V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

19 Taxes payable

ltem HH
Corporate income tax EFTFH
Land use tax THE R
Value added tax AR
Stamp duty ENTERE
Property tax BEM

Watercourse maintenance fee

IKFZREE

Business tax EER

City maintenance and construction tax YT A R R A
Education surcharges B Bt n
Individual income tax ELAFT1SH
Total a&t

20 Dividends payable

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(BRIFIFIS - 2B BN RBTE)

SHUMBERABERE(E)

19 EXHE

2014 2013

—E—mE =T =

6,742,852 12,014,350

454,081 236,580

6,836,458 19,117,644

20,947 20,240

297,281 108,290

58,635 =

1,055 -

426,827 (28,336)

309,558 (28,336)

36,316 24,334

15,184,010 31,464,766
20 FEfFBRFI

Pursuant to the shareholders’ approval at the annual
general meeting on 25 June 2014, a cash dividend of
RMBO0.05 per share, totaling RMB20,226,102, was
declared and paid to the Company’s shareholders for
2018.

On 12 March 2015, the Board of Directors proposed an
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMBO0.05 per Share to
the Company’s shareholders. The proposal is subject to
approval by the shareholders’ general meeting.

The Group did not have dividends payable outstanding at
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

The Group did not have individual or significant dividends
payable denominated in the foreign currency as at 31
December 2014 and 31 December 2013.

BIEN 201456 B25HFT A FARE
AFEREBBARZER  2013F
ERREAERARKE0.05T « A
B HEARY20,226,1027C E EHL
DIRTARAIRLE o

EEEN2015F312BRFBAR
7] [\ f Bk 2 2014 3R £ ix 7
BRIRERFARKE0.057T © LI
RE MRS -

R2014512 331 A K20135F 124
318 - AREEE AR HIRA]

201412 A31 B 20134 12

A318 - REEEEREAIASNE
TR o
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(RPN - 2R EBARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

21 Other payables

[tem

Related parties
Third parties

Total

22 Non-current liabilities due within one year
Non-current liabilities due within one year by category are

as follows:

ltem

Long-term loans due
within one year

The long-term loans due within one year were credit loans.

23 Share capital

2014 —E-mE
Total number of shares k{3 #81
Amount (RVB) AR £
2013 2
Total number of shares ~ B{A 4881
Amount (RMB) AR%SH

160 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #R&adtH REFIRTRHER AT

Balance at
the beginning
of the year

FOEBE

408,988,000

408,988,000

4,089,880,000
408,988,000

A AfMBEREREE(R)

21 HfEAR

2014 2013
—E—mE =T =
7,859,607 165,957
31,960,551 26,512,746
39,820,248 26,678,703

22 —FRIPHFERBEE
—FREHERBRENEBR

S

2014

—F—mF

—FRE N RBER

22,863,375

Z—FRIHNRBERRERE

Ed

TA °

PRIES

Changes during the year (+/-)
TSmO

Issue of
new
shares

BITHER

Share  Purchase of

consolidation ~ own shares Sub-total
Bir & e i Vit

- (16,388,000)  (16,388,000)

- (16,388,000)  (16,388,000)
(3,680,892,000) - (3,680,892,000)

Balance at
the end
of the year

FXRER

392,600,000

392,600,000

408,988,000
408,988,000



V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

23 Share capital (cont’d)

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 26 June
2012 and approvals from relevant government authorities,
the Company consolidated every ten shares with a par
value of RMBO0.10 each into one consolidated share with
a par value of RMB1.00 on 28 January 2013. Upon the
share consolidation, the total number of shares changed
from 4,089,880,000 shares with a par value of RMB0.10
each to 408,988,000 shares with a par value of RMB1.00
each and the Company’s registered capital remained at
RMB408,988,000.

Pursuant to resolutions passed at the annual general
meeting and the class meetings of the holders of the H
shares and Promoter shares of the Company on 26 June
2013 and 25 June 2014 as well as approvals from relevant
government authorities, the Company repurchased
16,388,000 H Shares at consideration of HKD42,806,005
(equivalent to RMB34,161,243) at Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited from 17 June 2014 to 25 July
2014. The repurchase shares had been cancelled and
deregistered. The company’s issued share capital was
reduced by the amount equivalent to the par value of the
repurchased shares. Excess of the repurchase price over
the par value of the repurchased shares were charged
against the capital reserve. After the capital reduction, the
total number of shares changed from 408,988,000 shares
to 392,600,000 shares with a par value of RMB1.00
each and the Company’s registered capital changed to
RMB392,600,000.

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(BHFIZHS) 2B AARET)

A AfMBEREREE(R)

23 IRA (&)

RIER 20124 6 A 26 H B A
REAFRERAARZHRRELE
BARBBEAZEIRREASA
B2 RBRRBBEBUTHE 2t
- R2013F 1 A28 A&+
EREmEARE0I0OTZERMNE
HAE—REKREEARK1.00T
ZEMRD - aHRNE - XA
A) B& 2N 42 58 / 4,089,880,000 (%
% ¥ Z 408,988,000 % © & A%
E1.007C ' FMEARDAARYE
408,988,000 7T °

R 20134 6 A 26 Hf2014 F
6 A 25 B BRAMKRRBFAE KA
NRIZ HAREE R ARITE A ZLE
AR ARG @B RER KRB B
JIHeEE 2 #t/fE - 8201466 A17
BE7TH25HIE ARAFIRS
%8 42,806,005 7% 7T (FHER A R #E
34,161,243 70 ) REBE AR H T
B[R AR A & B B 16,388,000 A%
BR{n o FTEIBER M E EIHE - AR
AIEBTRARZERONEE
FEFEER - B BE (B A% B A AR AN /Y
HoHBTEARTE - AR
A B IR 7K 48 %8 B 408,988,000 AR
% 392,600,000 /% + FAXTE{E 1.00
T AMEAHEZEE B AR
392,600,0007T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(BHFIEEAs) - R EM B ARKET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)
24 Capital reserve

2014
—s-mF

ltem

Share premiums
Foreign currency translation

Total

2013
=%
[tem

Share premiums

Foreign currency translation

Total

o
o ik

I AfMBERERERE(R)

24 EXD®

Balance at Additions Reductions Balance

the beginning during during at the end

of the year the year the year of the year

L Note fffiE )] FEEmM XERYD EXBH
RAREE V.23 F23 112,385,840 - 17,773,243 94,612,597
INERATEZR 9,926 - - 9,926
At 112,395,766 - 17,773,243 94,622,523
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance

the beginning during during atthe end

of the year the year the year of the year

EE FRE REEM KERD FRAE
BRARE 112,385,840 - - 112,385,840
INERATE ZR 9,926 - - 9,926
At 112,395,766 - - 112,395,766
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

25 Surplus reserve

2014
—2—mF

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

2013
—T—=%F

[tem

Statutory surplus reserve

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indic
(BA1FFIE RS - 2 BB

i

I AfMBERERERE(R)

25 BEANTE
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
EMERE EERM EXREFEH
103,144,993 1,091,714 104,236,707
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
FHERTE AREIEAN FREATE
100,061,818 3,083,175 103,144,993
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PR R R

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

26 Retained earnings

[tem

At 1January 2013
Add : Net profits for the year attributable
to shareholders of the Company
Less : Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve
Dividends payable on ordinary shares

At 31 December 2013

At 1January 2014
Add : Net profits for the year attributable
to shareholders of the Company
Less : Appropriation for statutory surplus reserve
Dividends payable on ordinary shares

At 31 December 2014

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

EH

20131 A1R
n: AERRRE AR
R}
A RRBHLE
FEfT AR

201361231 R

20141518
n: AEFERREAT
FAENEL
B RBRHAE
FEfT R

2014612 431 R

As at 31 December 2014, the distributable reserve of the
Company amounted to RMB 371,971,570 (2013: RMB

382,372,244).

164 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1tH RERETRAERLD

R O
SHMBHERREZEREE)
26 K7 BLFE
Appropriation or
Note Amount distribution rate
i+ &8 REE AR
807,109,971
127,529,640
3,083,175 10%
(1) 20,449,400
Y] 911,107,036
911,107,036
58,398,903
1,091,714 10%
() 20,226,102
@) 948,188,123

R20145F12 831 B » ARAEAIH
ETARTRR . FEHEEBELAAR
#371,971,5670 L (20134F : AR
#382,372,244 7C) °



V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

26 Retained earnings (cont’d)

(1) Distribution of dividends of ordinary shares declared

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat

(BRI - 2B BARNT)

A afMBEREEERE(R)

26 K7 EFE (&)
(1) B EBRLT

@

during the year

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting on 25 June 2014, a dividend payable
to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB0.05
per share, totalling 20,226,102 was approved.

Pursuant to the resolution passed at the annual
general meeting on 26 June 2013, a dividend payable
to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB0.05
per share, totalling RMB20,449,400 was approved.

Retained earnings at the end of the year

Surplus reserve made by the subsidiaries in 2014 and
attributable to the Company is RMB6,005,107(2013:
RMB8,804,989).

For consistency of the disclosure, the subsidiaries’
portion of surplus reserve arising in or before 2012
amounting to RMB66,956,638 is reclassified as
retained earnings in the consolidated financial
statements, and the comparative figures for surplus
reserve and retained earnings are restated. The
aforementioned restatement has no other impact
on the financial statements of the Group and the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014, the consolidated retained
earnings attributable to the Company included
an appropriation of RMB98,134,372 (2018:
RMB92,129,265) to surplus reserve made by the
Company’s subsidiaries.

B #E2014F 6 A25H IE B &
FRGHHE  ARRAEE
PR AR R B IR 2 R A - TR
ARM005TT " Hit AR
20,226,102 7T °

R IE2013F6 A26 H K R &
FAGHHE - ARF AL A
BEREERS BN 8K
AR®O005TT Kt AR®
20,449,400 7T

() FARKZEF BRI

FTRAAAFERBHNEBERE
REINEBEBATBAARKE
6,005,107 7t (20134 : AR#
8,804,989 7T) °

R - ARFEEN BT -
REBE B FAF2012F K&
LARTRTHRM BB ATEETAR
¥ 66,956,638 LI & Hr K B
HAESBEARSEFE  WE
MT R T - ElEAEE
RAA T 2014 FE B S TRR 2
Hbg 2 o

R2014F12H31 8 » A& HE
BN A ANRD BN Ep
BETARRNTF R RRA
BHATE AR 8,134,372 7T
(20134 : A R #92,129,265
JT) °

—Z—EEEH Annual Report 2014 165



B1 76 35 % [ 5T

[tem

Principal activities
Other businesses

Total

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsE R - 2 BE B B ALRHT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

27 Operating income and operating costs

I AfMBEREEERE(R)

27 EREWAMEERE

2014 2013
—Z—mFE —T-=F

Income Cost Income Cost

JHE KA (5% WA BXAR

FTEEK 838,376,877 641,170,232 887,810,436 710,073,518

H AR 6,091,736 3,706,309 5,637,490 3,330,737

Bt 844,468,613 644,877,041 893,447,926 713,404,255

Turnover primarily represents income arising from the

sales of condensed juice net of value added tax.

Other operating income primarily represents income

arising from the sales of packaging materials and so on.

[tem

City maintenance and
construction tax

Education surcharges

Price adjustment fund

Watercourse maintenance

fee

Total

166 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

28 Business taxes and surcharges

5 H
ST MR R A
=2 Gk Lipill

ERASHESD
IKMERES

REdt B ZEFNRTROBRAF

TEEBBARBARENRER
FTRAABERBEERA

Eftp TGN T B DR MBI

WAZE -

28 X E RN

2014 2013
—F—mF — =%
3,035,252 2,882,523
2,800,765 2,388,313
85,206 177,251
177,477 314,851
6,098,700 5,762,938




(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(B 15 Bt B 5) i‘?gﬁﬂfﬁz/‘%/\ﬁﬁ?é;

V Notes to the consolidated financial i AHMBEERAEER(E)
statements (cont’d)
29 Selling and distribution expenses 29 $HEER
2014 2013
ltem 15 E —E—mE =4
Freight expenses B8 35,798,158 39,784,144
Payroll and welfare T &R 1,474,382 1,292,470
Others HAth 12,669,365 14,456,161
Total A& 49,941,905 55,532,775
30 General and administrative expenses 30 EEEH
2014 2013
ltem 5B —Z—mE —FT—=4F
Payroll and welfare TEEA 15,325,517 8,760,658
Stamp duty and property tax iR EHER S 6,748,051 1,911,537
Depreciation and amortisation expenses WEBNEIHEE 5,134,482 4,906,312
Repair and motor vehicles expenses HEEFNEBEHER 1,125,855 2,247,609
Auditor’s remuneration EETRIBN S
— Audit service —Fi B 1,480,000 1,280,000
— Other services —HEMRiEE - 1,716,000
Other consulting services fees E A RISE 2,371,772 4,389,198
Others =) 18,235,637 26,110,796
Total AFr 50,421,314 51,322,110
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B1 76 35 % [ 3T

(RPN - 2R EBARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

31 Financial expenses

[tem

Interest expenses on bank borrowings
repayable wholly within five years

Interest income from deposits

Net exchange (gains)/losses

Other financial expenses

Total

32 Impairment losses

[tem
Inventories

33 Investment income
(1) Investment income by item

[tem

Income from long-term equity
investments accounted for
using the equity method
Investment income from disposal of
long-term equity investments
Investment income from
disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss

Total

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

B H
RAEFAZHHEZ

BIERNSER
EZAGOENSY N
FER (Wa),/FR
R %8R

HH

B ERENRY
BOER A WS

RERMERE
EEMRE e

RENAABEFERR
2T AEHESN
EREENFORE KR

168 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. (R& LA ZEFIRTRBERLD

A afMBEREEERE(R)

31 BEHR
2014 2013
—F—lmF —T-=F
38,961,102 28,883,261
(822,499) (1,900,468)
(1,295,724) 2,160,247
1,120,467 282,103
37,963,346 29,425,143

32 EERERL

2014 2013
~E—mFE —T—=F
2,967,908 =

33 ®REW=

(1) BE Wz 7778 B 157

Note 2014 2013
= —Z—MmF —E-=f
1,642,821 5,208,958
() - 74,201,037
1,087,855 785,186
2,730,676 80,195,181




(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicate
(BA1FFIE RS - 2 BB BALR

i

o ik
V Notes to the consolidated financial i AHHEERTREERE ()
statements (cont’d)
33 Investment income (cont’d) 33 & (F)
(2) The Group transferred 18.95% equity interest of () 2013F9H26H * & &
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food Specialties fE IR A 2 E R R BRIE D AR
China Enterprise Co., Ltd. at 26 September 2013 for 7] 18.95% #E % T DSM Food
a total consideration of RMB135,966,250. After the Specialties China Enterprise
completion of the transfer, the Group ceased owning Co., Ltd.r BREAARK
any equity interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. 135,966,250 ° M ZEEE

T RE  ARETBHEER
BRENRBEMNERARIME

AR o
34 Non-operating income 34 EEIMEA
(1) Non-operating income by item is as follows: (1) EZINRASEE [ERLT -

Note 2014 2013
ltem 1HE 2 —Z—mF —T—=F
Government grants BT B 2 2,775,500 2,508,571
Gains on disposal of non-current assets ~ IEARBIE ER E Wi 214 6,935,530
Others EHAh, 15,905 548,385
Total CEll 2,791,619 9,992,486
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

34 Non-operating income (cont’d)
(2) Details of government grants

A afMBEREEERE(R)

34 EEIMEA ()
@) BT84

2014 2013
ltem BH —2—mE —E-=fF
Agriculture grants BERB 790,000 600,000
Science and technology ~ FH%78 B ##8h

project subsidies 1,655,000 1,339,000
Subsidies for agricultural ~ EEE LS

loan interest - 400,000
Environment protection IR (R 12

award - 60,000
Others Hit 330,500 109,571
Total ast 2,775,500 2,508,571

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
received grants totaling RMB2,775,500 from various
government authorities as rewards for its contributions
in research and development of juice condensation
technology, information technology for juice production
and local agriculture industry.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Group received a total of RMB2,508,571 from various
government authorities as rewards for its contribution
to local agriculture industry, local technology
development, local economic development and local
environmental protection.

170 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #R&adtH REFIRTRHER AT

Related to HEE
assets/income  UiEsAEEE

related to income  ERUNESAER

related to income  ERULZSHERE

related to income  ERULESHERR

related to income  ERULESHERR

related to assets/ BRBE /W iEH
income

R2014FE - AEBEUWE %
18 R AT 56 P 44 B 25 A R
2,775,500 T A SR AR R (B Y R
TTRME TR - BOTEE
EEERMUAREEEERE
BWER -

R2013FE - AEEKE %
BB AT EBP B 5T AR
2,508,571 TLASREN RSB E
HEHREE  HEMRE - ¥
EHIRBRENY B hagER
BZER



35 Non-operating expenses

[tem
Penalty expenses

Donations provided
Others

Total

36 Income tax expenses

[tem

Current tax expenses for the year
based on tax law and regulations

Changes in deferred tax assets

Reversal of over-accrued income
tax made in previous years

Total

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

B H

R
£15MAM
Hiy

BH

BEOERARRRE
AEMEFMER

BIEFASTHAE S

B AR F PSR

S, 48
e

(1) The analysis of changes in deferred tax assets is set

out below:

[tem

Origination and reversal of
temporary differences

B H

Rt ERENED

(¥ RIS :‘c}ggﬁﬂfﬁiﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁ%

B NN,

A afMBEREEERE(R)

35 BEIHTH
2014 2013
—Z=—mF =4
= 1,773
120,000 11,543
50,007 120,250
170,007 133,566

36 FTiSHER
Note 2014 2013
o —Z—mE —T—=fF
249,092 12,221,813
(1) - 1,057,961
(1,097,308) (12,754,608)
(848,216) 525,166

2014
—F—mE

2013
—F—=F

1,057,961
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

36 Income tax expenses (cont’d)
(2) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and
accounting profit is as follows:

ltem =]

Profit before taxation ot AT A

Expected income tax expenses R R 25% st E 8
at a tax rate of 25% TEERFT1S

Effect of non taxable income FEEFIM AR 2

Effect of different tax rates FRBEEARTRBE
applied by certain subsidiaries Epf-Z

Effect of tax loss of tax-exempted G ERERNTE

business

REEARRERELASH

Effect of unrecognised

deferred tax assets for BEMAENEELY
deductible loss 7

Effect of utilisation of deductible {5 FA B B AR FERRIR I FT 1S B
loss, which had not been A ER A RHEE A
recognised as deferred tax 7

asset in previous years
Effect of adjusting income
tax for previous years

BEUNFERERNTE

Effect of non-deductible costs, AR A - B RF

expenses and losses BRHFE
Income tax expenses REFEHER

172 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. (R&ItH ZEFIRTROERLD

36 FISHEM (&)

A afMBEREEERE(R)

@ FrISHE R EG AN HE R
R
2014 2013
—T—mE —T—=F
57,550,687 128,054,806
14,387,672 32,013,702
(20,844,258) (21,867,867)
520,949 600,412
10,834 1,610,479
6,280,978 767,688
(281,185) -
(1,097,308) (12,754,608)
174,102 155,360
(848,216) 525,166




(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indlicated)
(Br1FFIBHI) i‘ggﬁﬂfﬁz/‘%/\ﬁ%l

V Notes to the consolidated financial i AHHEERTREERE ()
statements (cont’d)
37 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments 37 EEREEME
Details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are as EEREEME 25BN ¢
follows:
Directors’ and Salaries, Retirement
supenvisors' allowances and scheme
fees benefits in kind contributions Total
EFRER 358 Bl
Name 4 ik RMR AR HEfHR &t

014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
RMB RMB  RMB RMB  RMB RMB  RMB RMB
ZE-ME —3--F ZB-ME “3--F ZB-ME “3--F ZB-MF “T--F

AE% AR%®  AR® AR¥ ARR \RY  ARR AR%

Executive Directors; #i7Es:

Wang An Iz 50000 50000 188,281 136647 9779 9283 248060 195,930
Zhang Hi RB 50,000 50000 188281 136647 9779 9283 248,060 195930
Wang Yanhui THE 50,000 50000 100489 96818 9779 9283 160,268 156,101
Non-executive Directors: FES:

LinWu-chung AR 0 - 2080 - - - - - 2080
Liu Tsung-yi A7E 50000 50000 - - - - 50000 50,000
Independent Non-executive Directors: B3FEHTES :

Gong Fan £ 50,000 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50,000
Yu Shouneng 158 (i - 2499 - - - - - 24.9%
Qu Wen #% 1] - 080 - - - - - 08%
Chow Kam Hung Bl 50,000 50,000 - - - - 50,000 50000
Li Tongning ZRE (i) 50,000 24,99 - - - - 50000 2499
Supenisors: ES:

LiKungui SHE v - 12500 - - - - - 12500
Li Yesheng E34 (v - 5000 - - - - - 5000
Wang Chuntang f-) 30,000 30,000 - - - - 30,000 30,000
Xu Jiang L (vi) 30,000 25,000 - - - - 30,000 25000
Zhang Suoping RET (i) 30000 17,500 - - - - 30000 17500
Total At 40000 481,652 477,051 370112 20337 27849 946,388 879,613
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B %5 R 2k MY &
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

V Notes to the consolidated financial h AaHMBEERAEER(E)

statements (cont’d)

37 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (cont’d)
(i) Resigned on 21 May 2013

(i) Resigned on 26 June 2013

(i) Resigned on 21 May 2013

(

(

iv) Appointed on 27 June 2013
Resigned on 21 May 2013

(vi) Resigned on 4 February2013
(vii) Appointed on 4 February 2013
(viii) Appointed on 21 May 2013

=

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December
2013, no emoluments were paid to the directors or
supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office.

38 Individuals with the highest emoluments
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
2014, three (2013: three) are executive directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note V. 37 above. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two
(2013: two) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments FekEMmpe
Retirement scheme contributions BRIREFIFT B
Total A&t

The emoluments of the two (2013: two) individuals with
the highest emoluments are within the following band:

HKDNil-HKD1,000,000 YR T — A5 #51,000,000 7T

174  Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. #R&AdtH REFIRTRHER AT

37 EEREEME (&)

() R=ZE—=FRA-1+—HB&T
(i) RZZB—Z=FNAZTNBEHE
(i) RAZTE—=FRA=-+—HEE
vy R=E—=F A=-t+tBHBZE
(

v) RZZE—=FRA_-_+—HEHT
V) R=ZE—=F_AWBEHT
Vi) R=E—=F - ANBAKEE
Vi) A= —=FR A =+—BHEMF

R2014FEE K 20134FE + AAR]
WARMES R ES S MERE A
YERIRS|E AR B)H) SR B kB
BfE o

38 BEFAL

R2014FEE AfNZEH AL
o = A(20183F : = AN) BWTT
Ex EWECRWER 379
FUAWEE - Hfh — A (20134 : —

AN) Z a0 R
2014 2013
—E—mF —EF—=%F
285,801 250,817
18,167 18,821
303,968 269,638

Z_MUEe#H ALT(2013F: —

N)BFMEA TEHE 2R
2014 2013
—ZE—mE —E—=F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
2 2




V Notes to the consolidated financial 1 SHMERREBEEE)
statements (cont’d)

39 Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the 39 BENEARIMEENER

Company

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a profit of RMB6,012,142
(2013:RMB25,701,253), which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

BEENANRBRRZAMHFIER
FEEIAKRRRFBIHRERFBEAR
#6,012,142 7L (20134 : A R #&

25,701,253 7%) °

40 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per 40 EXEBRRENHESRKEHN

share

(1) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
consolidated net profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding:

Consolidated net profit attributable to )i NGRS G
ordinary shareholders of the Company & GHFEFE

Weighted average number of RRRIBEITEINE BAR
ordinary shares outstanding IR 15 88

Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) EXGRE(ARE R)

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares
during the reporting period.

SERER

(1) EXFR Kz

HEAGRKEAEBNRALQE
B RIRBCIRE A GHF N ERR A
XAV EITHEINE BAH IO

FOBGETE
2014 2013
ot —T-=F
58,398,903 127,529,640
401,123,563 408,988,000
0.146 0.312

A B TR RS T
BARRNEELEBK -
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(RPN - 2 HEBARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

40 Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per

share (cont’d)

(2) Weighted average number of ordinary shares is

calculated as follows:

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January
Effect of repurchase of own shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

41 Supplement to income statement
Expenses are analysed by their nature:

[tem

Operating income

Less: Changes in inventories of finished goods
and work in progress
Finished goods purchased
Raw materials and consumables used
Employee benefits expenses
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Financial expenses
Impairment losses
Others expenses

Add: Investment income

Profit before income tax

I AfMBERERERE(R)

40 EXZRUSENFESR SN

STEBRE ()
) LTBIRMMEF D EBRE
R
2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=%F
(Recalculate)
(EHFFE)
FHIE BT L BARARER 408,988,000 408,988,000
OB R% (D FRA 2 (7,864,437) =
FREBIA DI T8
401,123,563 408,988,000

M FPRBFZER

HMBRPNERRUEEDE

HH

CELION
B ERmIEERNTFEES

SN E A an A RAR
FERERATAY
BI#HMER
TEMEHER
HHER
BERMERK
HiEM

e RA NS

MEEE

2014 2013
—2—mF —B—=fF
844,468,613 893,447,926
91,610,777 58,283,925
104,387,580 91,614,518
372,826,807 509,247,842
41,901,026 39,919,744
39,469,575 37,967,957
37,963,346 29,425,143
2,967,908 =
98,521,583 79,129,172
2,730,676 80,195,181
57,550,687 128,054,806
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V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

42 Cash flow statement

(1) Proceeds relating to other operating activities

Proceeds for sale of raw materials
Proceeds for government
grants and compensation

Others Hit
Total =X

(2) Payment relating to other operating activities

INORERRER

Payment for period expenses

(38) Proceeds relating to other investing activities

KBRS

Proceeds relating to interests on deposit

(4) Proceeds relating to other financing activities

Proceeds relating to pledge deposits WEERERERE

(6) Payment relating to other financing activities

Payment relating to pledged deposits IR ERERERS

HERMHSURIINRS
B MBS B R BR (B K

(BHFRIEEATS) - 2 AR ISARH

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

42 RERBREHTR

(1) WER b 545 2% B B B e 22
z

2014 2013
—Z—MmE —T-=F
6,091,736 5,637,490
2,791,405 3,056,956
- 3,538,773
8,883,141 12,233,219

@) XIVE ML Z T8 F R H
Z

2014 2013
—Z—mE —E—=F
66,528,395 81,310,679

(3) WE|E M HE 12 &5 B B g e B
&

2014 2013
—F-mF —F-=%
822,499 1,900,468

(4) W E|E fh £ 3 7 B B IR Y B
£2

2014 2013
—Z—mE —E=F
9,354,986 28,284,813

6) XIVEMBEELEE R
&

2014 2013
—F—mEF —F-=F
- 9,354,986
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(RPN - 2 BHEBARET)

V Notes to the consolidated financial
statements (cont’d)

43 Supplement information on cash flow statement

(1) Supplement to cash flow statement

a. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from

operating activities:

[tem

Net profit
Add: Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of intangible assets
Impairment provisions for assets
Financial expenses
Investment income
Decrease in deferred tax assets
Decrease in gross inventories
Decrease/(increase) in operating
receivables
(Decrease)/Increase in operating
payables
Losses/(Gains) on disposal of
fixed assets

Net cash inflow from operating activities

b. Change in cash and cash equivalents:

[tem
Cash at the end of the year
Less: Cash at the beginning

of the year

Net (Decrease)/Increase in cash and
cash equivalents

178 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

HH

FHA

m:

RETPELNREREFE

EEEENE

B EEHE

HHER

RA W

EEFREHEERD

FRAORD

RENRKREMN
b/ ()

REfRMNBERN
(Ri4) /4

REETEERN
FRX/(kat)

BHH

REMFERGBER

BB EFIERER

Re MREEHEY

OB /1 ngg

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF

43 RERERABER

SHMBERRFEEE (W)

(1) B2 7B Rt Er

a. BFENEBAALEED

RERE -
2014 2013
—2—-mF “E—=F
58,398,903 127,529,640
37,105,004 35,565,828
2,364,571 2,402,129
2,967,908 -
37,700,477 27,582,682
(2,730,676) (80,195,181)
- 1,057,961
122,507,461 60,218,378
119,876,260 (60,742,907
(154,907,088) 61,369,400
41,134 (6,837,306)
223,323,954 167,950,624

b. RERRAEEEMFEL

B
2014 2013
—Z=—MmF T =%
191,534,476 427,710,459
427,710,459 54,251,412
(236,175,983) 373,459,047




V Notes to the consolidated financial

statements (cont’d)

43 Supplement to cash flow statement (cont’d)
(2) Information on acquisition of subsidiaries during the

year

[tem

Consideration of acquiring
subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents
paid for acquiring subsidiaries
Less: Cash and cash equivalents
held by acquired subsidiaries

Net cash paid for the acquisition

As at 15 May 2014, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest of Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology
Co., Ltd. from Yantai Anlin Fruit Co.,
cash consideration of RMB52,120,000. After the
acquisition, Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology
Co., Ltd. became a subsidiary of the Group.

For non-cash assets and liabilities held by the acquired

subsidiaries, refer to Note VI.1(3).

(3) Details of cash and cash equivalents

[tem

Cash at bank and on hand
Including: Cash on hand
Bank deposits available
on demand

Closing balance of cash and
cash equivalents

I SHMBHERR

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicatex
(RIFIFIAIN - 2B BN RBTE)

B & ()

43 RERERABER (F)
@) REFRFF R AR5

2013
—ET—=F

2014
IHH —E—mE
BEFRARINER

52,120,000

BEFRARZ RS
ML ZEEY 52,120,000

B FRRFAERRE
MR EEY 1,247,876

BB TFARS RS
Pt 50,872,124

Ltd. at a

R2014F5 8158 » REE A
BREARE 52,120,000 TTiE
BB LMRERBR QR
BHRELZENEREFER
AR A R100% & - R UEE

TR RERBNEBERER
MEERARKASNEEZF

RA] e

RS TRARMNIIFREEE
MEfE  28KFE510)

@) HEFIHEEYLIEK

2014 2013
—Z=—mF —E—=4F
RBe
Heh: BFIRE 133,843 173,013
AIEERF R SR

RITIER 191,400,633 427 537,446

FRAE MRS EED
FREE 191,534,476 427,710,459
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Vi

NOTE O C
B %5 3R 2k Y &
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsT ) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

Change of consolidation scope

1 Business combinations involving enterprises not
under common control

(1)

@

180 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Business combinations involving enterprises not under
common control during the year

Time of Costof  Proportion  Method of

equity equity of equity equity

acquisition  acquisition  acquisition  acquisition

ik ik i it

BARE  BREE  BRUA  BEAA

()

Anyue Andre Lemon Industry 15 May

Technology Co., Ltd. 2014 52,120,000 100% Cash
RERENEGES 145

HEERAA 5A158 52,120,000 100% R

Anyue Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.
is a company registered in Ziyang, Sichuan Province
on 28 February 2011, and is principally engaged in
manufacturing and sales of lemon juice and related
products. Before the acquisition, its ultimate holding
company was Yantai Anlin Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

Combination cost and goodwill

The Group acquired the equity interest of Anyue
Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd. at an
aggregated cash consideration of RMB52,120,000 in
2014. The goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of the acquisition over the Group’s interests in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Anyue
Andre Lemon Industry Technology Co., Ltd.

RE B ZEFNRTROBRAF

-
/N

SfEEHEE

1 FRE—-EHTEESH

(1) F LR IR —1EH T B

BOf °

Acquiree-from acquisition date to

31 December 2014
BRERE
014512831 ARRRA

Basis of acqui- Net cash

Acquisition  sition date Net profit inflow

date determination Income (loss) (outflow)

REAH B Bt

WER  WEGE KA (B#R)  RAGEL)
15May  Change of

2014 registration 11,564,533 (759,297) (891,029)
N4 IEER

5A15H B 11564533 (759,297) (891,023)

@

RELZENEREXMRER
ANRIER 201152 A28 H#EM
NEEBMRINAR E2
EEBOT AR EMMEEM
HE - ERAHZA - TER
EREREXRPHAER QAN
REREBRAR BB E ZHRE
BRRF] e

B R

R2014F & AEBE A
R 52,120,000 7T U5 B 5K 2N Uk
BT REREMNERERERR
BERAAMER - WE AR
B PIRRH R B R IENE
BEEREAR AR A PR
E BEAREENEEAH
ZELEMNBEEEEREAR
NEIEENEE -



Vi

Change of consolidation scope (cont’d)

1

Business combinations involving enterprises not

under common control (cont’d)

(3) Identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree at the

acquisition date

Assets
Cash at bank and on hand
Receivables
Inventories
Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Construction in progress

Liabilities
Payables

Net assets acquired

BE:
FEUFRIR
TE
BIEEE
BIVEE
TR

aE:
FEfTRRIA

FEE

If there is an active market for the above identifiable

assets, the quoted prices in the active market are used

to establish their fair value; if there is no active market,

their fair value is estimated based on the market prices

of the same or similar types of assets which have an

active market; if there is no active market for the same

asset or similar types of assets, valuation techniques

will be used to determine the fair value.

For the above identifiable liability, the payable amount

or the present value of the payable amount is its fair

value.

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicate <
(BRHFRIEEFS) - :‘C_\gﬁ“ﬁzﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%@ !

N EtHEENEREE)

1 FE—EH T XSG (8

Q) BEETREE A AR EE

N0l =P
Fair value Carrying
amount
IRERE LREE
1,247,876 1,247,876
3,405,072 3,405,072
29,151,614 29,151,614
100,572,950 104,490,117
18,300,970 23,740,730
2,035,146 2,035,146
115,017,154 115,017,154
39,696,474 49,058,401

LA HRAETEERTS
- RIEER TS T R E R
RSB FEEERD
5 - 8RB E B

BHise - 28

7] 48 =K 28 {2

BEMNMSEREEEAAE
B HREXBUEELTE
FERBRMEH - AIFRAMBER
miEEE A AEE -

PRI HRABERREN SR
KENSENREER/EAR

EBE-
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B 1 RIS

Vi

P B BARET)

Change of consolidation scope (cont’d)

2 The liquidation and cancellation of subsidiaries

N EtHEENEREE)

2

EEBEET LT

During November 2014, the Group liquidated and
deregistered a subsidiary, Xuzhou Andre Pomace
Products Co., Ltd., the subsidiary’s assets and liabilities
had been transferred to Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
based on the book value. Therefore Xuzhou Andre
Pomace Products Co., Ltd. no longer included in the
scope of consolidation. The liquidation has no significant
effect on the financial position of the Group.

VII. Interests in other entities

R2014F 11 B+ AEBEBEWE
HWT—RFRA - BINLEFRE
HRBRAR - ZTARNHEEE
EXAGEERBERILIRAEEE
THRMLEBAREABRRAE - &
It BMNZEFRERGBER AR
THWAGHEER  BFEHAEE
MR AREEEATE -

+t EHRtERPHER

1 EFARPHER
(1) BiBK L LI EF 7 B iF A

1 Interests in subsidiaries
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or
investment
Regis- Regis-
tration Business tered  Business
Full name Type place nature capital scope
HRMR
W i ER4B REER ihEs  @eEE
Baishui Ancre Juice ~ Company Limted ~ Shaanxi, PRC Manufactre ~ USD17,000,000  Manufacture ofjuice, it and vegetable
Co, Lid. (Sino-foreign and sake of Deverage, and related products, and iron
joint venture) condensed juice packaging; and sae of own products
HARENRAT ARREAT  REMEY BaRt TI000ET  HERETEET REHHREE
ERAA (hoha) EEREE EQfEgnesn HeaEEn
YantaiLongkou Ancre CompanyLimted ~ Shandong, PRC~~ Manufactre ~ USDI2110.000  Manufacture of uice:
Jice Co, Ltd (Sino-foreign and sale of and sale of own products
joint venture) condensed uice
feBNREHRT AREAAT  DALRE BERT I0M0ET  HERET UREEEER-
HHERAT (ihaE) EERHE
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FLa]
Closing
balance of
other items
thatin
substance Group Group
from net share- voting
Year-end investment holding rights
actual ina percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
investment  subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN code
RELRAS 1] L]
FATERE nR EA
FXER  MRATA KA HA AR
i1 ] (%) () Yhx ERERREE
USD17,000,000 = 100%  100% Y 732064478
17000000%7 - 100%  100% = 730066478
USD12,110,000 - 0% 100% Y 737209715
12,10000%% - 100%  100% R 731209715



VII. Interests in other entities (cont’d)

1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or

+ EHEftERPHOER(])

1 EFQFPEES(F)
(1) BERT HIREF T N RFH

investment (cont'd) FoE](E)
Closing
balance of
ofher tems
thatin
substance Group Group
from net share- voting
Regis- Regis- Year-end investment holding rights
tration Business tered  Business actual ina percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
Fullname Type place nature capital  scope investment  subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN) code
RELRAH 52 L]
FATERE R a2
iR FXER  MRATA L] tA AR
W i ER4B REER ifEs  @eEE i1 ] (%) () Hhx ERERREE
Xuzhou Andre Juice ~ Company Limtted  Jiangsu, PRC. Manufocture ~ USDA0,000,000  Manufacture ofjice, fruit and vegetable USD10,000,000 - 100% 100% Y T4313425-3
Co, Lid. (Sino-foreign and sake of everage, and relatedt products; sale of own
joint venture) condensed juice products; and manufacture of ron barrelfor
Juicg outer packaging
(EENRET  AREEAT  HATHE BaRt 10000000 HERET HHRAEER 10,000,000 - 0% 100% R O4313459
ERAA (hoha) EERE T EEEER BERARRER. 9
Andre Juice Co, Ltd. - CompanyLimtted  Brtish Virgin Investment USD50000  Investment holding 1SD50,000 = 100% 100% Y =
Islands holding
PENRTERAA RREAAN  ZBEER HERR 00 RERR 50000 - 0% 100% R -
i T 9
North Ancre Juice ~ Company Limted ~ The United States ~ Sale of USD10000  Saleof condensed juice USD10,000 = 100% 100% Y =
(USA) Inc. of America condensed juice
FARENRA (KE) SREEAR XA BaRt 1000 BEREE- 10000 - 0% 100% R -
RiERAR e # i
Dalian Ancle Juice ~ Company Limited ~ Liaoning, PRC Manufacture ~~ RMBB0,000,000°  Manufacture and sale of all kinds of fut RMBB0,000,000 = 100% 100% Y 950042487
Co, Ltd. and sale of and vegetable beverage; biological
condensed juice comprehensive Ltization of apple essence,
vegetable and pomace; and purchase of
agricutural and sioeling products (excluding
grain); and manufacture of iron packaging;
imports and exports of goods and technology.
RERENRET  AREEAR  dEEEE BaR 80000000 EEBERERBHM BRER 80,000,000 - 0% 100% R OB0000487
ERAT EERHE N iR RenthsaTR NRET

RAER(PRERME RfFEsiRkm
SMREER O -
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ok
VII. Interests in other entities (cont’d) + TEEMFEDHES ()
1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d) 1 EFARFHES(E)
(1) Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or (1) BBRL IR EZE T NRZ 7
investment (cont'd) FoE](E)
Closing
balance of
ofher tems
thatin
substance Group Group
from net share- voting
Regis- Regis- Year-end investment holding rights
tration Business tered  Business actual ina percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
Fullname Type place nature capital  scope investment  subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN) code
RELRAH 52 L]
FATERE R a2
iR FXER  MRATA L] tA AR
W i ER4B REER ifEs  @eEE i1 ] (%) () Hhx ERERREE
Binzhou Andre Juice ~ CompanyLimited ~ Shandong, PRC ~ Manufactre ~ USD12,100000  Menufacture of beverage, high natural apple  USD12,100,000 = 100% 100% Y 751767338
Co, Ltd. (Sino-foreign and sake of 8ssence, and ron packaging; biological
Joint venture) condensed juice comprehensive tization of pomace, and other
extended products; winter jujube storage;
sale of own products.
BAREHRH AREEAR  GELRE BERT  NI0M0FT  AERH BRARERER BHERR. 12100000%7 - 0% 100% R OT5I5I3%8
FRAR (fihaE) EERHE FEnensaBRMERER
ARER BEANTER
Yantai Andre Juice  CompanyLimted ~ Shandong, PRC ~ Menufacture USD4832,000  Manufacture and processing of alkinds of -~ USD4,832,000 = 100% 100% Y 730667886
Co, Ltd. (Sino-foreign and sale of frut pulp and related products, and sale of
Joint venture) frut pulp own products; wholesale and import and
exoortof uice and pulp
fezgiRtin HREEAD  4ELRE % IB000ET 4B NIZBIRRERAEER: 4B000ET - 0% 100% 7730667886
BRAA (dihaE) EERHE THEREER (SRART
FROMARELNSE -
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VII. Interests in other entities (cont’d)

1 Interests in subsidiaries (cont’d)
(2) Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations

Fullname

2

Longkou Ancre
Bio-feedstuf
Co, Lid.
EOREHENEH
RRAR

Baishui Andre
Bio-feedstuff
Co,, Lid.
BAREREEH
RRAR

Yongji Andre Juice
(o, Lid.

KEREHRT
RRAT

Anyue Andre Lemon
Industry Technology
Co,, Lid.

PEEEHRRES
HiFERAT

not under common control

Type

Company Limted
(Sino-foreign
Joint venture)

BRAEAT
(ihaE)

Company Limfted
(Sino-foreign
Joint venture)

BRAEAT
(i)

Company Limfted
(Sino-foreign

Joint venture)

BREMAT
(stag)

Limited Gompany

BREFAT

Regis-
tration
place

ERMR

SRR

Shandong, PRC

FALRY

Shaan, PRC

ERES

Shanxi, PRC

ALY

Sichuan, PRC

A&

Business
nature

1 |

Manufacture
and sal of bio-
feedsiuff
L)
EERHE

Meanufacture
and sae of
bio-feedstuf

L)
EERHE

Production
and sale of

condensed juice

RERT
HERHE

Production
and sale of ice

RERT
HERHE

Regis-
tered
capital

ELE

USD500,000

50000057

USD500,000

50000057

USD12960000

12.960000%7C

RNB50,000,000

50,000,000
AR

Business
SCope

Manufacture of bio-feedistull and related
packaging; and sae of own products

FENRRERRERRRREE
HEREER:

Manufacture of bio-feedistul and relatedt
packaging; and sale of own products

ki e
HEREER:

Manufacture and sale offuit and vegetable
juice and beverage, high natural apple
essence, and biological comprehensive
Utization of pomace

bR HERRRAT AR

BERMERER  RENENEATI

Plant, manufacture and sale of lemon;
manufaciure and sale oflemon of,lemon
essence, orange ol and orange essence

BEEE HEEE JEHEERD
BRER BN BER.

+ EHEftERPHOER(])

1 EFQFPEES(F)
©) FER—#E# TR FEE GHERF AT

FARA
Closing
balance of
ofher tems
thatin
substance Group Group
from net share- voting
Year-end investment holding rights
actual ina percentage percentage Consolidated Organistation
investment  subsidiary (%) (%) (YIN) code
RELRAH 52 L]
FATERE R a2
FXER  MRATA L] tR RER
i1 ] (%) () Hhx ERERREE
USD500,000 - 100%  100% Y 767479244
S00000%7 - 100%  100% & o794
USD500,000 - 100%  100% Y 760567476
S00000%7 - 100%  100% & T6056747-6
USD12960,000 - 100%  100% Y 79638415
12960000%7 - 100%  100% & 79638415
RMB50,000,000 - 100%  100% Y 569716959
50,000,000 - 100%  100% & 560715959
N
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VII. Interests in other entities (cont’d) + EEMFEREPMHER (E)
2 Interests in joint ventures 2 HEEELEPER
(1) Joint ventures (1) BELE -
Accounting

Group Group

Related ~ treatmenton Strategic to

Name of Entity Place of Legal Business Registered shareholding voting  investments in the Group’s

investee type registration  representative  nature capital (%) rights (%)~ joint venture activities?

LI HaELR 435

LN LELTE S REme EHRE

HREELER RE i) EARE RERE ifEs RRUMO)  RERAC) EER# ARHRY

Yantai Tongi Beverage Limited company ~ Shandong, ~ Wang An Manufactureand ~ USD14,641,200 50% 50% Equty

Industries Co,, Ltd. (Sino-foreign PRC sale of beverage method no
joint venture)

BRONMHIZERARD  AREAAA  PEALRE IX FHEEREE 1464120057 50% 50% B% i
(hiha%)

(2) Key financial information of the joint venture: ) EELENEENBES

The key financial information of the Group’s joint
venture are set out in V.9(3), which were adjusted for
fair value adjustments at the time of acquisition and
the differences in accounting policies of the Group.

AEEEECENERMHBIE
BRMFER 9@ F IR - Z
BERENETRMBEERE
BERER AR BE/SERNT
EUARG— S BORARRKRD

VIIL.Risks related to financial instruments I\ HEeRT RIEmMasE b
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use AEEEREEHTHESES/RT
of financial instruments in the normal course of the Group’s BEMR  FE8HE

operations, which mainly include:

—  Credit risk — ERRR

- Liquidity risk — mENEREE

— Interest rate risk — FIRERR

- Foreign currency risk — EXER

—  Other price risk — HAbER R
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

VIII.Risks related to financial instruments

This note mainly presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks and their sources, their
changes during the year, and the Group’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risks, and their
changes during the year.

The Group aims to seek the appropriate balance between
the risks and benefits from its use of financial instruments
and to mitigate the adverse effects that the risks of financial
instruments have on the Group’s financial performance.
Based on such objectives, the Group’s risk management
policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management
policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The internal
audit department of the Group undertakes both regular and
ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures.

(1) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to cash at bank, receivables,
debt investments and derivative financial instruments
entered into for hedging purposes and other financial
assets. Exposure to these credit risks are monitored by
management on an ongoing basis.

The cash at bank of the Group is mainly held with well-
known financial institutions. Management does not foresee
any significant credit risks from these deposits and does
not expect that these financial institutions may default and
cause losses to the Group.

1 75 35 % 4

(BHRFEHS) - 2EREMLBALES

I\ B&RT R EE (1)

X E Bt £t Bk O & E K
RENMEAFRENEL  RRE
EER  BERABEALGERBRA
TEREERFHLENE(E

AEERERREEN B ERERR
st 2 MBS EE )T & - K3
1B Bl e 1 AN SR B B 7 AR O T A
FE - ARZRREEBR  AKE
£ I 7€ [\ B B 3R R R DA % Bl M 0 AT AR
SEFMEROER - RTEEENRR
A] 5% 2K 3 3% AT AR A R ER R A2
f MW?$$@WH @K o ARER

EHRENELEREERRRE
@W%%ﬁ%% VA 518 M3k
AEBELEERHHNE - AEEHRA
EBRET PPt E ik BE M Am A BB 4
HESHBITREEN S EREEBR °

(1) FRERRE

ERRAR  BEEBTAN—HT
REBITERT - B S — T REMB
BRHER - AEENERRRET
EREEBES  BUGFIA - EF
BREMASERBMRINITE TR
TAZ -EEESRESRELRE
RO -

AEEBRRSUIMNEBESER
FRINMERA RN SRS - 812
BRARETFEEANERRAR
BT ERAY T ENMGEARE
AR -
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VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d)

In respect of receivables, the risk management committee
of the Group has established a credit policy under
which individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers to determine the credit limit and terms
applicable to the customers. These evaluations focus
on the customers’ financial position, the external ratings
of the customers and their bank credit records where
available. Receivables are due within 180 days from the
date of billing. Debtors with balances are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

In monitoring the Group’s credit risk, customer data are
analysed by the Group according to some factors, such
as ageing and maturity date.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry, country or area in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk arise primarily when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the balance sheet
date, 63% (2013: 64%) of the total accounts receivable
and other receivables were due from the five largest
customers of the Group. In addition, the debtors of the
Group that are neither past due nor impaired mainly relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.
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I\ B&RT R EE (1)

(1) FRER (&)

HRNEEHE - AREEREEER
B REBERBERSE TERK
R HEFPETERMEAETE R
HEEREAMR - ERM[ER
REBEEP BN - IMEBRFAR K
RITIEMER (WA RIBE) - BREMY
FEW RIS B ARRE R 180RA
2H - EUGRIRB SR BB A S
BRFBEMBREESRE - A7
WESE—PHERBEE - &R
BRT » AEETGE2REPREM)
i e

REEASENERRR - A&E
RIRARE - 2R SRR AKE
HEPERETON

AEBERRBREERZEERTS
BERFMNTE  MTREFHE
RITE SRR MR - Bt EANE
ARBEFHELEZREAEE
FEHEREFHENEREIE -
REEAFBXRBE  AEBMATAX
B B FE UG A 7N 5 [ FE U AR KRN
A fEGR B EE R 63% (2013 FF
64%) 5 AN - AREE RE Hd R
BB B FE WK IE & B2 BT HR D 4
BURBNRZEFBRL -



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) :
(BERIZHS 2B aARET) L

VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(1) Credit risk (cont’d)

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted
on a recognised stock exchange, except where entered
into for long-term strategic purposes, and counterparties
have equivalent or higher credit ratings than the Group.
Transactions involving derivative financial instruments are
made with counterparties of sound credit standing and
with- whom the Group has a signed netting agreement.
Given their high credit standing, management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset, including
derivative financial instruments, in the balance sheet.
Except for the financial guarantees given by the Group as
set out in Note X.6 the Group does not provide any other
guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the balance sheet date is disclosed

in Note XII.3.

(2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company
and its individual subsidiaries are responsible for their own
cash management, including short term investment of
cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash, readily realisable marketable securities
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

Notes to the

inancial Statement

Bt 35 R B

il

I\ B&RT R EE (1)

M

2

=RER (&)
AEE—RREREREGERMS
VRS (REEBRERI) - MA
RSB HERFTRAGRHER
SEAER - RRZ P MITES R
TE RPUHBAEEGRIFNER
ArR - WA B IRAKERI SRR
Bk - ERRZHTTHERFR
Rif  AEEEREITAPR S
BHeBEETER

IR B PR B B o (5 FR R Bt B
REERABRTEESREE (R
ETESRIE)NERSHE - B
MizE+ - 6FTE RS BIEL MBI
FERIN - NEBSAIREEMEM
AR AEEAZEARBEOE
R NEEABBRAM LAMHE
R K BN {= R O 2 M
= 3IE -

B R
mEBMEER - RIECEERITAR

NHREIHMEBREENTT AE
BNEBRBELESEROER
ARBAREFAAEEAINAS
ERTIF BRASENKNERKR
ENBEEFRUNENEARSS
KON RAEFRERER B K L TR R IR M
R BREGAARESSHIL
) e REBRBKEE HIEER
HANERHNRBDESHTR  URE
BN ERIBRNMRTE - UHERE
FRMHIR S RHEMN A HEER 23R
MEEBES  FRNESTIECRK
BAGRIRHEHNERES - A
REPNBRPNRBDESFR
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VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(2) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities, which are based
on contractual cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay:

I\ B&RT R EE (1)

(2) REERBS (&)
AEEREEABRANSREE
MeEBERATENERBRSR
= (PIERERFIE (IR ZEF
KAPZ12 A31 AWIRITHIR)TE
BFB) K FIERE L EAR - AR
ERIMNEEABOT -

2014 Contractual undiscounted cash flow
“I-MERAANARRLAR

More than
1 year but
less than

2years

1552E

Carrying
More than amount at
2years but balance
less than More than sheet date
5 years 5years Total BERRR
2555 SENL it EERE

- - dATMS4 473287000
- - 93,004,602 93,004,602
- 1,111,000 1,111,000 692,453

Within

1 year or

on demand

1R

tem B8 KRS
Financial iabilties SHAR

Short-dem oans i 484,744,304

Accounts payeble and other payables ENESRAMEGE 93004602

Long-ter payebes REERT -

Net amount ait 577,838,926

- 1,111,000 578940926 567,024,085
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VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(2) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

I\ HeRT RAEMEMBE (1)

(2) BN E (4])

2013 Gontractual unciscounted cash fow

I oERIARRRERE

Camying

Within More than More than amount at

1yearor 1 year but 2 years but balance

on demand Iess than less than More than sheet date

15/ 2years 5years byears Tota EERRR

tem L ERER 15508 PER5E SENE ait FHER
Financial liabilties SHAR

Short-term loans oL 689,046,962 - - - 689,946,962 672,259,392

Accounts payable and other payables BABSREMRMEE 148,155,719 - - - 11719 148185719

Non-curent abies cue vithin one year -ERIEERDERE 8819 - - - 8879 2863375

Long-term payables REERT - - - 1,111,000 1,111,000 655,420

Net amount H] 861,381,474 - - 1,111,000 862,492,474 843,933,906

(3) Interest rate risk

Interest-bearing financial instruments at variable rates and
at fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest risk, respectively. The Group
determines the appropriate weightings of the fixed and
floating rate interest-bearing instruments based on the
current market conditions and performs regular reviews
and monitoring to achieve an appropriate mix of fixed
and floating rate exposure. The Group does not enter into
financial derivatives to hedge interest rate risk.

(3) FIZ=mEk

BIEMEMFBHMERNTSSEBT
AN plEASEmE R BEMNX
R KBRS REFN KRR - KNEKE
REBETSIREFRORTE B 7E MR 6%
BAETAMLE  WiEBEERE
B B EE SR M 455 1 B Y B E AF B A

RTEMAR - AEEWRATES
BT RSO RE R o
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VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d) I\ HBemT AERSRBE ()

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d) () A=m b ()
(@ As at 31 December, the Group held the following @ AEER12A31 BRFBEHETE
interest-bearing financial instruments: SRITEMT :
Fixed rate instruments: BEEFELFBT A :
2014 2013
—3-mE 2
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ftem 1BH Bt i Bl i
Financial assets RHEE
- Avallable-for-sale financial assets -IEHESREE 9.50% 10,000,000 = =
Financial liabilities SRR
- Short-term loans — R 4.28%-6.30% (333,287,000  3.15%~6.72% (626,517,885
Total At (323,237,000 (626,517,885
Variable rate instruments: FHFESMTA :
2014 2013
-3-mE i 3
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ltem B EflE &8 £z fi
Financial assets HEE
- Cash at bank ~RER 0.10%~3.00% 191,400,633 0.10%-~3.25% 436,892,432
Financial iabilities AR
~Short-term loans ~REER Base rate rise (140,000,000)  COF+2.25%-~3.00% (45,741,507)
EEfiRLy LIBOR+4.50%
4%-~10%
- Non-current iablties due ~— R
Within one year FBAG - - LIBOR+3.75% (22,863375)

Total ) 51,400,633 366,267,550
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VIIl.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(3) Interest rate risk (cont’d)
(b) Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2014, it is estimated that a
general increase of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increased the Group’s equity by RMB192,752 (2013:
RMB1,381,078), and net profit by RMB192,752 (2013:
RMB1,381,078).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the net profit and equity that
would arise assuming that the change in interest rates
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk at the balance sheet date. In respect
of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by
the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the net profit and equity is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for the previous year.

I\ B&RT R EE (1)

(3) AREk ()
(b) BUEMEDHT

MR2014F12 831 H » FEH
BETENBERT  BEMEX
LA EER RSB AREE
% R 7 32 0 A R 192,752
JL(20184F : 1B N A R ¥
1,381,0787T ) + JFFEE IMA
R¥192,752 70(2013 4F : &0
AE#1,381,0787T) °

HREERBERAKAENER
SEEEARBENERERS
ERTE  LAgURMEDHTH
HFEFE R IR RN T E R
BREEERBERAMEKHEE
HE)  RERAN RS SR
TRETEHTERNTE -
HREERBERAKAN &
AEBHBRESREFERAR
RUF BRI RIEOTAET A - £t
SURNME DA B RE MR
BENTER LA REBHYH
REEGLEENNEERIBA
VRHE - E—FENDNER
RV RER AN IIA ©
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(4) Foreign currency risk

In respect of cash at bank and on hand, accounts
receivables and payables, short-term loans and other
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
other than the functional currency, the Group ensures that
its net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

(@) As at 31 December, the Group’s exposure to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies is presented in
the following tables. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi,
translated using the spot rate at the balance sheet
date. Differences resulting from the translation of the
financial statements denominated in foreign currency

are excluded.

[tem

Cash at bank and on hand

Accounts receivable

Accounts payable

Other payable

Short-term loans

Non-current liabilities due
within one year

Net balance sheet exposure

VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

5H

i
L AP
R
—FRE|H
FRBAME

S S R

7

=

AERBRMOFE

REEHZEFNRTROBRAF

I\ B&RT R EE (1)

(4) EXRE kK

HNTRAGERAMIEENER
Bd - UGBTI TR - 25
EREINEEEMEE - MRER
SHINRBIEN  ARESELE
FHEMIGE R BERINE - PARERAS
FFERR R O M4 A AT R K o

(@ AEERIINEEEABIERE *
ZPAETTIER - R12A31 B
EILAE A ETE B SME R
AT o HRZIRERE - BEbg
A S EAARESR - A&
EAERBEANHEXITHE - )
MBRITEEZAABEEN -

2014 2013

—Z-mE ZE-=F
Balance at  Balance at Balance at Balance at
foreign RMB foreign RMB
currency  equivalent currency equivalent
=T HREARE EnT HEARK
1] 1] EAER BAER
19,636,773 120,157,414 11,852,407 72,262,943
18,677,982 114,290,574 19,643,468 119,764,260
(3,989,861) (24,413,959)  (1,148,881)  (7,004,613)
(5,096) (31,182) - -
(23,000,000) (140,737,000) (12,624,046) (76,967,543
- - (3,750,000) (22,863,375
11,319,798 69,265,847 13,972,948 85,191,672




(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indisatet%
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VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(b) The following are the exchange rates for Renminbi

against foreign currencies applied by the Group:

Average rate
FiyES

2014
—=—mF

UsD = 6.1454

Sensitivity analysis

Assuming all other risk variables remained constant,
a 5% strengthening of the Renminbi against the US
dollar at 31 December would have decreased the
Group’s equity and net profit by the amount shown
below, whose effect is in Renminbi and translated
using the spot rate at the year-end date:

As at 31 December 2014 2014%12A31H
USD X7
As at 31 December 2013 2013412 A31 H
uSsSD =

A 5% weakening of the Renminbi against the US
dollar at 31 December would have had the equal but
opposite effect on them to the amounts shown above,
on the basis that all other variables remained constant.

1 75 3

I\ B&RT R EE (1)

(4) EZ k(&)
()$%@i%%AE%%%%W

ERSFT :

Reporting date

mid-spot rate

HE HPRIES
2014 2013
—EmE —ZT—=%F

6.1190 6.0969

(c) BN

ﬁ TE B BEE 3= LA SN i H A [ B 42

T REBMN12H31HA
REHETHERESHFEAR
EEFHE 5% 1 B BUR R a5
FHER D ERAT o fhF2

REEABRAMNPEXINE
RAREIR
Equity Net profit
BRES BHE
2,597,469 2,597,469
3,194,688 3,194,688

M12831H ' EREEMES
RETEORIRT - ARKY
ETHEXRSEHFEARBEME
5% 1% B B R A s A8 25 )
{EF ERFI RS EEARRES
MAER °

—Z—EEEH Annual Report 2014 195




NO LE U C
B %5 3R 3k Y &E
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsT ) - 2 R B B ALHT)

VIII.Risks related to financial instruments (cont’d)

IX

(4) Foreign currency risk (cont’d)
(c) Sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

The sensitivity analysis above assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the balance sheet date. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of the
financial statements denominated in foreign currency.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for the
previous year.

(5) Other price risks
Other price risks include commodity price risk.

Fair value

The following table presents the fair value information and the
fair value hierarchy, at the end of the current reporting period,
of the Group’s assets and liabilities which are measured at
fair value at each balance sheet date on a recurring or non-
recurring basis. The level in which fair value measurement
is categorised is determined by the level of the fair value
hierarchy of the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire fair value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

Level 1 inputs: unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
that are observable at the measurement date
for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than Level 1 inputs that are either
directly or indirectly observable for underlying
assets or liabilities;

Level 3 inputs: inputs that are unobservable for underlying
assets or liabilities.
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(o) BURMEDHT (B)
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HAERRR B AR ERRR -
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Notes to the Financial Statement
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IX Fair value (cont’d) h DAREBEIES (B)

1 Fair value of assets and liabilities measured at fair 1 -UAREEFENEENEEN
value at the end of the year FRANEE
As at 31 December 2014, the Group only has available- R2014%12 A 31 H » KEBE(ER
for-sale financial assets amounting to RMB10,000,000 BRHHESREE  ZomBEE
which were measured at fair value under Level 1 (2013: BRUAE—BXAXARBEFS=EMNE
nil). B - #5 AR 1,000 7t (2013

FfE) -

The following table presents the carrying value of financial TRIIRTARAREBEFENE R
instruments measured at fair value as at 31 December EETAER2014F12A31H &
2014 and 31 December 2013. The carrying amounts 2013412 A31 HRREEE - 1
of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost or 201412 31 8 Kk 2013%F 12 A
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair 318 - AEENEm T AKREEE
values as at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013. HARBE AEEAEER -

31 December 31 December

2014 2013
Asset BE Note  BfisE —E—MmEF =%
Available-for-sale financial assets FIftHESFEEE V.7 A7 10,000,000 -
Reasons for transfers between different levels, 2 -BENAAEBESEER  £F
and the policy of determining the timing of those ABREREBR2EERN  BR
transfers for items under the recurring fair value R E R E RN BUR
measurements
During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no 2014 E - AEBE Ll #5482
transfers between different levels of the Group’s above AABEFENEENBESEXR
assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on a ZEDEBEEER - REBREE
recurring basis. The Group recognises transfers between M SRR EARERSE R
different levels at the end of the current reporting period Z [ERYEEIR o

during which such transfers are made.

Current changes in valuation techniques and the I ERFRBENGERNESERE
reasons EFRAE

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were no 20145 E - AEE LiliiF &M
changes in valuation techniques for the recurring and non- BN R EBEFEMFERANGHE
recurring fair value measurements. RfiT I REEEFTE -
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X Related parties and related party transactions

1 Information on subsidiaries of the Company
Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
Note VII.1.

2 Information on joint ventures
For information about the joint ventures of the Company,
refer to Note VII.2.

3 Information on other related parties

Name of other related parties

RtARS B

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IIRZENEEERAF

President Enterprises (China) Investment Co., Ltd.
G—0E(PE)REFRATF

Chengdu President Enterprises Food Co., Ltd.
KEG—rEFRmBRRA

Guangzhou President Enterprises Co., Ltd.
EMG—0EERAA

China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited
China Pingan Investment Holdings Limited
Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

Donghua Fruit Industry Co., Ltd.

Yantai Andre Yangma Resort Co., Ltd.
ReBFELRENERNERAR

Yantai Andre Real Estate Development Co., Ltd
RezENEHERERRAR

Yantai Kunlong Spring Resort Co., Ltd.
WERERREBRAR

Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

e ZiRMRBRNERAR

Yantai Xinping Jianan Engineering Co., Ltd.
R TRRIRERAR
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T+ BBRHEREBRZS

1 RQFWFARER
ARBNFREABEE2RME
t N 1 o

2 ARFWEEEEBR
AEENARLLEEHEELA
E-2e

3 HtbEB L ER

Related party relationship
B R R

An entity which has significant influence over the Group (i)
HASBERS AT ENDE()

An entity which has significant influence over the Group ()
HAEBEERS AT ENTR()

An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group
HEAKE 5% A ERDHRE

An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group
FHEAKE 5% A LDt

An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group
FEAKES% A ERHaRE

An entity which holds more than 5% shares of the Group
HEAKE 5% A ERDHRE

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IREZEFIREERARNFAA

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IRLZEFREERARNFRA

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IWRLZENRERRARMNFRAF

A subsidiary of Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. (i
IREZEFIREBRARGFRE ()

An entity which was controlled by chairman and his relative
AARESREATEENEE



X Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

3 Information on other related parties (cont’d)

M

(i)

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd. and President Enterprises
(China)
influence over the Company through shareholders’ meetings

Investment Co., Ltd. exercised their significant
and their representation on the board of directors of the

Company.

The Group transferred 18.95% equity interest of Yantai Andre
Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food Specialties China Enterprise
Co., Ltd. at 26 September 2013. After the completion of
the transfer, the Group ceased owning any equity interest in
Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

4 Transactions with related parties
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
entered into transactions with related parties as set out

as follows. Some of these related party transactions

constituted connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

(1) Related party transactions

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(BRIFIFIIN - 2B BN RBTE)

+ BBHEREBRZS(|)

3 EHEfthEa SRR (8)

U]

(i)

WRZEMEBARARMS D
X (hEDERERRARBBERE
RERARBEZTGNRRITES
BEFRARKE - KMB AR B EHEER

B4R
o

R2013%F9A 268 + & & & 1%
HARSRENRBRNIBRA
7] 18.95% [ #E#EZENDSM  Food
Specialties China Enterprise Co.,
Ltd.r RZEEEHTER  Ba
ZEMRBROBRABTNEEAR
SEAB SR -

4 BABRZER

2014 G F - A5 B B 5 &
TOTHERHEIN RS - EFTZ
LR X K LT HRBIE 14A
TR T R B A2 5 S 1 R B

(1) BB S

The Group The Company
F%E b3/

Note 2014 2013 2014 2013

M —B—WmE -—T-—=-F ZB-NE _—T—=F

Sales of goods $HE M m 97,791,943 71,197,859 28,425,858 6,622,265

Purchases of goods BERm - 408,969 - 408,969
Purchases of BEHERE

maintenance services 3,644 108,500 3,644 108,500

Disposal of fixed assets RERTEEE () - 675,190 - -

Operating lease charges KEHEER (ii) 509,234 414,893 509,234 414,893

Interest charges FMEEA (iii - 1,296,349 - 1,296,349
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X Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

4 Transactions with related parties (cont’d)
(1) Related party transactions (cont’d)
() Disposal of fixed assets represents the sales of
machinery and equipment sold by Dalian Andre Juice
Co., Ltd. to Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd.

(i) Operating lease charges represent the rental paid by the
Company to Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. for leasing its
office buildings.

(iii) Interest charges represent interest charges on the loans
obtained from Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd., which
was repaid on 27 June 2013.

(2) Key management personnel remuneration
Key management personnel are those persons holding
positions with authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Group,
directly or indirectly, including the Group’s directors.
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group is as follows:

The Group
[tem B H
Remuneration of key B B IR A B R

management personnel
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+ BBHEREBRZS(|)

4 BEBXHER (&)
(1) X5 (&)

U)

(i)

(i)

REETEESEANERRE
MRETERARHE TH
BREMRB N — I ERR
fh e

REHEERAREARAR
HERNEXNTFRERZE
NRBEOBRARNES

FMEBARBRILEZEN
SEERDTEAERKF
B ZEBEREN20135F6
A27BfEE -

©) BREZEALHFE
FREEABESHEARNOME
TEERKEERRE - FEME
HAKEERHHAR - BFEAK
SEMESRES -  HHERE

EABRRMAOT ¢
AKE
2014 2013
—Z—MmF =4
2,370,758 2,320,217




X Related parties and related party transactions
(cont’d)

4 Transactions with related parties (cont’d)
(2) Key management personnel remuneration (cont’d)

The Company
ltem THE
Remuneration of key FASEE IR A B RN

management personnel

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid to the directors or supervisors
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company
or as compensation for loss of office. For the year
ended 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
no fees or any other emoluments were waived by
directors or supervisors.

5 Receivables from and payables to related parties

+

BRI 75 B BB 3E 5 (48)

4 BEBXHER (&)
Q) BREZEARHF % (&)

b 3/
2014 2013
—E—mE =4
1,428,055 1,519,390

R2014FE M2013F[E » AR
AR AIE S R EE MR
B <& LAYE R IR S| EIRA AR R )
B SEEN Sk BRI (E - 72014 &
20134 - EEHEESEMEN
BEHRSIEHMHNE -

5 EABSEWENRE

The Group The Company
F5EE 407

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z—mE —E—=F —ZT—mE =%
+=A=+—B +=A=+—8 +=B=+—H +=-A=+—*H
Accounts receivable FEUBRTR 31,517,680 10,380,732 12,104,464 739,315
Other payables HAnERER 7,859,697 165,957 132,889 165,957
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X Related parties and related party transactions

(cont’d)

6 Guarantee
2014

(1)

@

©

The Company as a guarantor

Name of guarantee

WiERs

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
TINEZEANREABRAA

The Group as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

’EA

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

WRZENEEERAR

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

WRZEMNEEBR AT

The Company as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

w’E&ES

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

WRZIENEEER DA

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.

WRZENEEERAF

202 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. /BAdtARENETRHOERAT

+

BRI 75 B BB 3E 5 (48)

6 ERER
2014 4

(1) KR EIERERT

Amount of
guaranty

RHREE

50,000,000

Guaranty
completed (Y/N)
i3

EEEE
BT

Y
=

Q) FEBERHEAERTT

Amount of
guaranty
REEHE

237,500,000

759,141,600

Guaranty
completed (Y/N)
b4

EEEHE
EBiTR2

il < o =

B8) AR AIEREAERTT

Amount of
guaranty
BREH

237,500,000

759,141,600

Guaranty
completed (Y/N)
&

EEEE
BTS2

il < I =z



X Related parties and related party transactions +
(cont’d)

6 Guarantee (cont’d)
2013
(1) The Company as a guarantor

Name of guarantee

WIERTT

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
RMNLZENREA AR QA

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

ML EFREABRAE]

Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co., Ltd.
&R A ZEARA R FRAF]

(2) The Group as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

R

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR ZEFEEFR AT
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR BN EEFRAF

(3) The Company as a guarantee

Name of guarantor

BRI

Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IWERZENEEBR AR
Shandong Andre Group Co., Ltd.
IR B EE AR AR

BRI 75 B BB 3E 5 (48)

6 ERER(E)
20134
(1) KLREJERBIERT

Guaranty

completed (Y/N)

Amount of R

guaranty ERBEK

EReH BT

N

30,000,000 a

Y

30,000,000 =

Y

20,000,000 =
) AEEIERREERY

Guaranty

completed (Y/N)

Amount of ER

guaranty EEEK

ERe®H fB1T75e 2

N

459,078,647 =

Y

167,421,293 =

B) AR AIEBBEAERY

Guaranty

completed (Y/N)

Amount of ER
guaranty EEE&
ERewE BiTE

N

459,078,647 75
Y

167,421,293 =
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Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group defines “capital” as including all components of
equity plus any loans from related parties with no fixed terms
of repayment, less unaccrued proposed dividends. The
balances of related party transactions are not regarded by the
Group as capital.

The Group’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and
managed to achieve an optimal structure and return for
shareholders. Factors for the Group’s consideration include:
its future funding requirements, capital efficiency, actual and
expected profitability, expected cash flows, and expected
capital expenditure, etc. Adjustments are made to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting
the Group.

The Group’s capital structure is monitored on the basis
of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which includes
short-term) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less related-
party loans with no fixed repayment terms and cash and cash
equivalents.

During 2014, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2013, was to maintain an adjusted net debt-to-capital
ratio of no more than 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the
ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, request new loans, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(Br1FFIZE ) i‘?ﬁﬁﬂfﬁz/‘%/\ﬁﬂ%l

Xl Capital management (cont’d) +—-FAEHE (/)
The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio is as follows: IREHER Y REFR R AR -
The Group The Company
P340 NG|
Note i3 2014 2013 2014 2013
20145 20134 20145 20134
Current liabilties AR
Short-term loans EHEH VAGXV12 F16/TE 12 473,237,000 672,250,302 423,237,000 572,250,302
Non-current liabilities ErgaE
Long-term payables- REEMH-
Obligations under JERRER
finance leases £ 692,453 665,420 - =
Sub-total 1N 473,929,453 672,914,812 423,237,000 572,259,392
Total debt BEBAE 473929453 672914812 423,237,000 572,259,392
Add: Proposed dividends 11 : IEEDEMRF Xl = 19,630,000 20226102 19,630,000 20,226,102
Less: Cash and W REREE
cash equivalents ZEW V.1 FiRy 191,534,476 437,065,445 180,498,375 432,732,849
Adjusted net debt R AR 302,024977 256075469 262,368,625 159,752,645
Shareholders” equity BRER 1,539,647,353  1,5635,635,795 989,673,498  1,033,143,701
Less: Proposed dividends 3L : IR ATLAMRE Xl += 19,630,000 20,226,102 19,630,000 20,226,102
Adjusted capital THENER 1,520,017,353  1,515,409,693 970,043,498 1,012,917,599
Adjusted net debt-to LARTRS
-capital ratio 20% BA% 20% 17% 21% 16%
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to ARBHARNRNFRAAIHEFTERE
externally imposed capital requirements. RIFNERoR B 1B AR TSR o
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Xll Commitments and contingencies +_FAKERREEIR
1 Significant Commitments 1 EEAESE
(1) Capital commitments (1) BEAREE
2014 2013
ltem 15 B —ZE—QmE —T—=fF
Contracts for acquisition of fixed BRI IEEREERITH
assets being or to be executed BT EERBEER - 1,297,360
(2) Operating lease commitments (2) REHEEHISE
For the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31 R2014412 A31 B & 20134 12
December 2013, the Group and the Company had no R318 @ XEBRARREENA]
non-cancellable operating leases. BB S E ek -
2 Contingent liabilities arising from outstanding 2 RRFRABEANIKEEEBERHE
litigations and arbitration and related financial g 37
effect
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the 7R20145 12 431 H % 20134 12 A 31
Group did not have contingent liabilites arising from H - NEBNEERAFAMHEFEKE
outstanding litigations and arbitration. HEBE -
3 Contingent liabilities arising from guarantees 3 AHMEBMRERHEEKEREKND
provided for other enterprises and related financial FEEREMEBE
effect
As at 31 December 2014, the Company did not provide M20145F12A31H - "R RRBH
guarantees (2013: RMB30,000,000) in respect of the bank FARAIRITE IR AR (2013 4
loans of subsidiaries. The Board of Directors considers AR #30,000,0007T) - EEERAEAR
it is not probable that a claim will be made against the ARAARITELHNFERRHETEE
Company under any of the guarantees. HHIRRE
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XIll Post balance sheet date events

Profit appropriation after the balance sheet date

ltem HH

Dividends to be appropriated 5 BRI AEF

Dividends approved and declared LESHET S
ZEIRAIRRF

On 12 March 2015, the Board of Directors proposed an
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMBO0.05 per share to the
Company’s shareholders. The proposal is subject to approval
by the shareholders’ general meeting. Such cash dividends
are not recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

On 19 March 2014, the Board of Directors proposed an
appropriation of a cash dividend of RMBO0.05 per share, the
proposal was approved by the shareholders’ general meeting
on 25 June 2014.

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat
(B 15 Bt B2 i‘?gﬁﬂfﬁz/‘%/\ﬁﬁ?é;

Tt RERRRAEER

BEERBERARFEIEBERHA

Amount
&

2014
—Z=—MmEF

19,630,000

19,630,000

Amount
i)

2013
=%

20,226,102

20,226,102

FE2N2015F 3 A 12 BIgEA R A
MR IR 2014 FEIRNSIF] - T
R B B FI A R 0.05 7T o It IB IR R M
FRERGHE - REERERAR
HERENREBRFNITAEEEGR

“AERBRAIE -

EEERN 20143 A 19 BIREA LA
MR 2 2013 FEIM S IF - FH%
IREERE A AR 0.057 » thIEIRHN
20144 6 A 25 B EREAS A -
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XIV Other significant items

Segment reporting
The Group is principally operating in a single reportable
segment, which is engaged in manufacture and sales of
condensed fruit juice and related products, therefore the
Group has not disclose any further information with respect to
reportable segment.

The geographical location of the Group’s operating income
from external customers is set out as follows:

tHEMEERR

7 E
AEETZHEE-KLEDHALE
BIEEHERERT MAARER © T
IAREERBRBLEDEES °

UTEARERE PRI &R
WA

China =

North America JEZEM

Asia (excluding China) oM (AR B BASN)
Europe BOM

Oceania RAEM

Africa FEM

Total a5t

2014 2013
—E=—mf —F—=%F
263,268,960 248,626,884
200,772,797 260,057,170
159,623,431 224,035,008
115,572,753 76,303,360
92,211,050 56,372,113
13,019,622 28,053,391
844,468,613 893,447,926

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of non-
current assets located overseas is RMB336,669 (2013:
RMB385,636).
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicate
(BA1FFIE RS - 2 BB

i

o ik

ti BAFIMBHRERREEE

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements

1 Cash at bank and on hand 1 E¥ES
2014 2013
ltem 15 E —E—mE =4
Cash on hand' Be 32,951 88,299
Deposits with banks SRITIER 180,465,424 432,644,550

Total A&t 180,498,375 432,732,849

MN2014E12 8318  KARHNEEFRA
BZERFANEEES (2013F : A
9,354,986 7T) °

As at 31 December 2014, the Company did not have any
cash at bank with restrictions (2013: RMB9,354,986).

2 FEUWERR
(1) ERERFIZLEF TR T -

2 Accounts receivable
(1) Accounts receivable by type are as follows:

2014 2013
Type 7 —Z—mE —T—=fF
Subsidiaries F A 14,951,604 11,312,442
Other related parties RN 12,104,464 739,315
Third parties F=r 88,484,312 120,151,744
Sub-total NET 115,540,380 132,203,501

B AR - =

Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Total A&t 115,540,380 132,203,501
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B 1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

2 Accounts receivable (cont’d)
(2) The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as

follows:

Ageing

Within 6 months (inclusive)

Less: Provision for bad and

doubtful debts

Total

ARER

B AR

The ageing is counted starting from the date when

accounts receivable are recognised.

3 Prepayments
(1) Prepayments by category are as follows:

@

NEAAA (&

ti BAFIMEBREIERAEE

(¥)

2 FEWARRX ()
Q) ERRRAIZRE S WTRIT -

NMEA)

2014 2013
—E—mE =T =
115,540,380 132,203,501
115,540,380 132,203,501

B 6 5 B U 3RS 1 R 44
-

3 FEMNRER
(1) BABDEEZTIIT -

2014 2013
ltem 5B —Z=—msE —E—=%F
Prepayments to suppliers TafftrERS 6,195,974 27,090,545
Other prepayments TR H AL 48,908 10,016
Total A&t 6,244,882 27,100,561
The ageing analysis of prepayments is as follows: ©2) FETEIZIRES AT -

2014 2013
—E2-MmF —T=F
Amount  Percentage (%) Amount Percentage (%)
Ageing Rk &F EE Bl (%) G| A1 (%)
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1A (R 15) 6,197,484 99% 27,033,163 100%
Over 1 year but within 1225 (82F) 47,398 1% 67,398 0%
2 years (inclusive)
Total At 6,244,882 100% 27,100,561 100%

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
prepayments are recognised.
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

4 Other receivables

(1) Other receivables by type are as follows:

@

S

Type 3=l
Subsidiaries N A]
Third parties F=
Sub-total NET

Less: Provision for bad and
doubtful debts

Total

The ageing analysis of other receivables is

as follows:

Ageing ARER

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1FELAAR(E1F)

Over 1 year but within 2 years 1FE2F(524F)
(inclusive)

Over 2 years but within 3 years 2FE3F(F3F)
(inclusive)

Over 3 years 3FLAE

Sub-total /NET

Less: Provision for bad and B AR
doubtful debts

Total a5t

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indlicated)
(Br1FFIZE ) i‘ggﬁﬂfﬁz/‘%/\ﬁ%l

ti BAFIMEBREIERAEE

(48)
4 HbpEWER
(1) BEENRIZLER WO

2014 2013
—E—mE —E—=4F
393,945,310 244,530,940
4,075,203 4,008,650
398,020,513 248,539,590
3,987,685 3,987,685
394,032,828 244,551,905

@) BEmEWK ARG 7 HTR0 T

2014 2013
—=—msE —ET—=F
394,032,828 244,550,037
- 1,868

3,987,685 3,987,685
398,020,513 248,539,590
3,987,685 3,987,685
394,032,828 244,551,905

The ageing is counted starting from the date when
other receivables are recognised.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Company did not hold any other receivables which
were denominated in foreign currency.

ARk B H At FE YRR R B AR FR

R

(3) M2014FE R2013FE » AR
ARSNGB At FE WK
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d) (4%8)

4 Other receivables (cont’d)
(4) During the year ended 31 December 2014 and 31

December 2013, the Company had no individually

significant reverse or recovery of bad debts provision

ti BAFIMEBREERAEE

4 HAEWR(E)
(4) F2014FE M2013FE » AR

A% B W Bl 2 8 O] A 5T 4F 2 A
2R ABALLPIGHRIE AR

which had been fully or substantially provided for in B E e LR o
prior years.
5 #&
5 Inventory (1) FESHE
(1) Inventories by category are as follows:
2014 2013
k- 12 2
Provision for Provision for
impairment impairment
Book of  Carrying Book of Carrying
value inventories amount value inventories amount
ltem FEER BERE BRER 2BERE 2 FEHE KEEE RAEE
Raw materials RArE 5,766,302 - 5766302 6514575 - 6514575
Finished goods ERFEm 68,792,379 - 68,792,379 164,836,743 - 164,836,743
Total GH) 74,558,681 - 74558681 171,351,318 - 171,351,318

@) AR E] 7 BEE B ISR 5

(2) An analysis of the movements of inventories for the

year is as follows:

Carrying amount:
At 1 January 2013
Additions during the year
Reductions during the year

At 31 December 2013

Additions during the year
Reductions during the year

At 31 December 2014

7\— -
Raw materials Finished goods Total
E#E ExEE&S &t

REEE:
R2013%1 A1H 3,643,588 163,241,937 166,885,525
REHN 100,789,730 619,439,746 720,229,476
RERD 97,918,743 617,844,940 715,763,683
R2013F 12 A 31 H 6,514,575 164,836,743 171,351,318
REHE 57,692,027 385,722,883 443,414,910
RERD 58,440,300 481,767,247 540,207,547
R20145E12 A 31 H 5,766,302 68,792,379 74,558,681
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financial statements (cont’d)

6 Available-for-sale financial assets

[tem

Available-for-sale financial assets
Less: Provision for impairment

Total

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

AHHESREE
R EER

During the year ended 31 December 2014, The Company

subscribed the trust loan collective trust scheme of

Zhengzhou Navigation Construction from National Trust
Product Ltd., with total amount of RMB10,000,000. The

trust is expected to be matured in one year.

7 Other current assets

[tem

Input VAT recoverable

8 Long-term equity investments

BHH

RIS ER IR

(1) Long-term equity investments by category are as

follows:

[tem

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in a joint venture

Sub-total
Less: Provision for impairment

Total

e

HTRAWIRE
HeaEtENRE

gt
R REE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat

(REFRHS  2 BB BRI

ti BAFIMEBREERAEE

(¥)

6 UHHETRMEE

2014 2013
—E—mE =T =
10,000,000 =
10,000,000 =

MR2014FE » ARAIEFERER
EREARABRE T &N @M
EREREREEESEHRE
g2l A ARKEA1,00087T © %
EREREFERRAIF -

7 HtRBEE

2014 2013
—E2—mF —T—=F
42,902,832 58,087,647

8 REIBRERE

(1) RERIELEAFIT -

2014 2013
—E—mE =%
573,355,647 521,235,647
19,476,107 23,559,696
592,831,754 544,795,343
592,831,754 544,795,343
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B1 76 35 % [ 5T

year are as follows:

2014

Investee

Cost method-subsidiaries
Baishui Andre Juice Co,, Lid.
Yantai Longkou Andre Juice Co, Lid.

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co, Lid.
Andre Juice Co,, Lid.

Dallen Ancre Juice Co, Lid.
Binzhou Andre Juice Co, Ltd.
Yantal Andre Juice Co, Lid.
Yongji Andre Juce Co, Lid.
Anyue Andre Lemon Industry

Technology Co,, Ltd.

Subtotal

Equity method-joint venture
Yantai Tongl Beverage Industires Co, Lid.

Subtotal

Total

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FRsE R - 2 BE B B ALRHT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the

ti BAFIMEBREERAEE

(#)

8 REREIRE(H)

war

—F—mF

Book value of long-term equity investment

RUREREEERE
at  Increase/ at
Investmentcost ~ 1January  Decrease 31 December
HREEL BEmE  1B1R ERED  12B%B
BAE-F47
BAZERZEIARAT 110630430 110630130 - 10830130
fAENRERRT
HHERAA 80626 806226% - 806226%
RMRERZEIARAT 58645418 58645418 - G418
ZENETARAT 8 8 - 8
KEREHEATARAD 56000000 56000000 - 56,000,000
BNZENS - EBRAT 107803488 107808488 - 107,893,488
MARENSEARAT 30000000 30000000 - 30000000
KEREHSATERAR 7743007 77443007 - T390
RREETIREES
HRERAT 52,120,000 - R0000 52120000
It ST3E0LT B2 120000 573355647
Ha%-480%
BaGHARTZERATD 50000 2355969 (4083589  19.476,107
It BB 2355969 (4083569 19476,107
Aif BORAHETS  BUATOBA3 4803411 BODR1TAM
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Shareholding  Voting rights

percentage  percentage
(%) (%)
EHAE  ERRE
Btk  Bixad
RAee) B ()
75% 15%

7% 15%
7% 1%
100% 100%
10% 10%
7% 1%
7% 5%
7% 1%

100% 100%

2% %%

Q) RERIERE X FEZES

Cash
dividend
for the year

L33
RedH

4,905,000

4,905,000




2013

Investee

Cost method-subsidiaries
Baishui Andre Juice Co,, Lid.

Yantai Longkou AndFe Juice Co, Lid.

Xuzhou Andre Juice Co., Lid.
Ande Juice Co, Ltd.

Dallen Ancre Juice Co,, Lid.
Binzhou Andre Juice Co, Ltd.
Yantai Andre Juice Co, Ltd.
Yongji Andre Juice Co, Ltd.

Subtotal

Equity methodoint venture:

Yanta Tongli Beverage Idlustires Co., Lid.

Equty method-associate
Yantal Andre Pectin Co,, Lid.

Subtotal

Total

8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the
year are as follows: (cont’d)

BN

HAE-F07
KR EHREARAT
RREORENRL
HRARDT
BHREHREARA
ZEARERAA
REREHRRARAA
EMZERRHAARA
REZEHRHARA
KEREHREARAR

gt

ERit-REls

RaGHHTEERA

ERi-BElE
Rz RBRIVERA
It

=

fl
fl

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indic

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

(BRI » 2B BALR

o
R

ti BAFIMEBREERAEE

(#)
8 RERERE(H)
Q) RERIERE X FEZES
wHT (&)

—E—=%F

Book value of long-term equty investment

RORERERAEE

Shareholding ~ Voting ights
a Increase/ a percenfage  percentage Cash
Ivesimentcost ~ 1January ~ Decrease 31 December (%) (%) dvidend
THRE  TERE  foteyer
Bk EfifE &3
RERA  1R1A ERE® n0ANE Al iRl REMd
110630130 110,630,130 - 110,630,130 75% 5% -
806226%  80,622,69 - B06226% 75% 5% =
58645418 58,645,418 - 864418 7% 5% -
8 8 - 8 100% 100% -
56,0000 56,000,000 - 56000000 0% 10% =
107893488 107,893,488 - 107,893,468 7% 5% -
30000000 30,000,000 - 30,000,000 7% 5% -
TTA3007 77443907 - TR 75% 5% =
5212365647 621,286,647 - 52128647 =
500006 2661353 (3003839  235596% %% %% 6,075,000
33080000 60,056,541 (60,056,541) - - - -
56080026 86670076  (63110.380)  235596% 6,075,000
579316673  607.005723  (63110.380) 544,796,343 6,075,000
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFIMEBBEETERHGEE

financial statements (cont’d) (%8)
8 Long-term equity investments (cont’d) 8 RERERE (H)
(2) Movements of long-term equity investments for the ©2) RAIRIER &R FEZE)E T 5

year are as follows: (cont’d)
The detail of the Company’s subsidiaries is set out in
Note VII.1.

The Company held 18.95% equity interest of Yantai
Andre Pectin Co., Ltd., an associate of the Company
previously. The Company transferred 18.95% equity
interest of Yantai Andre Pectin Co., Ltd. to DSM Food
Specialties China Enterprise Co., Ltd. in 2013. After
the completion of the transfer, the Company ceased
owning any equity interest in Yantai Andre Pectin Co.,
Ltd.

S

(3) Details of the joint venture

Total assets ~ Total liabilities

at 31 December at 31 December
2014 22-mE 12R318 12R31R
Name of investee HREENER BELE RfELE
Yantai Tongli Beverage Industries Co, Lid. RAGHSBTIEERAA 112,241,505 4,717,343

Totalassets  Totalliabilties

at 31 December  at 31 December
2013 Ik 124318 124318
Name of investeg RXEEAR BEGE BELE
Yantai Tongi Beverage Industries Co,, Lid. RafHAE TEERAT 121,810,020 6,671,500
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WA (&)
RARTFARINIEEEELR
BieEt -~ — o

W\

e @ARBRHERAF]
RAEARRGBELE AR
Al R FE AR EE B 718.95% © R
20135 E  ARAIBBERE L
EMRBRND AR AT 18.95%
%5 DSM Food Specialties
China Enterprise Co., Ltd. @ 7
ZEEERTEE  AQFT
BHRERERENRBROE

PRA B e fEas o
BEPEEE
Total operating
Net assets income Net profit
at31December ~ fortheyear  for the year
12B31R FE8R L33

BRELE BARE bl

107,524,162 104,729,890 3,285,642

Total operating
Net assets income Net profit
at 31 December for the year for the year
12A31R rEER 53

FRELE LN R

116138620 145,707,475 12,084,638



XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

ti BAFIMEBREERAEE

financial statements (cont’d) (8
9 Fixed assets 9 BEEEE
(1) Details of fixed assets (1) BlEEEIER
Office &
Plant&  Machinery & other Motor
buildings equipment equipment vehicles Total
NG|
ftem AR BEREEN ] REMRG EBIR &t
Cost (g
At 1 January 2013 20131 /18 105413027 109,108,797 7,547,103 4659040 226,727,967
Additions during the year REEN
- Purchases -EE 5,988,519 12,616,909 300,178 13,675 18,919,281
Disposal or write-off during REREYHE (11,598,820) - - (619552 (12,218,372
the year
At 31 December 2013 2013%12A31H 99,802,726 121,725,706 7,847,281 4053163 233,428,876
At 1 January 2014 201451818 99,802,726 121,725,706 7,847,281 4,053,163 233,428,376
Additions during the year REED
- Purchases -BE 859,340 2,046,782 145,888 9,188 3,061,198
~ Transfer from construction -FRIREA 66,355 - - - 66,355
in progress
Disposal or write-off during the year ~ AFREHHE - (45,614 (86,406) - (132,020)
At 31 December 2014 2014512318 100728421 123,726,874 7,906,763 4062351 236,424,409
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE
At 1 January 2013 2013F1R18 (27,838,083 (55,514,214 (6,248,266) (3,254993)  (92,855,506)
Charge for the year KR (1946419  (3993,514) (309,252) (404,875 (6,654,060
Disposal or write-off during TEREGHE 1,400,612 - - 552,811 1953423
the year
At 31 December 2013 2013F12A31H (28,383,840)  (59,507,728) (6,557,518) (3,107,057) (97,556,143
At 1 January 2014 2014F1 718 (28,383,840)  (59,507,728) (6,557,518) (3,107,057) (97,556,143
Charge for the year REGR (1873642  (4,708,644) (247,345) (336,073)  (7,165,704)
Disposal or write-off during RERERRE - 5,943 77,765 - 83,708
the year
At 31 December 2014 2014512318 (30,257,482)  (64,210,429) (6,727,098) (3,443,130)  (104,638,139)
Carrying amounts R
At 31 December 2014 2014E12 731 B 70,470,939 59,516,445 1,179,665 619221 131,786,270
At 31 December 2013 2013512318 71,418,886 62,217,978 1,289,763 946,106 135,872,733
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

o ik

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BARHMBHEERETERHEAE

financial statements (cont’d) (%)
9 Fixed assets (cont’d) 9 BEEEE (&)
(1) Details of fixed assets (cont'd) (1) BEIELEREL (&)
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, M2014512 431 B k20134
no fixed assets with restrictions were placed on the 12 A31H » AAREMBES
Group’s ownership. FR B EEEE ©
(2) Fixed assets acquired under finance leases () BEMEHEAAETEE
=
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no 7R 2014912 431 H & 20134
fixed assets were acquired under finance leases. 12831 H » XARERERE
HARBEEEE °
(3) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (3) BIBAT & BT R E[E EE
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no 7K 2014F 12 431 H & 20134
fixed assets were leased out under operating leases. 12431 H » XARELEHE
HHEHNEEEE -
(4) Fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership (4) KPP EEE 2N EFEEE
P
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, 7K 2014F 12 431 H & 20134
no fixed assets with pending certificates of ownership 12 318 » RARERBZE
were placed on the Company’s ownership. HEEZEMEEEERBR °
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financial statements (cont’d)

10 Intangible assets

Cost
At 1 January 2013
Additions during the year
— Purchase
Disposal during the year

At 31 December 2013
At 1 January 2014
Additions during the year
— Purchase
At 31 December 2014
Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 2013
Charge for the year
Disposal during the year

At 31 December 2013

At 1 January 2014
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2014

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

[R1E
20131 H1H
AEIE N
—BE
RERE

2013412 A31 H
201451 A1H
AN

—EE
2014412 A31 H

BT

201341 A1H
NEFHE
REFE
2013412 A31 H

201451 A1H
NEFHE

2014412 A31 H

BREEE
2014412 A31 H

2013412 A31 H

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, all of
the Company’s land use rights are held on medium-term

lease.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Company does not use any intangible assets as mortgage

for bank loans.

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, no
land use rights with pending certificates were place on the

Company’s ownership.

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicat

(REFRHS  2 BB BRI

ti BAFIMEBREERAEE

(#)
10 B EE

Land use rights

= A 4

36,823,309

2,889,945
(4,363,400)

35,349,854

35,349,854
205,128

35,654,982

(6,039,878)
(832,292)
944,508

(5,927,662)
(5,927,662)
(755,624)

(6,683,286)

28,871,696

29,422,192

MR2014F12 A 31 H % 20134 12 A 31
B - AR RIFTA L A A+ B
49 °

R2014412 531 H % 2013412 A 31
B ARRSEBRBNEFEE -

MN2014512 A31 H Kk2013%E12 A
318 ' ARARERNZEHIZTENLT
o5 FAREB R ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

11 Deferred tax assets
(1) Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets

ltem BH

AEHIER

Deductible tax losses

(2) In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note Ill.24, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
RMB19,169,145 (2013: RMB15,185,329) as it is not
probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utiised will be available in the
Company before they expire. Deductible tax losses of
RMB19,169,145 will expire in 2019. The deductible tax
losses expire within 5 years from the year when such
losses were incurred under current tax law.

12 Short-term loans

ltem BH
Credit loans ERER
Pledged loans HEIRE K
Guaranteed loans IREEE K
Total =X

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, the
Company does not have past due short-term loans
(including short-term loans and long-term loans due within
one year).

220 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. B&LH R ENRTRDERAT

ti BAFIMEBREERAEE
(%)

11 EEFEHEE
(1) I PT i3 7 & B AT

2014 2013
—Z—msE —ET—=F
19,169,145 15,185,329

@) RBHIE= - 24 FTE A S 5L
R HARARBTERAIBEE
SR AREINBBEEH AR
FERANE - FE LA A B MR B
ANER¥19,169,145 7T (20134 :
AR #15185,3297T) W 2 1&
AR EEERELERGHE
E - EP ARK19,169,145 T
15 2019 FF R ER © ARIRIRITHL
% BETENEBEEEESF
SRR - AJ LATETABIBSF /Y HAR
R0 AR SR FEFLF R o

12 SSHAfERX

2014 2013
—E—mF —T—=4F
185,737,000 115,744,695
= 27,436,050
237,500,000 429,078,647
423,237,000 572,259,392

R2014%F12 A31 B &% 20134 12
A318 » ARRIECZIHIAREED

ER(BREEHER

A RBER) °

M—F A2



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indlicated)
(Br1FFIBHI) i‘ggﬁﬂfﬁz/‘%/\ﬁ%l

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BARHMBHEERETERHEAE

financial statements (cont’d) (8

13 Accounts payable 13 FEE{FERR
The ageing analysis of accounts payable is as follows: FESBRIRBRBR DATLD T -

2014 2013
Ageing BRAR —Z—msE —EF—=F
Within 6 months (inclusive) 61E A AR (Z61MEA) 54,122,859 199,482,579
Over 6 months but within 6EAE1F(E51F) 1,513,559 3,705,514
1 year (inclusive)

Over 1 year 1A E 44,392,404 -
Total A&t 100,028,822 203,188,093

ARie B B AR KB SR B R 8 5T
The ageing is counted starting from the date when o
accounts payable are recognised.
14 FEATHE T3
14 Employee benefits payable (1) FEIT B T3 B3
(1) Employee benefits payable:

Balance at Accrued  Decreased Balance at
1 January during during 31 December
2014 the year the year 2014
201445 20144

1A 1H&# A8 HERD 128 31 HigEE

Short-term employee benefits 52 HA%FE 1,778,254 10,773,339 10,088,079 2,463,514
Post-employment benefits BERR 2R A

— defined contribution plans —RERFAE - 853,578 853,578 =
Total =5 1,778,254 11,626,917 10,941,657 2,463,514

—Z—EFEH Annual Report 2014 221



PR R R

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsTRE) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

14 Employee benefits payable (cont’d)

(2) Short-term employee benefits

©

222 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd.

Salaries, bonuses, allowances

Staff welfare

Social insurance
Medical insurance
Work-related injury insurance
Maternity insurance

Housing fund

Labour union fee, staff
and workers’ education fee

Total

ti BAFMEBRREIERAEE

(¥&)

14 BB TEHH (8)
@) r2 B

Balance at Accrued Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2014 the year the year 2014

20145 2014

1A1H8&# FEIEM FERD 12A 31 AEE

RBE AN 896,240 10,203,900 9,518,640 1,581,500

BITEMNE 882,014 109,374 109,374 882,014

HEREE

BERRE - 284,526 284,526 =

IERRE - 44,710 44,710 -

EERBRE - 40,647 40,647 -

ERARES - 66,202 66,202 =
TEKEMET

HERLE - 23,980 23,980 -

&t 1,778,254 10,773,339 10,088,079 2,463,514

Post-employment benefits-defined contribution plans

Basic pension insurance
Unemployment insurance

Total

(3) BEBLZ IR — REIETFATE)

Balance at Accrued  Decreased Balance at

1 January during during 31 December

2014 the year the year 2014

20145 20145

1A1B8# FEBm XERD 12A31 ARE

BEARBERR - 812,931 812,931 -
RERRE - 40,647 40,647 -
& - 853,578 853,578 -

As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013,
the Group has no payment in arrears in the balance of

employee benefits payable.
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BARHMBHEERETERHEAE

financial statements (cont’d) (8
15 Other payables 15 Ht e
2014 2013
ltem 35 —Z—mE =T =
Subsidiaries FRAE] 95,027,273 122,717,348
Other related parties H b BFEE N A 132,889 165,957
Third parties E=7 18,869,586 15,918,948
Total CE 114,029,748 138,802,253
16 Capital reserve 16 ERRAE
2014 —Z—mF
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance
the beginning during during at the end
of the year the year the year of the year
ltem A EMRE FERm XFERD FXiE
Share premiums BRARE 138,628,538 - 17,773,243 120,855,295
Foreign currency translation INERR AT E =5 9,926 = = 9,926
Total G 138,638,464 - 17,773,243 120,865,221
2013 —T=F
Balance at Additions Reductions Balance
the beginning during during at the end
of the year the year the year of the year
ltem HE FAEAER REEM RERD FREAT
Share premiums WA (B 138,628,538 - - 138,628,538
Foreign currency translation INERR AT E = H 9,926 = = 9,926
Total CE 138,638,464 - - 138,638,464
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsE ) - 2 BE B B ALHET)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s

financial statements (cont’d)

17 Surplus reserve

2014

ltem HH

Statutory surplus reserve ETERBBRAE
2013

ltem THE

Statutory surplus reserve R EBRANE

18 Operating income and operating costs

Item HE
Principal activities FEEK
Other businesses Hin %
Total A&t

ti BAFIMEBREERAEE

(#)
17 BBRA DR
—ZT—mE
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
o)) ] FEI/M FXRxE
103,144,993 1,091,714 104,236,707
=%
Balance at Additions Balance at
the beginning during the end
of the year the year of the year
FYIEREE AREIE NN FREREE
100,061,818 3,083,175 103,144,993

18 ERWMATME XA

2014
—Z—MmE
Income

BA

2013
—T-=F
Cost Income Cost
BE LN A

578,868,900 490,421,657 570,070,185 521,754,954
8,578,294 8,147,241 7,697,094 6,982,352

587,447,194 498,568,898 577,767,279 528,737,306

Turnover primarily represents income arising from the

sales of condensed juice net of value added tax.

Other operating income primarily represents income
arising from the sales of packaging materials and so on.
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BAFHMBHEERETERHEE

financial statements (cont’d) (%)
19 Financial expenses 19 MIEH
2014 2013
ltem EYE —Z—mE —ET—=F
Interest expenses on bank RAFREZEEFEZRIT
borrowings repayable wholly ESFEER
within five years 35,097,790 24,288,803
Interest income from deposits FREF B WA (782,809) (1,137,231)
Net exchange (gains)/losses FEN (W) B8 (1,033,944) 98,291
Other financial expenses E A 55 A 990,127 352,353
Total CH 34,271,164 23,602,216
20 Investment income 20 ®E W=
2014 2013
ltem 1HH —ZT—mE —T =4
Income from long-term equity KA AR & WS
investments accounted for
using equity method 821,411 2,187,800
Investment income from BERREREEER
disposal of long-term LB W
equity investments - 76,743,070
Investment income from BEENAREBETEAEEZS
disposal of financial assets FFABHERNSREE
at fair value through SR & W s
profit or loss 1,087,855 765,488
Total At 1,909,266 79,696,358
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(B1FFsT ) - 2 R B B ALRHT)

XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

21 Income tax expenses

ltem HH

Current tax expenses TBRA MR AT E R
for the year based on tax B FRSH
law and regulations

Changes in deferred BIEFTS TR A &)
tax assets

Reversal of over-accrued FARARTFEREH 2

income tax made
in previous years

Total =X

(1) The analysis of changes in deferred tax assets is set

out below:
ltem HH
Origination and reversal of Tz 21 L

temporary differences

226 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1HZEFRTROERA T

(¥&)

21 FREHEM

Sl

ti BAFIMEBREERAEE

Note 2014 2013
= —Z=—mF —E=%
= 12,154,313

(1) - 1,057,961
(1,097,308) 893,771

(1,097,308) 14,106,045

() BEMFHOEBAOMAOT :

2014
—2—mF

2013
—2—=F

1,057,961
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XV Notes to major items in the parent company’s
financial statements (cont’d)

ti BAFIMEBREERAEE
(¥&)

21 Income tax expenses (cont’d)
(2) Reconciliation between income tax expenses and

21 FREHER (&)
(@ FIEHERESFBEAREE

accounting profit is as follows: m
2014 2013

ltem 1HH —ZT—mE —E-=F
Profits before taxation BRI 9,819,834 45,882,298
Expected income tax LR R 25% =T EH)

expenses at tax rate TEEAFTISHE

of 25% 2,454,959 11,470,575
Effect of non-taxable income FEEBMBAR T E (7,247,245) (776,138)
Effect of tax loss of R EBERNTE

tax-exempted business - 1,397,962
Effect of unrecognized deferred ~ AF R ERIELEFTSHEEER

tax asset for deductible loss RSB E 4,792,286 =
Effect of adjusting income

tax for previous years FREARIEEMERATE (1,097,308) 1,951,732
Effect of non-deductible costs, ~ NAMEKHIAIAK A -

expenses and losses & RME LR - 61,914
Income tax expense REFSIHER (1,097,308) 14,106,045
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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Xl Notes to major items in the parent company’s 11 BARMBHERETERHEE

financial statements (cont’d)

22 Supplement to cash flow statement

Item R
(1) Reconciliation of net profit to cash (1) BFHEFLALLEDRENE
flows from operating activities:
Net profit A8
Add: Depreciation of fixed assets mn: BEBERE
Amortisation of intangible assets A EERHE
Financial expenses HHER
Investment income RE W
Decrease in deferred tax assets BRMEHEERD
Decrease/(Increase) in gross inventories FERRD, /()
(Increase)/Decrease in operating receivables R EROR R B (M) /R
Increase in operating payables LSRR E RS
Net cash inflow from operating actvities LEEHELNRENEFE
(2) Change in cash and cash equivalents; 2 RERRLEEMILDER:
Cash at the end of the year BENERHE
Less: Cash at the beginning of the year B RERENRE
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BERALEEME (D) /LA
cash equivalents

228 Yantai North Andre Juice Co., Ltd. R&1HZEFRTROERA T

(¥&)

22 BEREBRBAER

2014 2013
~2-mF —T-=f
10,917,142 31,776,253
7,165,704 6,604,060
755,624 832,292
33,904,338 23,695,502
(1,909,266) (79,696,358)

- 1,067,961
96,792,637 (4,465,799)
(113,900,024) 52,603,944
30,938,147 118,944,819
64,664,302 161,402,680
180,498,375 423,377,863
423,371,863 42,257,195
(242,879,488 381,120,668
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